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Financial Highlights
MBREE

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31BLEE
2021 2020
20214 20204

HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FBT

Revenue (from continuing operations) WA CRE FHEEE ) 79,525 (17%)
(Loss)/profit from operations i (E18) 5 F)

(from continuing operations) CREFHELEER) 15,184 (134%)
(Loss)/profit before non-controlling JEfERR A S AT (B51B), Vi F)

interests 16,542 (142%)
Non-controlling interests Esalivg 1,489 (107%)
(Loss)/profit attributable to AT REEREREMN

equity shareholders of (B8|) =R
theCompany .. o 12058 (145%) _
(Loss)/earnings per share SR(EE) B

(from continuing and (REFELSER

discontinuing operations) BARIEEEET)
Basic (HK$) ERCGERT) 0.006 (150%)
Diluted (HK$) BEOET) 0.006 (150%)
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Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) and
the management of Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited (the
“"Company”, together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”), | am pleased to
present the annual report of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2021 (the “Year").

In 2021, COVID-19 pandemic continued to ravage the world, while the
situation on the Mainland was improved compared to that in 2020. In
2021, the Group’s photovoltaic power business came relatively unscathed
out of the pandemic. The photovoltaic power plant in Xuzhou is currently
operating well and the revenue from the photovoltaic power business
remained stable for the Year. For the sub-processing film segment, new
products have been successfully developed and put into production in
2021, resulting in a significant increase in sales this year. It is expected
that the new products will bring more benefits to the Group in the
future. In addition, in respect of the segment of properties development,
as most of our real estate project inventories have been sold in the
previous year, only the remaining inventory with lower unit prices (mainly
comprising storage rooms and parking lots) were sold in the Year, leading
to a significant decrease in revenue from the segment of properties
development and related services for the Year.

Looking ahead, the Group will actively seek different investment
opportunities to generate more profits. Drawing on the experience
of previous project investment and operation, the Group will adopt
a development strategy of prioritizing market and professional team
building. In the future, the Group will launch more new projects and build
corresponding professional teams, so as to create opportunities for the
development of the Company.

Finally, on behalf of the Board, | would like to express my thankfulness
and appreciation to my fellow Directors, management team and all the
staff members of the Group for their dedications and hard work, which
contributed to the Group’s development. | would also like to express our
sincere gratitude to all the Shareholders and customers, suppliers, and
business partners for their continuous supports and persistent trust to the
Group.

Guo, Yumin
Chairman

Hong Kong, 31 March 2022
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEENWR DM

OVERVIEW

During the Year, the Group focused on sales of sub-processing films,
development of residential properties and sale of self-generated
photovoltaic power. The operation of the power stations were stable
during the Year. The total amount of power generation slightly increased
for the Year as compared with the year ended 31 December 2020. In
relation to our property development segment, the significant decrease
in revenue was caused by the substantial decrease in the revenue of the
remaining inventories of properties (which were mainly comprised of
storage rooms and parking lots) being sold.

RESULTS OF OPERATION
Sales of sub-processing cigarette films

During the Year, the Group recorded revenue amounting to approximately
HK$8.1 million from sales of sub-processing cigarette and non-cigarette
films (for the year ended 31 December 2020: approximately HK$5.1
million).

Properties development

The properties development revenue were generated from sales of
remaining inventories of previous property project, which contributed
approximately HK$0.4 million to the Group for the Year (for the year
ended 31 December 2020: approximately HK$21.4 million).

Generation of photovoltaic power

For the Year, the Group had three photovoltaic power stations in
operation, with a total grid-connected capacity of 40 megawatts (“MW").
The revenue generated from this segment reached approximately
HK$57.6 million for the Year (for the year ended 31 December 2020:
approximately HK$53.0 million).

GROSS PROFIT

The gross profit decreased by approximately HK$7.0 million, or
approximately 16.1%, from approximately HK$43.4 million for the
year ended 31 December 2020 to approximately HK$36.4 million for
the Year. The decrease is mainly caused by the decrease of the revenue
from property development segment. Our gross profit margin increased
from approximately 54.5% for the year ended 31 December 2020 to
approximately 55.1% for the Year.

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited
Annual Report 2021
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SELLING AND DISTRIBUTION COSTS

The selling and distribution expenses amounted to approximately HK$0.5
million for the Year (for the year ended 31 December 2020: approximately
HK$0.5 million).

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

The administrative expenses decreased by approximately HK$0.9 million,
or approximately 2.9%, from approximately HK$31.3 million for the year
ended 31 December 2020 to approximately HK$30.4 million for the Year.

IMPAIRMENT LOSSES

The Group has engaged an independent valuer to perform impairment
assessment and calculated the expected credit loss in accordance with
Hong Kong Accounting Standards. During the Year, the Group recorded
impairment losses of approximately HK$14.6 million on trade and other
receivables (for the year ended 31 December 2020: approximately HK$0.6
million). The increase was mainly due to greater financial uncertainty
triggered by the COVID-19 pandemic, the Group has increased the
expected loss rates for the Year as there is higher risk that a prolonged
pandemic could lead to increased credit default rates.

FINANCE COSTS

The finance costs amounted to approximately HK$1.0 million for the Year
(for the year ended 31 December 2020: approximately HK$1.0 million).

INCOME TAX

The income tax expense amounted to approximately HK$0.8 million for
the Year (for the year ended 31 December 2020: approximately HK$4.4
million). The decrease of income tax expense was mainly from refund of
PRC land appreciation tax.

LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF THE
COMPANY

As a result of the foregoing factors, the Group recorded a loss attributable
to equity shareholders of the Company of approximately HK$6.8 million
for the Year as compared to a profit attributable to equity shareholders
of the Company of approximately HK$15.1 million for the year ended 31
December 2020.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENRR DN

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2021, the cash and cash equivalent of the Group
amounted to approximately HK$344.9 million (which were denominated
in HK$, Renminbi (“RMB") and United States dollar) as compared with
approximately HK$326.1 million as at 31 December 2020, representing
an increase of approximately HK$18.8 million. The increase is the sum
of the Group’s net cash outflow of operating activities, net cash inflow
of investing activities and net cash inflow of financing activities that
amounted to approximately HK$7.3 million, approximately HK$11.2
million and approximately HK$3.3 million respectively. As at 31 December
2021, the Group's current ratio being the rate of total current assets to
total current liabilities was 18.9 (as at 31 December 2020: 16.2).

BANK LOANS AND OTHER BORROWINGS

As at 31 December 2021, the Group did not have any material bank
loans, debt securities, borrowings, indebtedness, guarantees, hire
purchase commitments or mortgages (as at 31 December 2020: Nil).

EXPOSURE TO FLUCTUATION IN EXCHANGE RATE

Currently, the Group has no hedging policy with respect to the foreign
exchange exposure. As the functional currency for all subsidiaries in
the PRC are RMB, these subsidiaries were not exposed to any currency
risks due to the exchange rate movement of RMB during the Year. For
subsidiaries established outside the PRC, they had no material financial
assets and liabilities denominated in RMB. Accordingly, the Group's
exposure to RMB risk is insignificant.

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE

During the Year, the Group’s total capital expenditure amounted to
approximately HK$2.0 million.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Save as disclosed above, there is no significant event after the Year and
up to the date of this report.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT, MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS
AND DISPOSALS

There was no significant investment, material acquisitions and disposals by
the Group during the Year.

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited
Annual Report 2021
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CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2021, the Group did not have any significant
contingent liabilities.

HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2021, the Group employed 67 employees (as
compared with 74 employees as at 31 December 2020) with total
staff cost of approximately HK$14.4 million for the Year. The Group’s
remuneration packages are generally structured with reference to market
terms and individual merits. The Company has also adopted a pre-IPO
share option scheme and a share option scheme to provide incentive or
reward to high-calibre employees and attract human resources that are
valuable to the Group.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend payment of any final dividend for the
Year (for the year ended 31 December 2020: Nil).

ADVANCE TO THE ENTITY

On 6 December 2021 (after trading hours), Xuzhou New Advantage Real
Estate Development Co., Ltd.(the “Lender”) , an indirect wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into the loan agreement (the “Loan
Agreement”) with Suining Chuyue Zhiye Company Limited* ( fff 2 & &
E ¥ AR A 7)) (the “Borrower”) and Mr. Sun Chuyue (“Mr. Sun”, as
one of the guarantors), pursuant to which the Lender agreed to provide
to the Borrower a loan amount up to RMB60,000,000 for a term of six
months from 6 December 2021 to 2 June 2022, which carries interest at
an interest rate of 0.39% per month and is secured by the equity pledge
of 60% equity interest in the Borrower provided by Mr. Sun and personal
guarantee provided by Mr. Sun Yong (as guarantor).

The loan as provided under the loan agreement constitutes a financial
assistance provided by the Lender within the meaning of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing
Rules”). The loan also constitutes an advance to an entity under Rule
13.13 of the Listing Rules. For details, please refer to the announcement
of the Company dated 6 December 2021.

*  For identification purposes only
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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PROSPECTS

The Group’s photovoltaic power operation was in good and stable
condition during the Year. However, due to the substantial investment
cost and no tariff subsidy for the establishment of new photovoltaic
power stations, the Group has no investment intention to establish new
photovoltaic power stations in this moment.

In order to increase the returns to our shareholders, the Group strives to
seek and assess other the different projects related to new development
opportunities. The Directors and management will continue to investigate
and build up the professional team to focus on the future projects.

TREASURY POLICY

The Group adopted a prudent financial management approach towards
its treasury policies and thus maintained a healthy liquidity position
throughout the Year. The Group strives to reduce exposure to credit
risk by performing ongoing credit assessments and evaluations of the
financial status of its customers. To manage liquidity risk, the Board
closely monitors the Group’s liquidity position to ensure that the liquidity
structure of the Group's assets, liabilities and other commitments can
meet its funding requirements from time to time.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As at 31 December 2021, the Group did not have any capital
commitments (as at 31 December 2020: Nil).

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited
Annual Report 2021
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

ABOUT THIS REPORT

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited (referred to as the
“Group” or “we") focuses on sales of sub-processing films,
development of residential properties and sale of self-generated
photovoltaic power. The principal facilities are located in the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC").

This report summarises several subjects of the Group’s business
practices for the Environmental, Social and Governance (referred to
as the "ESG") report (referred to as the “Report”) and its relevant
implemented policies and strategies in relation to the Group's
operational practices and environmental protection. For information
regarding corporate governance, please refer to the “Corporate
Governance Report” in this annual report.

The Report covers the period from 1 January 2021 to 31 December
2021 (the “Year” or “2021").

Reporting Framework

The Report has been prepared with reference to the ESG Reporting
Guide set out in Appendix 27 to the Main Board Listing Rules of the
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “SEHK™).

Reporting Scope

The Report content covers the Group’s ESG policies and measures,
and compliance of the major subsidiaries including Jiangsu Sheen
Color Science Technology Co., Ltd. and Xuzhou Shuntai New Energy
Power Generation Co., Ltd. both located in the PRC. Compare to
last year, we have included Xuzhou Shuntai New Energy Power
Generation Co., Ltd in this year owing to the increasing contribution
on the total revenue of the Group. The contents disclosed in the
environmental aspect of this Report mainly covered major business
segments of the Group: sales of sub-processing cigarette films
and generation of photovoltaic power. The business segments
of properties development and cloud-related business are not
included in the environmental aspect of this Report owing to their
non-materiality to the Group. The social aspect of this Report covers
the Group-wide data.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE - HERERRE

Comments and Feedback

We make every effort to ensure consistency between the Chinese
and English versions of this Report. However, in the event of any
inconsistency, the English version shall prevail.

The progress of the Group depends in part on valuable comments
from stakeholders. For any clarifications or advice regarding
the content of this Report, please forward your comments and
suggestions to investorrelations@sheentai.com.

APPROACH TO SUSTAINABILITY

The Board of Directors (the “Board”) of the Group adjusts and
facilities the sustainability performance approaches via regular
meetings with major organisational functions such as compliance
affairs, workplace health and safety, and human resources. The
management conducts regular reviews of ESG-related metric
materials to respective subsidiaries. Furthermore, the Group
identifies and evaluates the materiality of the diverse range of
ESG topics that are interrelated with our business operations (See
next section: Materiality Assessment). The most material ESG
topics which guide the Group’s corporate strategy are validated
by the Board. As we advance our sustainability journey, the Group
endeavours to raise the Board's knowledge and awareness of the
ESG landscape.

Board Statement

The Board has the overall responsibility for the Group’s ESG strategy
and reporting, which include determination and evaluation of the
ESG related risks and opportunity, as well as supervision to ensure
the suitable and effective ESG risk management and internal control
systems are in place.

The Group conducts a top-down approach to cooperate with the
Audit Committee, Management and Internal Audit Function to
conduct ESG-related risk management and opportunities assessment
in an ongoing basis. The Board is responsible for overseeing the
risk management and internal control mechanism to ensure every
strategic plan and vision, as well as operational guidelines for ESG
matters are operating smoothly.

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited
Annual Report 2021
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

The assessment of ESG-related risks includes, but not limited to
environment, human resources, health and safety and compliance.
These risks have been embedded into the risk management
processes including risk identification, risk assessment, risk
treatment, monitoring and review processes. The result of the
overall ESG performance and ESG-related risk assessment will be
reported to the Board on a regular basis for review in order to
ensure that the Group'’s ESG strategy and goals are achieved.

Materiality Assessment

Sustainable development encompasses a holistic spectrum of
environmental and social aspects. It is crucial for the Group to
determine the most material aspects in order to harness the related
risks and opportunities. The Group adopts a three-step process of
identification, prioritisation and validation to ensure sustainability
topics are being managed and reported in accordance with their
materiality.

(1) Identification

In accordance with the ESG Reporting Guide, all fundamental
sustainability topics were identified. In the context of the
latest sustainability landscape, the Group has determined the
following 23 topics that are deemed to have an impact on
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the environment and society through the operations. el

ESG Aspects

B HERERER

A. Environmental
RIR
A1 Emissions

B

A2  Use of Resources

BIRE A

A3 The Environment and Natural Resources

RERRARER

A4 Climate Change
FUREHL

Material ESG issues for the Group
HEKEBEEANRE HBREREE

1. Air emissions
RERHEL

2. Greenhouse gas emissions
= REB L

3. Hazardous waste management
BEBEEDER

4. Non-hazardous waste management
BEEEYER

5. Effluent discharges
TEIRBERR

6. Noise emissions
1 = HER

7. Energy consumption
BEIREFE

8. Water consumption
IKEREFE

9. Packaging material consumption
BEMEERE

10.  Environmental risk management
RIBRERE R

11.  Ecological impacts
H R 2

12.  Climate change
RIEEL
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ESG Aspects | ESG issues for the Group
B  HERERER EANERE  HERELSE
B.  Social
e
B1  Employment 13.  Employment and remuneration policies
1% TR 17 R 3 M R
B2  Health and Safety 14.  Occupational health and workplace safety
HERLZE BEEENTIESMEZE
B3  Development and Training 15.  Employee development and training
TR LEI 1B B R MIE
B4  Labour Standards 16.  Anti-child and forced labour
&5 TR B 1EE T Raglss T
B5  Supply Chain Management 17.  Supply chain management
HEEEIR et
B6  Product and Service Responsibility 18.  Quality and safety of the goods/services
EmK&RBEE En/ REEEREE
19.  Customer satisfaction
BEFmBE
20. Personal data privacy protection
BB MR
21.  Protection of intellectual property rights, ethical marketing
communication and product labelling
HMBERRE - EREHIDREMTH
B7  Anti-corruption 22.  Anti-corruption and anti-competitive practices
k&S RERRRBFITH
B8  Community Investment 23.  Community investment
HERE HERE

(2) Prioritisation

The Group sought the views of senior management of
respective operational regions to determine the materiality
of the selected ESG topics. The senior management, who
possesses a high-level view of all the topics and has access to
stakeholders’ feedback, was asked to score the significance
of each ESG topic to stakeholder groups and the Group in
each of his/her perspective. The topmost-right quadrant
determines the high materiality topics.
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Significance to stakeholders

IR ENEEN

Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE HERERERSE

ESG Materiality Matrix
R e REARERILER

14,18,
T PSS SEAE 4
R R ]
. . L]
K H 16202122 %
’ 1 N2 L]
r ' N\ L
. ] L]
. ] .
: ' ]
H : 17 15 '
' L ]
T ] L]
H ' ]
' ' ]
. ] L]
: : 359 13 '
. ' N N Y
: [ N N 1]
: H 4,6,7,8 HIGH 4
: MATERIALITY §
; : :
H ] 1]
H ' ]
: . A
: [ P
T N N )
H 12 10,11,12 LOW +
H MATERIALITY *
e .
23 NOT
MATERIAL
3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10
Significance to the Group
HASENERM

19

RIS

EEHE

TEE

JERZEREBERAR
2021F 3R

17

7 %

U
N




Environmental, Social and Governance Report
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Highly material topics

BEEENZE
Ranking Number
BA R
Highest 14. Occupational health and workplace safety
BS BERERTIEZMEZE
18. Quality and safety of the goods/services
Emn/RBEERETD
19. Customer satisfaction
BERmER
16. Anti-child and forced labour
By 12 T Ko& %5 T
20. Personal data privacy protection
BB RHR
21. Protection of intellectual property rights, ethical marketing communication and product labeling
HMBEERE - EREHIPREMZE
22. Anti-corruption and anti-competitive practices
REFRRBEFTR
15. Employee development and training
RE3RENE
13. Employment and remuneration policies
IS ERT e
3. Hazardous waste management
BEEENER
5. Effluent discharges
VEVISZ 3
9. Packaging material consumption
BEMELER
17. Supply chain management
HEEER
4. Non-hazardous waste management
BEREEMER
6. Noise emissions
12 = HER
7. Energy consumption
BEIREFE
8. Water consumption
KRB JREFE
10. Environmental risk management
RIBERER
11. Ecological impacts
SRR
Lowest 12. Climate change
RIE RIEEL
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(3) Validation

The Board has reviewed and validated the materiality process,
and hence the Report discloses the Group's performance
on all high and low materiality topics. To address matters
most material to the Group’s stakeholders, topics of high
materiality are discussed in more depth throughout the
Report.

Stakeholder Engagement

The Group believes that identifying and addressing stakeholder
views lay a solid foundation to the long-term growth and
success of the Group. The Group engages with a wide network
of stakeholders, including employees, customers, suppliers,
shareholders, government and community.

Employees
==
c Sheen Tai
usmrg; Holdings
JIE 2= 422 B
Government
B

The Group develops multiple engagement channels that provide
opportunities for stakeholders to express their views on the Group’s
general business conduct and sustainability management. The
engagement channels are summarised in the following table. To
reinforce mutual trust and respect, the Group is committed to
maintaining effective communication channels with stakeholders in
both formal and informal ways. This can enable the Group to better
shape its business strategies in order to respond to their needs and
expectations, anticipate risks and strengthen key relationships.

o/

/

B  HEREREE

() =&

ExetEMTREEENRER - Bt
ARERBEAEBERAESEEN RE
BEMNTE KRR - ROEHREE R
T%E’EK ZE AREHRREZENZ
HETTE A AR AL o

&SR

AEERE  HPREEFNEERT/AE
BHRPERMRNBEEREER - AEHH
EzoBnESR  BREER - EF - HE
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Suppliers
HEs
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Stakeholders Engagement channels

Topics of interest/concern

20

& SHRE BE BYEE
General meetings Business strategies and sustainability
REAE ETEHRBE R AT FE R

Regular corporate publications including

Financial performance

financial reports and ESG report MISEE
LY - BREM GRS RIRE Corporate governance
Shareholders e RERRE EER

B3R

Circulars and announcements
Direct enquiries

BEEH

Corporate website

NGIFGh

Performance appraisals Training and development
REAHA B KR

Training sessions

Employee remuneration and welfare

Employees BRI 1 B 3B KA A
(== Social media Occupational health and safety
HABRE BERERLZE
Equal opportunities
FEigE
Business meetings Service quality and reliability
B BRHSE & M Al 2l
Complaint and feedback channels Client data security
Customers BFERRERE EYSE ¢ o
= Social media Business ethics
AR [EESEL
Corporate website
NSIF R
Business meetings Fair competition
ES IND TS
Suppliers Supplier assessment Business ethics
g R ST
Continuous direct communication
FEEEES
Statutory filings and notification Compliance with law and regulations
EEBRNGEM BICSEA
Government Regulatory or voluntary disclosures Business strategies and sustainability
BT e ok BRI EE HETERBS R AT FE R
Environmental protection
RERE
Community activities Fair employment opportunities
A NEFERE
Corporate donations Environmental protection
Community (=E=l IRIRIRE
& Corporate website
NCIEENE
Social media
A EES
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ENVIRONMENTAL RESPONSIBILITY

Environmental sustainability is a key part of the Group’s social
responsibility effort. Guided by our Corporate Social Responsibility
Policy, we work to manage our direct and indirect impacts to the
environment through mitigating our own footprint and advocating
green finance.

The Group is committed to providing quality products to clients in
a clean and sustainable manner. Our activities typically engage in
the processes of manufacturing and printing films, such as ejection
and stretching, coarse slitting, fine slitting and printing, and
generating photovoltaic power. Environmental impacts of facilities
are managed by the management systems of each respective
subsidiary. The system ensures strict environmental compliances
of various subsidiaries, as well as continual improvement towards
cleaner practices. Periodic system reviews are conducted to ensure
its effectiveness.

Aspect A1: Emissions and waste generated

The Group implements robust systems to ensure all discharges
to air, water and land are compliant with regulatory standards.
The Group has mainly focused on environmental protection and
pollutant emission during production and operation. By establishing
a management system in accordance with the national laws
and regulations, the Group constantly monitors and reviews the
emission performance during production. In 2022, the Group aims
to maintain the similar level of emissions and wastes as compared
to that of this year. The Group will continue to make every effort on
clean production, energy-saving, consumption reduction, pollution
reduction and efficiency improvement, so as to minimise the impact
and safeguard of the ecosystem.

During the Year, the Group did not encounter any incident of
non-compliance with all applicable laws and regulations related
to air emissions, effluent discharges, noise emissions, greenhouse
gases, waste at all operating regions. Major laws and regulations
applicable are detailed in respective sections.

Air emissions

The Group's air emissions are mainly released from the vehicle usage
and production processes, which include the emission of sulphur
oxides (SO,), nitrogen oxides (NO,) and particulate Matter (PM).
Company fleet and machinery undergo regular maintenance to
ensure fuel efficiency, thereby reducing emissions.

B - 4@ RERHE

RIREME

REAHERAEETEEETENEERANK
By ERMVGELSEEHREEET - &
fliE@RL 8 HNREFNEEZESRAS
NEBRBMERFNEEMEEZE -

AEEBBRNANAZFRAFEOTARELIR
HELER - HARED —RPSEREER
ENRIRAZ - PIanss At ~ K940~ oyl %
ENl - AR JEIRBEE - RIEHREZE BN
BARNERGIEERE o ARSI A RSN
BRABRETREENR  UEBENENE
REZFNMOE - A& F R ARER
R o

BHEAT : FRY R FIEEBERY

AEEERAZHE  BERIIAZER - Kkt
BT REEIZE - AEERGEHE TS
EEEEREE FNRITRERSEWHR
B MBRBEFEZLER - 67T —ER
BEBRG  THEIRBSEEBRREPHE
RIA - B2022%F - AEEWEZRRIFEAR
FEMBANERREDKTE - REEEBER
BT - BiARER  RMAERE  RAEER
REEENERESTEBES )  BRkgHE
REFENNTERERE -

RAFER  AREZ2EMREEHERRZR
FARBER I - J57KEER - REHEN - BER
BLEEMEREIRERNES - T2EH
RRERN SRR AL -

BESRBER

AEENERERERXREEMERREES
2 BEBELSO,) - AALMNO,) KR
PIPM)EVHEDE o R B ERR R 25 & T BT TR
& DARBRIARHE AR e s D Hr k) -

JERZEREBERAR
2021F 3R

21

Y/

/



22

Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE - HERERRE

The major applicable laws and regulations related to the control of
air emissions include, but are not limited to, the PRC Law on Air
Pollution Control. In addition to keeping air emission levels meeting
statutory requirements, the Group devoted resources to further
curb the release of air pollutants during the Year.

The Group released 3.4 kg, 0.1 kg and 0.2 kg of Nitrogen Oxides,
Sulphur Oxides, and Particulate Matter in 2021, respectively.

Air emissions

BESRBERR

Nitrogen Oxides (NO,)
A&/ (NOY
Sulphur Oxides (SO,)
A kb (S0,
Particulate Matter (PM)

FERLYI(PM)

Effluent discharges

The major applicable laws and regulations related to control of
effluent discharges include, but are not limited to, the PRC Law on
the Prevention and Treatment of Water Pollution. The waste water
from production processes results in effluent discharges. Each facility
ensures its proper handling, either by qualified subcontractors
or on-site processing prior to discharge to municipal sewers.
Processing records from subcontractors will then be retained by the
Group. Our facilities also generate domestic wastewater that will be
monitored prior to discharge. Periodic monitoring and testing of a
comprehensive list of parameters ensures regulatory compliance and
no adverse environmental impacts of effluent discharges. During
the Year, the effluent discharges has been identified and confirmed
as non-material to the Group’s operations.

Noise emissions

The Group's activities are minor sources of noise emissions, which
include mechanical noise from the use of machinery and equipment,
as well as aerodynamic noise from transportation vehicles. Regular
maintenance of machinery and pre-start up inspections ensure noise
levels are kept within regulatory limits. Operational hours are always
conducted within stipulated time frames as under regulations.
Adherence to strict procedures ensures these hazards are managed
effectively. Regular monitoring of noise emission levels ensures
operations are compliant to regulatory levels. The Group ensures
all equipment used provide stationary required protections for
employees and other affected parties.

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited
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The major applicable laws and regulations related to control of
noise emissions include, but are not limited to, the PRC Law on
Prevention and Control of Environmental Noise Pollution. Noise
assessments are conducted to determine the impact of noise
emissions on the local community.

Greenhouse gas emissions and climate change mitigation

To implement an effective approach to climate change mitigation, it
is important to have a comprehensive understanding of the carbon
emission sources of the Group. The Group’s carbon footprint
is primarily due to electricity usage, accounted under Scope Il
emissions. During the Year, the Group generated a total of 680.2
tonnes of carbon dioxide equivalent (tCO,e) of greenhouse gases
(Scope | and II), resulting in a carbon intensity of 0.03 tCO,e per
square meter gross floor area.

Greenhouse gas emissions
BEREHEN
Scope | (Direct Emissions)
& — (EEHE)
Mobile combustion
mENRIEE
Scope Il (Indirect Emissions)
03 — (FEEE)
Electricity purchased
BE
Total (Scope | and II)
AEH(EE—RZ)
Carbon intensity (Scope | and II)

The sales of self-generated photovoltaic power was the Group’s
major business and revenue source. The solar panels do not emit
any greenhouse gases. In 2021, the Group produced a total of 54.6
million kilowatt-hours (“kWh") of electricity from its photovoltaic
power stations and sold a total of 54.0 million kWh of electricity,
resulting in 1.1% of electricity overproduction. The sole customer
of the Group’s photovoltaic electricity was located in Jiangsu, China
at which the replacement of high-environmental impact electricity
from fossil fuel sources had avoided 32,923.4 tCO,e of greenhouse
gases (Scope lI) released into the environment.

B - 4@ RERHE

ERRSHRIeN I REREZREIREEE
TRIHEARLMBEREZRGE) - 8
Pt EEITR S FHE AR T RS RS A it

./
BRSE

BERBHFBISRIRECRE

AERAINRIEECRER T - AEENE
2T B PEBOOR o NEBRR R E B R
BRE(REEZBERIIE) - RAFEARN - &
EE A EE680.2M — S E 2 (M —SA(Lix
E2)MAERE(HE— kD) MEEAET
TR0 — A kIR E S -

Unit 2021
By 20215

tCO,e 9.4
WE S LI EE
tCO,e 9.4
WE—SLIEE
tCO,e 670.8
WE— S LIRSS
tCO,e 670.8
WE S LI EE
tCO,e 680.2
WE—SLIEE
tCO,e per m? 0.03
gross floor area
TP IARREEE
MRS LIRSS

HEARARBEEAEEANTBELRKA
R o KBS REAR T HEMT R = RES - 122021
FoAEBEAREUBRFABEM6EE TR
B EEES40E8TEE  EHBER1.1% °
REEXKRENNE - NP BTE -
BARBRYERANCARHERE  #BeT
32,9234 —E B 2R AERE(HE )
PERREIRIEF o

JERZEREBERAR
2021F 3R

23

v



24

Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE - HERERRE

The Group is committed to reducing our carbon footprint. Scope
| and Il emissions are addressed through our energy reduction
initiatives (See Aspect A2: Use of resources — energy consumption).
Scope Ill emissions incur throughout our value chain, and we
employ the following measures to minimise such emissions:

° The Group encourages the use of video conferencing or
emails for communication as far as possible to minimise the
carbon footprint from overseas business trips; and

° We make every effort to reduce waste generation and
raise recycling rates to lessen GHG releases from landfill
decomposition.

Other than the existing initiatives, we strive to reduce our
greenhouse gas emissions through the lowering of our energy
consumption from the major areas which include air conditioning
and lighting systems. The Group will continue feature upgrades of
the building facilities and installations and monitor the electricity
usage on a regular basis and follow-up with those exceeding the
normal usage standards.

Hazardous waste management

All collected hazardous waste, mainly waste engine, is transported
and treated by authorised contractors who possess qualifications
to handle hazardous waste. The amount of disposed waste is
checked for consistency with contractor reports to ensure all matter
is entirely disposed in the most appropriate manner. All hazardous
waste is stored at designated storage points that are leak-proof and
rain-proof. At each stage, clear protocols have been established to
ensure all hazardous matters are handled and stored in a safe and
secure manner. Any incidents of spillage or leakage will be handled
under proper procedures and be documented.

The major applicable laws and regulations related to the control
of hazardous waste include, but are not limited to, the PRC Law
on Prevention and Control of Environmental Pollution from Solid
Wastes. To embody sustainable development principles, we aim
to explore opportunities to replace raw materials, equipment and
production techniques that are highly hazardous to the environment
with less hazardous alternatives. We sort our hazardous waste to
ensure those recyclables are recycled, such as toner cartridges that
are returned to suppliers for recycling. Furthermore, we prioritise
waste recycling to minimise hazardous waste generation. For
instance, we perform the measures of self-repair or send to the
manufactures for recycling the damaged solar panels and electronic
components before discarding.

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited
Annual Report 2021

REBBR AW BE - FAPIARTBESE HEIE Y
HE—-L_NFR(RIE®EA2 - BRER 5
FOBRE ] —H) - SE =S ERMNERE
EBEETFEL  RACKRBRATEREERD
BRI :

o AEEBEEFERREEAXNETEHE
B AR EINEISIRTTROBR RS ¢

.« RITERMEALERNELRRSER
BAE - AL RESRIENHEZE
o

BTREREREI  RATE N BBREEER
S (B3 M IREA 2450 M BB R AR AR
EREBHN - AEERBEEHBFTREREE
ETHRAS  YEMERAEE  REB
IEREAKFOBER

BEERYER

PECKRENEETRERZN (T ERBEREHK)
DHEARESEEVREERNEEARKE
BREIE NEBYEERNBEEYHEET
BE - UREREHABENRE I BIR
EBREMHUREEN T AGEEE - M
BB EREEYMARFEN RN RNIEEFR
B EEERERE G ERENRE - BRAE
BEWENZ 2 EEMFHE - EEH
FORREFHRBARIFEE RIZEIEW AR

ERBEEERYMIAN I EERONERIER
BRERETRACTHEARMEE YRR
Bhak) - REREAREERRRA - RMABAH
SEHEEAETRINERER  BRYR
BREZRAMRME  REREERN - B
RAEEEYHE  EHREEMEE - flamie
ARERBANESRXEMHER - 1o - BFE
EZEEORERY  URERIEEEEEE
o Blin - EERBIROKFGEER R EFEMS
Al RIS RIMEITHENERE - AR EE
PEITEY -



Environmental, Social and Governance Report

During the Year, the Group’s hazardous waste consisted of waste
printer cartridges which did not have a material impact on the
operation.

Non-hazardous waste management

The typical non-hazardous waste generated by the Group's facilities
includes plastic and food waste. The majority of waste is recycled
by qualified contractors. We place a greater emphasis on waste
reduction, as it creates the least amount if environmental impacts.

The major applicable laws and regulations related to the control
of non-hazardous waste include, but are not limited to, the PRC
Law on Prevention and Control of Environmental Pollution from
Solid Wastes. Seeking to contribute to the closed-loop economy,
we employ the following measures and initiatives to reduce the
generation of non-hazardous waste, and raise recycling rates and
will continue to review the effectiveness of the existing initiatives on
a regular basis:

° We organise and maintain waste separation systems and
recycling bins for collecting materials;

° We encourage smart printing modes in the workplace;

° We collect used paper and toner cartridges for recycling; and

° We monitor and evaluate the use of material to avoid
overstock, as well as strengthen production inspection all
through production processes to reduce and avoid rework.

During the Year, the Group generated a total of 739.6 kg of non-

hazardous waste, resulting in a non-hazardous waste intensity of

0.03 kg per square meter gross floor area.

Non-hazardous waste

BEBEZRY

Incineration

e

Total non-hazardous waste generated
PIEABEERENESE
Non-hazardous waste intensity
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Aspect A2: Use of resources

The Group is committed to continually monitoring and improving
resource efficiency as an integral part of business strategy and
operating methods, as well as complying with relevant government
policies and environmental legislations. We will continue to review
the effectiveness of the existing initiatives and set achievable targets
in future years. During the Year, the Group did not encounter any
incident of non-compliance with all applicable laws and regulations
related to the use of energy and water resources at all operating
regions. Major applicable laws and regulations are detailed in
respective sections.

Energy

The Group’s energy profile mainly consists of the use of electricity
for facility operations. Fuel used for electricity is the major source
of energy emission in our operations, amounted to 4,074.2 GJ in
2021. During the Year, the Group consumed (194,154.1) GJ and
3,958.0 GJ of direct and indirect energy respectively, resulting a
total energy intensity of (8.92) GJ per square meter gross floor area.

Energy consumption

BEIRE

Petrol (gasoline)

KoM (ERH)

Less: electricity sold

W HERE

Electricity purchased
fBE

Total (Direct and Indirect)
arH(E#EKEE)
Energy intensity
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The major applicable laws and regulations related to energy
use include, but are not limited to, the PRC Law on Energy
Conservation. The Group is committed to minimising fuel and
electricity consumption through the following initiatives and will
continue to review the effectiveness of the existing initiatives on a
regular basis.

° We have installed energy-efficient LED lighting and cooling
systems in production areas;

o We have replaced computer equipment, servers, and
monitors with energy-efficient models;

° We have adopted minimise energy usage through the
utilisation of power-saving modes of any devices for office use;

o We regularly clean the air filter of the air-conditioners to
improve the cool air flow efficiency; and

° We have taken necessary actions in compliance with the
Building Energy Efficiency Ordainance enacted by the
Government of HKSAR in planning, design and construction
of property development.

Water resources

Production processes as well as general amenities make use of
water. At the Group, our facilities withdraw water mainly from
municipal supplies. We have not encountered any issues in sourcing
water that is fit for purpose. However, water resources should not
be taken for granted and conserved to ensure a sustainable future.

The major applicable laws and regulations related to water use
include, but are not limited to, the Water Law of PRC. In order to
reduce wastewater, the Group practices the following initiatives
to curtail our water consumption currently and continue to review
the effectiveness of existing initiatives and set achievable targets in
future years.

o We regularly check piping and taps for leakages and damage,
and ensure their prompt repair;
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° We monitor water readings at regular intervals when no
water is being used to ensure against hidden water leakages;

° We give priority to effective water-saving products, such
as the adoption of low or dual flush toilets, and low-flow
faucets or water outlets;

° We raise staff awareness in water saving in production and
office operations through education and promotion;

. We will take the Water Efficiency Labelling Scheme (WELS)
implemented by Water Supplies Department into account
during selection of plumbing fixtures and water-consuming
devices; and

° The Group selects the plumbing fixtures and water-
consuming devices with Water Efficiency Grade 1 or 2 as far as
practicable.

During the Year, the Group consumed a total of 17,179 cubic
metre of water, resulting in a water intensity of 0.81 cubic metre
per square meter gross floor area.

Water consumption

KEIRH#E
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Packaging material

Finished products at the Group uses packaging material that include
paperboard, paper tube, packing tape and wrapping film. The
Group aims to consider more sustainable approaches to product
packaging early in the design phase. During the Year, a total of
8,463.0 kg of packaging material was consumed for finished
products, resulting in an intensity of 0.94 kg per square meter gross
floor area.

Packaging material consumption

BEMEERE
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Total packaging consumption
BEMEERES
Packaging consumption intensity

BEMIDEREE

Aspect A3: The environment and natural
resources

The Group strives to build an eco-conscious culture that ingrains
positive lifestyles and habits among employees. For corporate social
activities and other events, low-carbon dietary choices and products
from social enterprises are prioritised. Waste reduction plans are
rolled out for large-scale events.

Aspect A4: Climate change

The Group understands the importance of climate change which
leads to extreme weather followed by many challenges to water
resources, emission regulations and energy development. As a
responsible corporate citizen, we consistently identify and analyse
the environmental sustainability development strategies in respect
of emission control (Aspect A1: Emissions and waste generated),
energy use efficiency and water efficiency (Aspect A2: Use of
resources) across our operations.

Recently, the development of renewable energy industry has been
encouraged worldwide as the renewable energy could help reduce
the adverse impacts of climate change. However, the changing
climate also changes the cloud patterns and air temperature
that impact the photovoltaic electricity generation of the Group,
resulting in annual fluctuation of photovoltaic resources. In order
to minimise the impact of climate change, the Group carries
out comprehensive photovoltaic resource tests to obtain the
photovoltaic installed capacity data in prior to the development
and construction work. The maintenance and repair work of the
photovoltaic facilities are also undertaken on a regular basis.

kg 8,463.0
A
kg per m? 0.94
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A

BHA3 : BERAXAER

AEEBOBRERREX  HREEKR
AR AMEBE - IREEL SRS RE
EBELERLECENERRMRER
BRBEEIHET TR T B -

[EHEA4 : RIzE1L

AEERAEREZ2ENERY  RirELeE
BiRm AR - BEZ MREZEEIKEIR - BERAR
ERERMENEZ IR - (ERBEENEE
RRE - HAREM— BRI RO RAEED
PEpE I (BEAT - R M PRELREREY) -
BERIE R M Ak (EHA2 - ERER)
TTE VIR A R A R IR o

M - AIBARRITENBRESHRZ I
B - BARTBERRENRESRIEZEHT
T E - Rif - RIREC TR E T E-FT AR
R FEREBREE - BEOLRERA
RERKE - REERSRIEELHTE - K
SEAEMEMEETIEFMET2EARER
AR - EEUCREMEUER - I B EHIETTER
R B A S S T A o

JERZEREBERAR
2021F 3R

29

Y,



"4

30

Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RE - HEREARS

SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

The Group ingrains social responsibility into all aspects of its
operations. Maintaining honest and authentic dialogue with staff,
the Group seeks to address their needs and views that ensure our
conduct is responsible at all times. We commit to offer a fair and
safe workplace with staff development opportunities. Furthermore,
the Group commits to delivering high quality products grounded on
ethical business conduct and supply chain management, as well as
to engage meaningfully in the community.

Aspect B1: Employment

The Group employed 67 employees, of which 46 and 21 are male
and female staff respectively as at the end of the Year. The Group
employed 56 and 11 full-time and part-time staffs respectively,
with the majority of staff in the age range of 31-60. In terms of the
workforce by region, around 26 and 24 of the Group’s employees
were located in Huaian and Xuzhou respectively, with the remaining
staff located in other regions of the PRC and Hong Kong. The detail
of workforce by age group and region is presented at below charts.

Workforce by gender in 2021
RIERIEI 2021 FEEHE

m Male 2%

B Female %

Iv. HE25EF
AEBEBHEEIRARCLMESESE - &
EEEE TRISERYE  BROEREENE
KRER - BRERFANTEBEEET - RIF

BAOREQAFLZE2NTIERE  RE LTRSS
BHEE - 1IN AREAEENAHEBER
HEREEER LRHEEER - WHESHT
B B o

BEB1 : EfE

MAREERAEEREIRREE  HPBEHK
ZHED BB AK21A - AEEDFIF56%E &
MEZEBNFRET AP EBITFHEANE
605% ° LRI R EI D EERE - AEBEL264H
K24%RE D AN BEER RIRM - HARTEPE
Hibihe RES o RF iR it 285D rE
BRHFBEZYNTEE -

Workforce by age group in 2021
RFRARED2021FREEE

Under or 30
30 EA T
31-40
31 E405%
41-50

415 E505%
51-60
512605
Above 60
605 A £

Workforce by region in 2021
BB D2021F EEEH

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited
Annual Report 2021

B Xuzhou M

B Huaian %X

B Shenzhen J&3|
MW Hong Kong &8



Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Based on the principles of fairness and equality, the Group’s human
resources policies adhere to relevant labour laws, regulations and
industry practices, covering areas such as compensation, dismissal,
promotion, working hours, recruitment, rest periods, diversity and
other benefits and welfare. During the Year, the Group did not
encounter any incidents of non-compliance with all major applicable
laws and regulations related to employment at all operating regions.
Major laws and regulations applicable include, but are not limited
to the Labour Law of the PRC.

Remuneration and welfare

Employees of the Group are remunerated at a competitive level and
are rewarded according to their performance and experience. The
Group's human resources policies outline the terms and conditions
of employment, expectations for employees’ conduct and
behaviours, and employees’ rights and benefits. The remuneration
package of employees may include incentive schemes, discretionary
bonuses and/or over-time payments, in addition to salaries. Any
applicable restrictions on wage deduction are stated transparently
in the human resources policies. The promotion and remuneration
of the Group’s employees are subject to periodic review.

Recruitment and promotion

The human resources department of respective subsidiary conducts
a comprehensive recruitment review process based on pre-
determined job function requirements. The Group’s recruitment
and promotion process are carried out in a fair and open manner
for all employees; employees are recognised and rewarded by
their contribution, work performance and skills, and outcomes will
not be affected by any discrimination on the grounds of age, sex,
marital status, family status, race, disability, nationality, religion,
political affiliation and sexual orientation and other factors. In
the case of dismissal, adherence to the Group’s human resources
policies ensures the entire procedure is compliant with statutory
requirements.
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Anti-discrimination and diversity

We embrace inclusive employment that builds a respectful
workplace. The Group is an equal opportunity employer and does
not discriminate on the basis of age, sex, marital status, family
status, race, disability, nationality, religion, political affiliation and
sexual orientation. Personnel staff, line manager and all other
employees who may be involved in staff recruitment receive training
in non-discriminatory practices. We promote a harmonious and
respectful workplace for all. With the aim to ensure fair and equal
protection for all employees, the Group has zero-tolerance for
sexual harassment or other forms of abuse in the workplace in any
form, which is a violation of the labour laws.

Employee communications

The Group’s policies and procedures included in staff handbooks
are reviewed and updated regularly. The Group discourages
and disallows any behaviour that violates the regulations in staff
handbooks. Offenders will receive a warning, and the Group has
the right to terminate the employment contract with offenders
for any serious violations. The Group’s staff grievance mechanism
provides confidential channels by which staff may report suspected
cases of rights infringement, which are then handled according to
formal procedures.

Work-life balance

We seek to cultivate a culture of healthy work-life balance. The
working hours management policy ensures no excessive working
hours. The Group, subject to the human resources policies of
respective subsidiary, assists staff to balance commitments outside
of work. Regular reviews are held to refine and improve work-
life balance arrangements. To encourage social bonding in the
workplace, the Group arranged recreational events during the
Year, such as staff leisure activities that promoted cohesive bonding
among employees.
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During the Year, the Group’s employee turnover rate was 25%. RAFEEA  AEBESRAER25% © T&
The table below presents the turnover rate by gender, age and SRR - FREMREDOESRKE

geographical region.

Turnover rate Unit 2021
A= B 20215
Group % 25
rEH
By Gender
=Rl
Male % 33
S
Female % 10
i
By Age
RE
Under or 30 % 60
30BR AT
31-40 % 32
3124057
41-50 % 18
41ZE505%
51-60 % 10
51%605%
By Region
Rt &=
Xuzhou % 33
RN
Huaian % 27
KL
Hong Kong % 15
BE
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Aspect B2: Workplace health and safety

The Group is committed to creating and maintaining a workplace
that minimises safety risk and maximises the health and welfare
of our employees. It is of paramount importance to ensure a safe
and healthy workplace for our employees. The Group's “Guidelines
on Occupational Safety and Health” was established to inform
employees of potential health and safety hazards in the workplace,
and the corresponding preventative measures. During the Year,
the Group did not encounter any incident of non-compliance with
all applicable laws and regulations related to occupational health
and safety at all operating regions. Major applicable laws and
regulations include, but are not limited to, the PRC Law on Work
Safety.

The Group spares no effort to safeguard the safety of our
employees and the workplace. We adopt the best practices through
the following safety policies and procedures.

° All safety management system responsibilities and
accountabilities are identified and allocated. We conduct
safety risk assessments that identify and control work hazards
within the prescribed hierarchy of control, and residual risk
evaluation within the guidelines. We take a prevention-
orientation approach where on-site inspections are
conducted frequently to rectify any non-conformances before
further complications. We will also establish the rectification
measures according to safety inspection results;

o We implement transparent mechanisms for reporting hazards,
injuries, illnesses and close calls. It is ensured all accidents
are investigated and reviewed. Working with line managers,
corrective actions that address root causes are drawn up. Any
non-compliance to safety rules and regulations, negligence of
duties and irresponsibility are to be held responsible;

o We have systematic claims management mechanisms
for personnel injured at work. In the unfortunate event
of an incident, we place great importance on a healthy
rehabilitation process. We assist a smooth rehabilitation
process whereby the well-being and self-esteem of the
individual are promoted;
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o We ensure that persons performing tasks are competent
and training attendance records are well documented. All
new employees undergo general safety orientations. Sign-
in procedures are implemented for contractors and visitors
to ensure their safety. All subcontracted work, such as
construction work, is to be performed with equally stringent
safety standards. Prior to work commencement, we request
the safety risk assessment reports and monitor the situations
at regular intervals; and

. The Coronavirus Disease 2019 (“COVID-19") pandemic
has still posed unprecedented challenges to individuals and
businesses around the world. The health of employees is
our utmost priority during the out-break of the COVID-19.
We adopted special work managements such as work-from-
home policies and flexible working hours, so that our staff
can act against pandemic under flexible commuting plans.
Furthermore, we stopped employees’ travel plans to reduce
the chances of transmission.

The Group had consecutively attained a zero rate of work-
related fatalities in the past three years. If any case occurred, the
cases would be handled according to internal accident handling
procedures and reported to the relevant authority in compliance
with the law. The filed cases will be used as training materials to
assist employees to prevent reoccurrence.
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Aspect B3: Development and training

People are our greatest assets. We tailor the macro-level
development of our human capital to the Group’s corporate
strategy. At respective subsidiaries, the Group develops yearly
training plans that comply with relevant statutory requirements and
cater to the needs of our staff. During annual appraisal sessions,
in-depth consultations ensure micro-level training needs are
identified. Internal training programmes provided by the Group
include induction training, on-the-job training, mentoring schemes,
and cross-departmental training. To further promote continuous
development, staff is entitled to educational leaves to attend
external programmes, such as external public trainings, lectures
and seminars. The Group provides tuition reimbursement for
eligible staff to engage in programmes that enrich job knowledge.
During the Year, the Group did not encounter any incident of non-
compliance with statutory requirements related to staff training and
development at all operating regions.

For COVID-19 precaution, we provide protective and disinfection
products such as face masks, face shield, alcohol-based hand
sanitisers, hand soaps and gloves at the workplace, and require
employees to wear masks at all time at the workplace. Apart from
that, we required employees to check body temperature before
reporting for duty and after lunch every day. We practice safe
distancing to avoid close contact at work place.

During the Year, a total number of 62 employees attended training
hours, of which 71% and 29% were male and female respectively.
In terms of employee category, 16%, 18% and 66% of employees
trained were of technician, administration management and
ordinary employee respectively.
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During the Year, the Group has provided a total of 680 training
hours for staff, which average to 12 and 8 hours per male and
female staff respectively. In term of employment category, an
average of 22, 8 and 8 training hours per staff were received by
technician, administration management and ordinary employee
respectively.
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Aspect B4: Labour Standards

The Group has established and implemented anti-child and forced
labour policies that meet the highest legal and ethical standards.
We do not engage in or condone the unlawful employment or
exploitation of children in the workplace or the use of forced
labour. Staff handbooks contain clear policies relating to relevant
labour laws, regulations and industry practices, covering areas such
as compensation, dismissal, promotion, working hours, recruitment,
rest periods, diversity as well as other benefits and welfare.
Employment contracts stipulate terms and conditions in adherence
to statutory regulations, and are available in multiple languages as
necessary. The rights and freedoms of every individual are protected
as no worker is asked for surrender identification documents nor
lodge fees or deposits as a condition of employment. Cases of child
labour in our businesses are averted by conducting age verification
of all job applicants. Any employee that suspects a breach of the
policy should submit reports through grievance mechanisms of
respective subsidiaries.

During the Year, the Group did not encounter any incident of non-
compliance with all applicable laws and regulations related to anti-
child and anti-forced labour practices at all operating regions. Major
applicable laws and regulations include, but are not limited to, the
Labour Law of the PRC.
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Aspect B5: Supply chain management

Leveraging on our status as a major industry player, we recognise
the multiplied impact through engaging our suppliers. The Group
is committed to developing and maintaining effective and mutually
beneficial working relationships with our business partners.
During the Year, we have partnered with a total of 22 suppliers
and subcontractors, mainly from Mainland China. Sub-contracted
work includes binding and types of hand-work at some operating
regions.

The supplier code of conduct of respective subsidiaries requires
full compliance with all applicable local and national laws. They
must ensure all operations are environmentally-responsible,
uphold human rights and business ethics. All engaged suppliers
and subcontractors are required to submit statements declaring
conformity to the respective code of conduct. Self-assessment
questionnaires and/or internal audits are used to evaluate supply
chains. To promote accountability, some supplier premises are
provided with confidential communication channels to report actual
or suspected breaches of the code of conduct. In order to reduce
the risk associated with the supply chain from service and products
quality provided by suppliers, we evaluate existing suppliers on a
regular basis and terminate the supply relationship with those found
to be in serious non-compliance or whose quality fails to meet the
requirements.

In addition to engaging suppliers, sustainable procurement is
another avenue to mitigate the impact of supply chain activities.
We collaborate with key suppliers in support of environmentally-
responsible procurement. New supplier is selected according to our
selection criteria to maintain the Group's sustainable development.
During the Year, we prioritise the procurement of office equipment
with energy-saving features, replaceable parts that are supported
by supplier-provided recycling schemes. Also, we will continue
to convey our expectation to our suppliers and assess their
performance in term of our sustainability vision as well as encourage
them to prioritise the adoption of environmentally friendly products.

We avoided any unnecessary face-to-face communications.
Furthermore, we checked temperature of individuals upon arrival
and required them to put on face masks. We provided protective
and disinfection products such as alcohol-based hand sanitisers to
customers at our offices.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Aspect B6: Product responsibility

The Group offers quality products and services grounded on
responsible operating practices. We commit to meeting customer
needs through innovation and sound business ethics.

Product quality and safety

Displaying ability, professionalism and reliability in everything we
do, we offer products and services with added value. During the
Year, the Group did not encounter any incident of non-compliance
with all applicable laws and regulations related to product/service
quality and safety at all operating regions. Major applicable laws
and regulations include, but are not limited to, the Product Quality
Act of PRC.

With a customer-focused and evidence-based approach, the
Group strives for continual improvement to product quality. The
Group’s management system is implemented through performing
quality assurance to examine the product’s quality against required
parameters at every stage of the production process. Input raw
materials are tested against customers’ technical specifications.
Finished products undergo inspections prior to packaging and
delivery to clients. Each department is tasked with achieving their
own quality based targets in consideration of both the industry and
market standards.

The Group also implements a source-to-end inspection framework
from material procurement and sourcing process to finished
product and storage. Any quality defect material or product will be
suspended from production line in order to prevent potential risks
and protect interests of clients and the Group.

We are responsible to ensure the quality of power stations
throughout their life cycle. We have established internal quality
control policies to strengthen the maintenance and management
of the power grid. For example, we have implemented measures
to detect, track and handle equipment defects on time, which can
also accelerate the repair and maintenance process. The measures
can further prevent the significant impacts on the quality of power
generation and ensure a stable operation of the power plants. We
have also increased the frequency of conducting the inspection to
minimise the potential risk of equipment, ensure the safe operation
of equipment and enhance the reliability of power operation.
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Ethical operating practices

The Group places great value in conducting all aspects of our
businesses with integrity and honest values. From the protection
of data privacy and intellectual property to ethical marketing
communication, our robust management approaches ensure even
the most trivial aspects are not overlooked. During the Year, the
Group did not encountered any incident of non-compliance with
all applicable laws and regulations related to the protection of
data privacy and intellectual property to the ethical marketing
communication at all operating regions. Major applicable laws and
regulations include, but are not limited to, the Criminal and Civil
law of PRC.

Information security safeguarding

The Group is committed to protecting the privacy and confidentiality
of personal data collected. The Group has established clear
protocols on handling personal data recorded from our customers
and employees. We collect data only in a lawful and fair way, for
directly related purposes of which the data subject is clearly notified.
Adhering to protocol requirements, we ensure the data is accurate
and not kept longer than necessary. Personal data inventories are
secured to prevent any unauthorised or accidental access, such as
firewalls and physical protection.

The Group has established the privacy policy on handling personal
data recorded from our customers, staff, as well as end-users of our
online services. The Group secures the personal information from
unauthorised access, use or disclosure. Recognising the materiality
of security risks, the Group evaluates security risks related to the use
of information technology.

Advertising and product labelling

Responsible marketing practices are crucial to gaining customer trust
and confidence. All sales promotions should be dealt with a fair and
honourable manner. The sales manager or equivalent of respective
subsidiaries ensures all public sales and marketing information are
reviewed and approved of its trueness and completeness. Any forms
of promotions must not contain any misleading information and
need to be designed to meet reasonable consumer expectations. All
product labelling is an accurate representation of the sourcing and
content of products.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Aspect B7: Anti-corruption

The Group is committed to achieving and maintaining the
highest standards of openness, probity and accountability. We
adopt the lowest level of acceptance for corruption risks and we
build a culture of zero tolerance to any related practices. Anti-
corruption code of conducts at respective subsidiaries stipulates
our management approach towards anti-corruption compliance.
During the Year, the Group did not encounter any incident of non-
compliance with all applicable laws and regulations at all operating
regions. Major laws and regulations applicable include, but are not
limited to, the Criminal Law of the PRC.

The code of conducts applies to all employees of the Group, and
must be complied at all times. The Group prohibits the provision or
receipt of gifts and/or entertainment that could be considered of
material value. Senior management is also clearly provided guidance
on what constitutes abuse of office, such as regarding the misuse
of company’s assets for personal interest. With regard to conflict
of interests, the fundamental rule is to avoid any conflict of interest
as far as practicable. In the event of an inevitable case, the conflict
of interest is required to be declared so that appropriate resolution
actions can be taken. The Group will provide employees of all levels
with anti-corruption trainings in order to enhance the awareness of
anti-corruption.

The development of robust internal controls is the key to our
management approach. Any offering and acceptance of gifts or
advantages are recorded and handled via a transparent mechanism.
Each subsidiary company has a form of whistle-blowing channel
where any suspected cases of misconduct or failure to act are
reported and handled.

The Group promotes fair and open competition through code of
conducts on combating anti-competitive practices. We prohibit
cartels, and any activities of trade associations and industry bodies
which prevent, restrict or distort competition. No discussion or
agreement is carried out on matters related to pricing, production
volume and tenders with competitors. The Group recognises
that adherence to the principles of competition is essential to the
development of long-term relationships with our stakeholders on
mutual trust.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE - HERERRE

Aspect B8: Community investment

The Group is committed to operating as a responsible corporate
and continually supporting the economic and social vitality of
local communities through corporate sponsorships and charitable
donations. Furthermore, the Group sees high literacy as a
foundation for the advancement of society. The Group believes
public welfare is important and necessary for the development
of the Group. We always seek to be a positive force in the
communities in which it operates.

We believe that the development of a better future for our
community relies on joint participation of people, corporations
and the government. In addition, the Group also encourages
all employees to actively participate in volunteer activities and
environmental protection activities. We hope it can raise their
concern for environment and society, and thus inspiring more
people to participate in community services and develop a better
future for our community.
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Management

Mr. Guo Yumin, aged 60, is the founder and chairman of the Company.
Mr. Guo was appointed as an executive Director on 22 June 2012.
Mr. Guo is responsible for the overall management and formulation of
business strategy of the Group. Mr. Guo graduated from the distant-
learning college of the School of the Central Committee of Communist
Party of China in 1988, majoring in economic management. Since
1998, Mr. Guo has been engaging in cigarette packaging business
and established a strong business tie with the senior members of some
cigarette manufacturers. He brings extensive business and management
experience in commercial business to our management team. In 2005,
Mr. Guo established Guangdong Province Jiangsu Chamber of Commerce
and he had been the chairperson for six consecutive years. In 2010, Mr.
Guo established Shenzhen Xuzhou Chamber of Commerce and has been
its legal representative since then. Mr. Guo is the spouse of Ms. Xia Yu, an
executive Director.

Ms. Xia Yu, aged 51, was appointed as an executive Director on 22 June
2012. She is responsible for general management of the Group. Ms.
Xia studied financial accounting (distant-learning) in Jiangsu Commerce
College (which was combined with other colleges to form Yangzhou
University) and graduated in June 1992. Ms. Xia has more than 20
years of experience in the cigarette-related business, as well as business
management and financial management in cigarette packaging business.
Ms. Xia is the spouse of Mr. Guo Yumin, an executive Director and a
controlling shareholder of the Company.

Ms. Fan Qing, aged 67, was appointed as an independent non-executive
Director on 22 June 2012. Ms. Fan has extensive experience in business
management and in-depth knowledge in the financial investment in both
the PRC and Hong Kong. Ms. Fan received a master’s degree in business
administration from the Graduate School of Renmin University of China in
2000. She obtained a certificate issued by the Shenzhen Stock Exchange
after completing a training course for the senior management member of
a listed company in the PRC. She had been serving as the vice-president
of Shenzhen Capital Group Co. Ltd. for nine years. Ms. Fan is currently
the chairman of the board of directors of an investment management
company in Shenzhen and the independent director of Shenzhen Terca
Technology Co., Ltd. (stock code: SZ002213), a company whose shares
are listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange.
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Management
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Mr. Dai Tin Yau, aged 38, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director on 29 May 2020. Mr. Dai graduated from University
of South Australia with a bachelor’s degree in accountancy in May 2009
and graduated from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University with a master’s
degree in professional accounting in March 2016. He is currently a
certified public accountant of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Mr. Dai worked in P. K. Wong & Co. from May 2004 to
March 2008 and his last position was audit semi-senior. Mr. Dai then
worked in Y. F. Pang & Co. from December 2008 to July 2011 where he
last served as an assistant manager in the assurance department, and in
RSM Nelson Wheeler from November 2011 to April 2013 as a senior in
the audit and assurance services department. Since May 2014, Mr. Dai has
taken the position as an audit senior in Arken Consulting Limited. After
leaving Arken Consulting Limited in June 2015, Mr. Dai co-founded Prism
CPA Limited in December 2015 and served as a director since then.

Mr. Chan Yin Lam, aged 41, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 29 May 2020. Mr. Chan graduated from
City University of Hong Kong with a bachelor’s degree in business
administration (majoring in accountancy and management information
systems) in July 2002 and graduated from the Hong Kong University
of Science and Technology with a master’s degree in business
administration in November 2010. He is currently a Chartered Financial
analyst charter holder and a member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants. Mr. Chan was an associate and subsequently
promoted to the senior associate position during his employment in
PricewaterhouseCoopers Ltd. from September 2002 to May 2006. Mr.
Chan worked in Somerley Limited from June 2006 to December 2009,
and he last served as a senior manager responsible for equity capital
market issues and financial advisory assignments. He then worked in
Haitong International Securities Group of Companies from May 2010 to
June 2013, and his last position was senior vice president in the corporate
finance department. Mr. Chan joined China Merchants Securities (HK)
Co., Limited from July 2013 and his last position prior to his departure
in February 2018 was executive director in financial institutions team of
corporate finance and capital markets division. Since March 2018, Mr.
Chan has taken the position as managing director and head of corporate
finance of investment banking department in Fosun Hani Securities
Limited (“Fosun Hani"), and currently he is also the co-Head of Investment
Banking Department and responsible officer of Fosun Hani to carry on
type 6 (advising on corporate finance) regulated activity under the SFO.
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Management

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Dong Zhenghua, aged 66, graduated from a self-taught course in
Chinese literature from Nanjing Normal University in 1986, and obtained
the qualification certification as an economist in 1993. Mr. Dong passed
the uniform examination organised by the Chinese government authorities
and obtained the qualifications for enterprise legal adviser in 2003. Mr.
Dong possesses extensive experience in advising and handling corporate-
related legal matters. Before joining the Group, Mr. Dong graduated
from a 2-year course in laws jointly organised by the China University of
Political Science and Law and the Open University of China and obtained
the qualification of intermediate professional manager as approved by the
Jiangsu Province Enterprise Professional Manager Training & Certification
Committee. Mr. Dong is currently the in-house legal advisor of the
Company and is responsible for advising on legal matters of the Group.

Besides the senior management mentioned above, various business
of the Group are respectively under the direct responsibility of the
executive Directors as named previously, who are also regarded as senior
management of the Group.
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Corporate Governance Report
S 'M\Aﬁﬂ:

The Directors recognise the importance of incorporating elements of
good corporate governance in the management structures and internal
control procedures of the Group so as to achieve effective accountability.
The Directors continuously abide by the principles of good corporate
governance in the interests of shareholders and devote considerable effort
to identifying and formalizing best practice.

The Group's corporate governance practices for the Year are based on the
principles and the code provisions in the Corporate Governance Code (the
“Code") version up to 31 December 2021 as set out in Appendix 14 to
the Listing Rules.

The Board considered that the Company had complied with the code
provisions of the Code during the Year except for the deviations from
code provision A.2.1 (which has been re-numbered as code provision C.2.1
since 1 January 2022), of the Code as stated below.

Under code provision C.2.1 of the Code, the roles of chairman and chief
executive should be separate and should not be performed by the same
individual. During the Year, there was no chief executive in the Company,
details of the deviation are set out in the section headed “Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer”.

The key corporate governance practices of the Group are summarised as
follows:

RE-ELECTION AND CHANGE OF THE DIRECTORS

Pursuant to article 108(a) of the articles of association of the Company (the
“Articles”), at each annual general meeting, one-third of the Directors for
the time being shall retire from office by rotation.

In accordance with article 112 of the Articles, any Director appointed by
the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office until the first general
meeting after his/her appointment and any Director appointed by the
Board as an additional Director shall hold office only until the next
following annual general meeting of the Company.

Pursuant to article 108(a) of the Articles, Ms. Xia Yu (“Ms. Xia") and Mr.
Dai Tin Yau (“Mr. Dai”) will retire as Directors at the forthcoming annual
general meeting (the “AGM"). Ms. Xia and Mr. Dai, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election as Directors at the AGM.

Ms. Xia, being an executive Director, has entered into a service contract
with the Company for a term of three years commencing from 13 July
2021 and may be terminated by either party by giving not less than three
months’ prior written notice.

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited
Annual Report 2021

EERHAERENMNE  EASEEEER LA
THIEF LS ERITCEETATTEMEE T - FF—
BETHERRMN MR EEERER] - BAHIET
WEERETR -

FRAEENGEERTHRBE EWRAMER14FT
HEZ2021F12 A3 1 ANRANCEE R E R TR
([=FRI D) B2ERI K SFRIME SRR ©

BEEERAE  ARAIRAFEEHFETRIMSTANE
X MfEREE ST R ST RME B A2 11 (H20229F1 A1
BREFREFATENE C.2.1) (LT )BRI -

RIET R TR EC 2116 TRRATRERES
BIR G F— ALIRIT - WAERR - AARLE
TR - ARIREE YRR BT R e —
# -

AEEEELEEREROBBMT :
EEEERER

REAR ABRHERMAI(TFRMEA ) H108@) 6 -
RERRFAFASGL  BB=5—EFARRE

o

RBSRAAE V25 CARESSZIIVERR
RERZEEHIBREHRZERZERABRRAE R
b MEREERERTERAMEEST  EFHER
BEARB T EBRBFRG R/

RIEERMAFE 080K BERLT(TELXT ) RE
AafE(BEE D BREERRBFE RS ([RRA
FREDLREIEF - ERLREELENAERALRA
BRERBFRE LEREFTES -

BELT(ARTESR)BARGEIVLRESY B
2021 F7A13ERYIZAH=F - ER— H A& HE
DE=EAEREmMBAT UKL -



Mr. Dai, being an independent non-executive Director, has entered into
a service contract with the Company for a term of 2 years commencing
from 29 May 2020 and may be terminated by either party by giving at
least three months’ written notice.

No Director proposed for re-election at the AGM has a service contract
with the Company which is not determinable by the Company within
one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

MODEL CODE FOR DIRECTORS" SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules
(the “Model Code") as the required standard for securities transactions by
Directors. The Company has made specific enquiries of all Directors and all
Directors confirmed that they have complied with the required standards
set out in the Model Code and its code of conduct regarding Director’s
securities transactions for the Year and up to the date of this annual
report.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board comprises two executive Directors and three independent non-
executive Directors as at the date of this report, details of which are set
out below:

Executive Directors

Mr. Guo Yumin (Chairman)
Ms. Xia Yu
Mr. Zeng Xiangyang (Resigned on 21 October 2021)

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Ms. Fan Qing
Mr. Dai Tin Yau
Mr. Chan Yin Lam

The brief biographical details of and relationship among the existing
Directors are set out in the section headed “Biographies of Directors and
Senior Management” of this annual report.

The composition of the Board is well balanced. Each of the Directors
has relevant expertise and extensive corporate and strategic planning
experiences that may contribute to the business of the Group. The
Company has complied with the requirements under Rules 3.10(1) and (2)
and 3.10A of the Listing Rules for the Year. All independent non-executive
Directors also meet the guidelines for assessment of their independence as
set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
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Mr. Guo Yumin is the spouse of Ms. Xia Yu. Save as disclosed above,
there are no other relationship (including financial, business, family or
other material/relevant relationship(s)) among members of the Board.

Functions of the Board

The Board supervises the management of the business and affairs of
the Company. The Board'’s primary duty is to ensure the viability of
the Company and to ensure that it is managed in the best interests of
the shareholders as a whole while taking into account the interests of
other stakeholders. The Group has adopted internal guidelines in setting
forth matters that require the Board’s approval. Apart from its statutory
responsibilities, the Board approves the Group’s strategic plan, key
operational initiatives, major investments and funding decisions. It also
reviews the Group's financial performance, identifies principal risks of the
Group's business and ensures implementation of appropriate systems to
manage these risks. Daily business operations and administrative functions
of the Group are delegated to the management.

The Board is also delegated with the corporate governance functions
under code provision D.3.1 of the Code (which has been re-numbered as
code provision A.2.1 since 1 January 2022). The Board has reviewed and
discussed the corporate governance policy of the Group and is satisfied
with the effectiveness of the corporate governance policy.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Pursuant to code provision A.2.1 of the Code (which has been
re-numbered as code provision C.2.1 since 1 January 2022), the roles of
the chairman and chief executive officer should be separate and should
not be performed by the same individual. Up to the date of this report,
there have been no chief executive officer in the Company. Mr. Guo
Yumin acted as the Chairman of the Board, and responsible for the overall
management and formulation of business strategy of the Group.

The Board does not have the intention to fill the position of the chief
executive officer of the Company at present and believes that the absence
of the chief executive officer will not have adverse effect to the Company,
as decisions of the Company will be made collectively by the executive
Directors. The Board will keep reviewing the current structure of the
Board and the need of appointment of a suitable candidate to perform
the role of chief executive. Appointment will be made to fill the post to
comply with code provision C.2.1 of the Code if necessary. During the
Year, one meeting has been held by the Chairman of the Board with
the independent non-executive Directors, without the presence of other
executive Directors.
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BOARD MEETINGS AND PROCEDURES

Board members were provided with complete, adequate and timely
information to allow them to fulfill their duties properly. In compliance
with code provision A.1.3 of the Code (which has been re-numbered as
code provision A.2.1 since 1 January 2022), at least 14 days’ notice has
been given for a regular Board meeting to give all Directors an opportunity
to attend. Notice, agenda and board papers of regular Board meetings
are sent to all Directors within reasonable time and at least 3 days prior
to the meetings. Directors are free to contribute and share their views
at meetings and major decisions will only be taken after deliberation at
Board meetings. Directors who are considered having conflict of interests
or material interests in the proposed transactions or issues to be discussed
will not be counted in the quorum of meeting and will abstain from voting
on the relevant resolutions. Full minutes are prepared after the meetings
and the draft minutes are sent to all Directors for their comments, the
final version of which are endorsed in the subsequent Board meeting.

All independent non-executive Directors have been appointed for a fixed
term. Every Director is subject to re-election on retirement by rotation in
accordance with the Articles.

Details of the attendance of the Board meetings, Audit Committee
meetings, Remuneration Committee meetings, Nomination Committee
meetings and general meetings of the Company held during the year
ended 31 December 2021 are summarised as follows:

Board
meeting
Ezges
Executive Directors YTES

Mr. Guo Yumin (Chairman) BERTE(ZE) 6/6
Ms. Xia Yu Bt 6/6

Mr. Zeng Xiangyang Gt E
(Resigned on 21 October 2021) (R20214 10521 AEHF) 5/6

Independent Non-executive Directors B I FH{TES
i

Ms. Fan Qing EETE 5/6
Mr. Dai Tin Yau NG e 6/6
Mr. Chan Yin Lam RERLE 6/6
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REXE
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established specific committees, namely the audit
committee (the “Audit Committee”), remuneration committee
(the "Remuneration Committee”) and nomination committee (the
“Nomination Committee”), with written terms of reference which are
available for viewing on the website of the Company to assist them in the
efficient implementation of their functions. Specific responsibilities have
been delegated to the above committees.

Audit Committee

The Company established the Audit Committee on 22 June 2012 with
written terms of reference which are in compliance with the code
provisions of the Code. The Audit Committee currently has three members
comprising Mr. Dai Tin Yau (being the Chairman of the Audit Committee),
Ms. Fan Qing and Mr. Chan Yin Lam, all being independent non-executive
Directors.

During the Year, the Audit Committee had reviewed the final results
of the Group for 2020 and the 2021 interim results and report of
the Company. The Audit Committee had reviewed the Group’s risk
management and internal control systems and the effectiveness of the
internal audit function for the Year. The Group’s final results for the Year
had been reviewed by the Audit Committee before submission to the
Board for approval. The Audit Committee had also reviewed this annual
report, and confirmed that this annual report complies with the Listing
Rules.

The Audit Committee held three meetings during the Year. Details of the
attendance of the Audit Committee at the Audit Committee meetings are
set out above.
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Remuneration Committee

The Company established the Remuneration Committee on 22 June
2012 with written terms of reference which are in compliance with the
code provisions of the Code. The primary duties of the Remuneration
Committee include mainly: (i) reviewing the terms of the remuneration
package of each Director and member of senior management, and
making recommendations to the Board regarding any adjustment
thereof; and (i) reviewing and evaluating the performance of individual
executive Directors for determining the amount of bonus (if any) payable
to them. No Director shall participate in any discussion about his or her
own remuneration. The Remuneration Committee currently consists
of three members, namely, Ms. Fan Qing (Chairperson), Mr. Dai Tin
Yau, both of which are independent non-executive Directors, and Mr.
Guo Yumin, an executive Director. The majority of members of the
Remuneration Committee are independent non-executive Directors.
The remuneration of the Directors was determined with reference
to their respective experience, responsibilities within the Group and
general market conditions. The Company has adopted the Code to
make recommendations to the Board on remuneration packages of
individual executive Directors and the members of senior management.

The Remuneration Committee held one meeting during the Year. Details
of the attendance of the Remuneration Committee meetings are set out
above.

At the meetings, the Remuneration Committee had reviewed the
remuneration policies of the Directors and the senior executives and
reviewed the remuneration packages and performance of the Directors
for the Year.
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Nomination Committee

The Company established the Nomination Committee on 22 June 2012
with written terms of reference which are in compliance with code
provisions of the Code. The primary duties of the Nomination Committee
include mainly: (i) reviewing the structure, size, diversity and composition
(including the age, gender, cultural and academic background, skills,
knowledge and professional experience) of the Board on a regular basis
and making recommendations to the Board regarding any proposed
change; (ii) identifying individuals suitably qualified to become Board
members and making recommendations to the Board on the selection
of individuals nominated for directorships; and (iii) assessing the
independence of independent non-executive Directors. The Nomination
Committee consists of three members, namely, Mr. Guo Yumin
(Chairman), an executive Director, Ms. Fan Qing and Mr. Chan Yin Lam,
both of which are independent non-executive Directors. The majority of
members of the Nomination Committee are independent non-executive
Directors.

During the Year, the Nomination Committee adopted a diversity policy
setting out the approach to diversify the members of the Board. The
Company recognises and embraces the benefits of having a diverse
Board. The Nomination Committee works to ensure a balance of skills,
experience and diversity of perspectives appropriate to the requirements
of the Company’s business and objectives. All Board appointments would
continue to be made based on meritocracy. Selection of candidates would
be based on a range of diversity perspectives, which would include but
not be limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of service. The
ultimate decision would be based on merit and contribution that the
selected candidates would bring to the Board, our business model as well
as the needs of the Company. The Nomination Committee will monitor
the implementation of the diversity policy from time to time to ensure the
effectiveness of the diversity policy.

The Nomination Committee held one meeting during the Year. Details of
the attendance of the Nomination Committee meeting are set out above.

At the meeting, the Nomination Committee had reviewed the structure,
size and composition of the Board, assessed the independence of the
independent non-executive Directors, reviewed the qualifications of the
Directors, the progress on the implementation of the board diversity policy
and other related matters of the Company.
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NOMINATION POLICY

Apart from the aforesaid, the Board has adopted a “Nomination Policy”
on 31 December 2018 in relation to the nomination, appointment,
re- appointment of new Directors and the nomination procedure of the
Company, which provides that in evaluating and selecting any candidate
for directorship, the Nomination Committee shall consider the candidates’
character and integrity, professional qualifications, skills, knowledge and
experience, independence, diversity on the Board, willingness to devote
adequate time to discharge duties as a Board member and such other
criteria that are appropriate to the business of the Company.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Board has adopted a “Dividend Policy” on 29 March 2019. A
summary of this policy is disclosed as below.

Subject to the approval of the Shareholders and requirement of the
relevant law, the Company shall pay annual dividends to the Shareholders
if the Group is profitable, operations environment is stable and there is no
significant investment or commitment made by the Group, after taking
into account the factors as detailed below and determined by the Board
from time to time. The remaining net profits will be used for Group’s
development and operations. The Policy allows the Company to declare
special dividends from time to time in addition to the annual dividends.

In proposing any dividend payout, the Board shall also take into account,
inter alia:

(@)  the Company’s actual and expected financial performance;

(b)  retained earnings and distributable reserves of the Company and
each of the members of the Group;

(c)  the level of the Group's debts to equity ratio, return on equity and
the relevant financial covenants;

(d)  any restrictions on payment of dividends that may be imposed by
the Group's lenders;

(e)  the Group's expected working capital requirements and future
expansion plans;

(f)  general economic conditions, business cycle of the Group’s business
and other internal and external factors that may have an impact on
the business or financial performance and position of the Company;
and

(g)  any other factors that the Board deems appropriate.
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Any final dividends declared by the Company must be approved by an
ordinary resolution of Shareholders at an annual general meeting and
must not exceed the amount recommended by the Board. The Board
may from time to time pay to the Shareholders such interim dividends as
appear to the directors to be justified by the profits of the Group.

The policy shall be reviewed periodically and submitted to the Board for
approval if amendments are required.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each of the independent non-executive
Directors an annual confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules. The Company considers that all of the independent
non-executive Directors are independent of the Company as at the date
of this report.

PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT OF THE DIRECTORS

In compliance with code provision A.6.5 of the Code (which has been
re-numbered as code provision A.2.1 since 1 January 2022), all Directors
during the Year, namely, Mr. Guo Yumin, Ms. Xia Yu, Ms. Fan Qing,
Mr. Dai Tin Yau and Mr. Chan Yin Lam, had participated in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge and
skills to ensure that their contribution to the Board remains informed and
relevant. The Directors had provided the relevant record to the Company.

The Company is committed to arranging and funding suitable training to
all Directors for their continuous professional development. Each Director
is briefed and updated from time to time to ensure that he is fully aware
of his responsibilities under the Listing Rules and applicable legal and
regulatory requirements and the governance policies of the Group. All
the Directors also understand the importance of continuous professional
development and are committed to participating in any suitable trainings
to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT’'S REMUNERATION

The senior management’s remuneration payment of the Group in the
Year fell within the following band:

HK$1,000,000 or below

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial
statements which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Group, in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in
Hong Kong. The statement by the auditor of the Company about their
responsibilities for the financial statements is set out in the report of
the independent auditor’s report contained in this annual report. There
are no material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern.

EXTERNAL AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The Company engaged RSM Hong Kong as its external auditor for the
Year. There was no disagreement between the Board and the Audit
Committee on the selection, appointment, resignation or dismissal of
the external auditor. During the year ended 31 December 2021, the
fee payable to RSM Hong Kong in respect of its statutory audit services
provided to the Company was approximately HK$0.9 million. Fees for
non-audit services for the same period was approximately HK$0.1 million.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board and the senior management are responsible for improving and
monitoring the risk management and internal control of the Group. In
this regard, the Audit Committee had performed a regular review of the
risk management and internal control system of the Group within the
Reporting Period in which the results were summarised and reported to
the Board. The Board has also conducted a review of the effectiveness of
the risk management and internal control system of the Group. The Group
also sets up an internal audit team comprise management of subsidiaries,
which plays a major role in monitoring the corporate governance of
the Group and providing objective assurance to the Board that a sound
internal control system is maintained and operated by the management.

Main Features of the Risk Management and Internal
Control Systems

The risk management framework of the Group and main responsibilities
of the members in the framework are described as follows:

Board of Directors
Exg

Board level Audit Committee
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Senior management level (Management of subsidiaries)
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Member

The Board

Audit Committee

Main Responsibilities

Set up goals for risk management strategy,
assess and determine the nature and extent of
risk acceptable to achieve the strategy goals;
Establish and maintain a proper and effective
risk management and internal control systems;
and

Review the effectiveness of the risk management
and internal control systems annually.

Assist the Board in overseeing the risk level
and the design and performance of the risk
management and internal control systems;
Discuss the risk management and internal
control systems with the management;

Ensure that the internal audit function has
sufficient resources for operation and has
a proper position, review and supervise its
performance;

Keep updated of various major risks confronted
by the Group and the risk management status,
make decisions for effective risk control;
Report the risk status of the Group and issues
to be concerned or improved to the Board on
a regular basis;

Facilitate risk management and assessment,
regularly appoint relevant accountable persons
to implement risk assessment;

Organise and promote the establishment of
the risk management system at the Group
level;

Review material risk assessment report and
various risk management reports; and

Engage relevant persons to organise and
coordinate various departments and projects
to carry out identification and assessment of
significant risks at the Group level, summarise
and analyse such information, submit risk
assessment and various risk management
reports.
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Member Main Responsibilities

Internal audit team Ensure that the subsidiaries carry out the risk
team assessment in compliance with the risk
assessment manual formulated by the Group;
e Review and approve the risk assessment results
of the subsidiaries in respect of the business;

e Ensure that the subsidiaries implement
effective risk management;

e Monitor the principal business risks confronted
by the subsidiaries and the effectiveness of
relevant risk management measures; and

e Allocate resources such as fund and workforce
to the subsidiaries for implementation of the
risk assessment projects.

The Process Used to Identify, Assess and Management
of Principal Risks

The risk management process of the Group is described as follows:

Risk identification identify the current risks confronted.
Risk analysis — conduct analysis on the risk including the
impact extent and possibility of occurrence.

Risk response — choose a proper risk response method and
develop a risk mitigation strategy.

Control measures — propose up-to-date internal control measures
and policy and process.

Risk control — continuously monitor the risks identified and
implement relevant internal control measures
to ensure the effective operation of the risk
response strategy.

Risk management — summarise results of risk assessment and
report analysis and internal audit, formulate and
report an action plan.
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The Process Used to Review the Effectiveness of the
Risk Management and Internal Control Systems and to
Resolve Material Internal Control Defects

The Group establishes a risk management information and communication
channel that is functional within the whole basic risk control procedure,
connects different levels in the reporting system and different
departments and operation units, so as to ensure timely, accurate and
complete communication of information, laying a solid foundation for the
monitoring and improvement of risk management.

Different departments and business units of the Group regularly inspect
and examine their own risk management process in order to locate
the shortcomings and remedy the situation if possible. Their inspection
and examination reports are delivered to the Group’s risk management
department in time.

The Board further considers that (i) there was no material issue relating to
the Group’s risk management and internal controls, including financial,
operational and compliance controls and risk management functions
of the Group; and (ii) that there were adequate staff with appropriate
and adequate qualifications and experience, resources for accounting,
internal audit and financial reporting functions, and adequate training
programmes had been provided during the Year.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Pang Yuk Fong (“Ms. Pang”) was appointed as the Company
Secretary on 1 October 2017. Ms. Pang has adequate knowledge on
the Company to discharge her duty as the Company Secretary. Ms.
Pang confirmed that she had taken no less than 15 hours of relevant
professional training during the Year.
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THE SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS TO CONVENE AN
EXTRAORDINARY MEETING

Pursuant to article 64 of the Articles, extraordinary general meetings shall
be convened on the requisition of one or more Shareholders holding, at
the date of deposit of the requisition, not less than one-tenth of the paid
up capital of the Company having the right of voting at general meetings.
Such requisition shall be made in writing to the Board or the company
secretary of the Company for the purpose of requiring an extraordinary
general meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction of any
business specified in such requisition. Such meeting shall be held within
2 months after the deposit of such requisition. If within 21 days of
such deposit, the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting, the
requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so in the same manner.

COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTORS

A shareholders communication policy was adopted on 22 June 2012.

The objective of the shareholders communication policy ensures that the
Shareholders are informed of balanced and understandable information
about the Company (including the Group’s strategies, businesses, major
developments and financial performance) in a factual and timely manner
and to enable them to exercise their rights as the Shareholders in an
informed manner. The Company aims to be open and transparent with
its Shareholders and encourages Shareholders’ active participation at the
Company’s general meetings. Information would be communicated to the
Shareholders mainly through the Company’s corporate communications
(such as interim and annual reports, announcements and circulars), annual
general meetings and other general meetings, as well as disclosure on
the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange. Interim reports,
annual reports and circulars are sent to the Shareholders in a timely
manner and are also available on the websites of the Company and the
Stock Exchange. The Company’s and the Stock Exchange’s websites
provide the Shareholders with the corporate information. Shareholders
are provided with contact details of the Company as set out in the above
paragraph and under “contact us” information on the Company’s website
at www.sheentai.com in order to enable them to make any query that
they may have with respect to the Company. Shareholders, investors and
interested parties can make enquiries directly to the Company through the
following e-mail: investorrelation@sheentai.com. In addition, Shareholders
can contact Tricor Investor Services Limited, the Hong Kong branch share
registrar and transfer office of the Company, if they have any enquiries
about their shareholdings and entitlements to dividend.
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The Company’s annual general meeting allows the Directors to meet
and communicate with the Shareholders. The Company ensures that
Shareholders’ views are communicated to the Board. The chairman of the
annual general meeting proposes separate resolutions for each issue to be
considered. Annual general meeting proceedings are reviewed from time
to time to ensure that the Company follows good corporate governance
practices. The notice of the annual general meeting is distributed to all
Shareholders at least 21 days prior to the annual general meeting and the
accompanying circular also sets out details of each proposed resolution
and other relevant information as required under the Listing Rules.
Separate resolution is proposed for each issue to be considered at the
meeting. The chairman of the annual general meeting exercises his power
under the Articles to put each proposed resolution to the vote by way of
a poll. The procedures for demanding and conducting a poll are explained
at the meeting prior to the polls being taken. Voting results are posted on
the Company’s website on the day of the annual general meeting.

After taking into account that the Shareholders have multiple channels
to communicate their views as mentioned above as well as the steps
taken by the Board to solicit and understand the views of Shareholders
and stakeholders during the year ended 31 December 2021 including
but not limited to open discussion with the Shareholders during the
annual general meeting, the Board's review of the implementation and
effectiveness of the shareholders’ communication policy was found to be
sound and adequate.

Procedures for Directing Shareholders’ Enquiries to
the Board

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns to the
Board in writing. Contact details are as follows:

HK Address: Room 1903,19/F Jubilee Centre, 18 Fenwick Street,
Wan Chai, Hong Kong

Tel: (852) 3998 4118/3998 4128

Fax: (852) 3998 4100

E-mail: investorrelations@sheentai.com

Shareholders’ enquiries and concerns will be forwarded to the Board and/
or relevant Board Committees of the Company, where appropriate, to
answer the Shareholders’ questions.
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Procedures for Putting Forward Proposals at General
Meetings by Shareholders

Shareholders are requested to follow article 64 of the Articles for including
a resolution at an extraordinary general meeting. The requirements and
procedures are set out above in the paragraph headed “The Shareholders’
Right to Convene an Extraordinary Meeting”.

Pursuant to article 113 of the Articles, no person (other than a retiring
Director) shall be eligible for election to the office of Director at any
general meeting unless a notice in writing of the intention to propose that
person for election as a Director and notice in writing by that person of
his willingness to be elected shall have been lodged at the Head Office
or at the Registration Office no earlier than the day after the dispatch of
the notice of the general meeting appointed for such election and end
no later than 7 days prior to the date of such general meeting and the
minimum length of the period during which such notices to the Company
may be given will be at least 7 days.

The procedures for Shareholders to propose a person for election as a
Director is posted on the website of the Company.

Significant Changes in Constitutional Documents

In order to further improve the corporate governance of the Company
and to conform to the core shareholder protection standards set out in
Appendix 3 of the Listing Rules, the Board resolved on 31 March 2022
to propose a special resolution at the upcoming annual general meeting
to be held on 27 May 2022 to make amendments to certain provisions/
articles in the Memorandum of Association and the Articles.

Detailed information of the amendments in the Memorandum of
Association and the Articles is set out in the circular of the Company
dated 26 April 2022.
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The Directors are hereby to present to the Shareholders this annual report
and the audited consolidated financial statements for the Year.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal business activity of the Company is investment holding. The
principal activities and other particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries are
set out in the consolidated financial statements Note 23 in this annual
report.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Further discussion and analysis of the activities of the Group during the
Year, and an indication of likely future developments in the Group’s
business as required by Schedule 5 to the Companies Ordinance, Chapter
622, can be found in the section headed “Management Discussion
and Analysis” of this annual report. Those discussions form part of this
directors’ report.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

A number of factors may affect the results and business operations of the
Group, some of which are inherent to the businesses in which the Group is
engaged and some are from external sources. Major risks are summarised
below:

i) The Group relies on a sole customer in
photovoltaic power business segment

The Group has relied on and expects to continue to rely on the
government authority State Grid Jiangsu Electric Power Co., Ltd.
Xuzhou Power Supply Branch* (“State Grid Jiangsu”), as it is
the sole customer of the Group in photovoltaic power business
segment since 2015. The Directors consider, with reference
to “Several Opinions of the State Council on Promoting the Healthy
Development of the Photoltaic Industry”* { Bl #5 B B8 7 {8 3 Y IR
EXREEENETER), "Administrative Measures for the Full
Guaranteed Acquisition of Renewable Energy Power Generation”*
(A BAERREE2RREEKIEEEITE), "Regulations on the
Supervision of the Full-scale Acquisition of Renewable Energy Power
Generation by Grid Enterprises”* { Bt £ 25U EE r] B E LR
BB EE W) and "Notice on standardizing the management of
priority generation priority purchase plan”* (}R&iE L TE L
BAEIEIEMAA), the Company’s photovoltaic power plants will
continue to enjoy the guarantee of the local government’s purchase
of full on-grid electricity and subsidies for renewable energy by
2035.

*  For identification purposes only
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ii)

iii)

However, if there is any change of the relationship with State Grid
Jiangsu, it is not easy for the Company to sell its electricity to other
customers as the electricity market in Xuzhou City has not been
liberalized, which could in turn materially and adversely affect the
business operations and financial performance of the Group.

The Group relies on certain major suppliers

The Group has relied on and expects to continue to rely on certain
major suppliers for a significant portion of the purchases. If they
fail to make timely delivery of their products and the Group fails to
source from other suppliers in a timely and cost-effective manner,
the operation of the Group could be delayed. The relationship
between the Group and its customers could also be adversely
affected as a result of any such delays, which could in turn
materially and adversely affect the business operations and financial
performance of the Group.

The fluctuation of exchange rate may have a
material effect on the business and performance
of the Group

The sales of the Group are denominated in RMB and the purchases
are denominated in US$ and RMB. The Group does not engage
in any exchange rate hedging activities. Any fluctuation in the
exchange rates of RMB and US$ may have an adverse effect on
the results of operations and financial condition of the Group.
Appreciation of the value of US$ may increase the costs of the
Group and thus subject the Group to increased competition from
domestic competitors, and depreciation in the value of RMB may
adversely affect the earnings, as well as the value of the net assets
and dividends from the PRC subsidiaries of the Group.
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iv) PRC political, economic and social conditions and
government policies could affect the business of
the Group

All of the operating assets of the Group are located in the PRC and
the Group expects that a majority of the revenue will continue to
be derived from the operations in the PRC. The results of operations
and prospects are subject, to a significant degree, to economic,
political and legal developments in the PRC. The economy of the
PRC differs from the economies of most developed countries in
many respects, including the extent of government involvement,
the level of development, the growth rate, and government control
of foreign exchange. The Group cannot predict whether changes in
the PRC’s political, economic and social conditions, laws, regulations
and policies will have any material adverse effect on the current or
future business, results of operation or financial condition of the
Group.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND COMPLIANCE WITH
LAWS AND REGULATIONS

Details of environmental Policies and performance are set out in the
“Environmental, Social and Governance Report” in this annual report.

The Group is committed to ensuring that the Group’s operation is in
compliance with applicable laws and regulations. As far as the Directors
are aware, the Group has complied in material respects with the relevant
laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the business and
operation of the Group.

KEY RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES, CUSTOMERS
AND SUPPLIERS

The Directors recognises that employees, customers and business partners
are the keys to the sustainable development of the Group.

Employees are regarded as the most important and valuable assets of the
Group. The Group attracts and retains key personnel and talents with
appropriate skills, experience and competence which would complement
and meet the corporate and business objectives of the Group. The Group
ensures all employees are reasonably remunerated and the remuneration
packages of employees are reviewed regularly and necessary adjustments
are made to the remuneration packages to align with the market
standards.
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The Group also stays connected with its customers and suppliers and
has ongoing communication with the customers and suppliers through
various channels such as telephone, electronic mails and physical meetings
to obtain their feedback and suggestions.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the Year are set out in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income of this annual report.

DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend payment of any final dividend for the
Year (for the year ended 31 December 2020: Nil).

CLOSURE OF THE REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For determining entitlement to attend the forthcoming annual general
meeting (“AGM") to be held on 27 May 2022, the register of members
of the Company will be closed from 24 May 2022 to 27 May 2022,
both days inclusive, during which period no transfer of Shares will be
registered. The record date will be on 27 May 2022. In order to qualify for
attending the AGM, all transfers of Shares accompanied by the relevant
share certificates and transfer forms must be lodged with the Company’s
branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited at
Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong before
4:30 p.m. on 23 May 2022.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the Year are set out in the consolidated financial statements Note
19 in this annual report.

LEASE LIABILITIES

Details of lease liabilities of the Group as at 31 December 2021 are set out
in the consolidated financial statements Note 36 in this annual report.

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the published results and assets, liabilities and non-
controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial years is set out
in five year financial summary. This summary does not form part of the
consolidated financial statements in this annual report.
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SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the Company’s paid up capital for the Year are set out in the
consolidated financial statements Note 29 in this annual report.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles or the
laws of Cayman Islands.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SHARES

There was no purchase, sale or redemption of the Company’s listed
securities by the Company or any of its subsidiaries during the Year.

TRANSFER TO RESERVES

Loss attributable to equity shareholders of approximately HK$6.8 million
(for the year ended 31 December 2020: profit attributable to equity
shareholders of approximately HK$15.1 million) have been transferred
to reserves. Other movements in reserves are set out in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity in this annual report.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS, DISPOSALS AND
SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Management Discussion and
Analysis — Significant Investment, Material Acquisition and Disposal” in
this annual report, there were no significant investments held nor other
material acquisitions and disposals of subsidiaries, associated companies
and joint ventures during the Year.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Details of important event affecting the Group subsequent to the Year
are set out in the section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis —
Subsequent Events” in this annual report.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

Sales to the Group’s five largest customers accounted for approximately
94.1% of the total sales for the Year and sales to the largest customer
included therein amounted to approximately 87.1% of the total sales for
the Year. Purchases from the Group’s five largest suppliers accounted
for approximately 73.2% of the total purchases for the Year and
purchase from the Group’s largest supplier included therein amounted to
approximately 48.7% of the total purchases for the Year.

None of the Directors or any of their close associates (as defined in the
Listing Rules) or any Shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the
directors, own more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had
any interest in the Group's five largest customers and suppliers.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors who held office during the Year and as at the date of this
report were as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Guo Yumin (Chairman)
Ms. Xia Yu
Mr. Zeng Xiangyang (Resigned on 21 October 2021)

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Ms. Fan Qing
Mr. Dai Tin Yau
Mr. Chan Yin Lam

BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND OTHER SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

The biographical details of Directors and other senior management are
disclosed in the section headed “Biographies of Directors and Senior
Management” of this annual report.

DIRECTORS EMOLUMENTS

Details of the Directors’ emoluments are set out in the consolidated
financial statements Note 15(a) in this annual report. The Directors’
remunerations are determined with reference to his duties and
responsibilities within the Company.

MATERIAL INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in Note 15 and Note 41 to the consolidated financial
statements and contracts amongst group companies, no other significant
transactions, arrangements and contracts to which the Company was
a party and in which a director of the Company and other director’s
connected party had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the Year.

INTERESTS OF CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS IN
CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

No contract of significance has been entered into during the Year
between the Company or any of its subsidiaries and the controlling
Shareholders or any of its subsidiaries.

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the Year.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING BUSINESS

None of the Directors or any of their respective close associates (as defined
under the Listing Rules) had any interest in a business which competes
or likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the business of the
Group.

The independent non-executive Directors had, in the Board meeting
during the Year, reviewed the non-competition undertakings (the “Non-
competition Undertakings”) given by Sheen Tai Group Holding Limited
(“Sheentai BVI”) and Mr. Guo Yumin (“Mr. Guo”) in a deed of non-
competition entered into between Sheentai BVI and Mr. Guo in favour
of the Company on 28 June 2012. The independent non-executive
Directors were not aware of any non-compliance of the Non-competition
Undertakings given by Sheentai BVI and Mr. Guo for the Year and up
to the date of this annual report. Each of Sheentai BVI and Mr. Guo
confirmed that he/it had complied with the Non-competition Undertakings
given by him/it from the date of the Non-competition Undertakings and
up to the date of this annual report.

RETIREMENT SCHEMES

The Group participates in a state-managed retirement scheme operated by
the PRC government which covers the Group’s eligible employees in the
PRC and a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme for the employees in Hong
Kong. Particulars of these retirement plans are set out in the consolidated
financial statements Note 4(t) in this annual report.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Pursuant to the relevant rules of the Cayman Islands, the Company’s
distributable reserves as at 31 December 2021 amounted to approximately
HK$691.8 million.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS OR SHORT POSITIONS IN EERRKH - HEARORESHWER K

SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES -}

(@) As at 31 December 2021, the interests and short positions of  (a) 720215128318 » AQRREEHZSITHRA
the Directors or chief executive of the Company in the shares, SRAR A EERAEEE (EERBHF L
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of the BAEH([#H REEGD])EXVEL) B H -
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the RGO RESFT - HEEREESRIAE K
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")) which were required f J%XV*B%7)§Z8“*B%D‘%$ 7) N B 22 P O A
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to ok B (BIEIRIEEH R E ROIZ F 630
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including any interests or Mﬂfiﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁz{fﬂ%\ SORE) - ERE
short positions which they are taken or deemed to have under such BH LG IERPIE352RE RN A IRFTIEE M
provisions of the SFO) or were required, pursuant to section 352 of E’J%L’ KR - SiRE EARAIMER102 £
the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein, or were NAIBEFETEFRHOZRESTREMNG AR
required, pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by B BRSPS BOR BT

Directors of Listed Companies in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules,
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange, were as

follows:
(i) Long Position in the Shares and the underlying (i) RABROREERGD2ZHFE
Shares
Number of
Shares and
underlying
Shares held/
interested Approximate
iV 2] percentage of
Name of Director Capacity/Nature ERRER interest
EEpHE B HE HEROEE S d= e g )
Mr. Guo Yumin Interest of a controlled corporation 1,206,086,000 49.55%
("Mr. Guo") (Note 1)
BERABEED RiEGDEE R (M)
Beneficial owner (Note 2) 272,356,164 11.19%
A AME2)
Interest of spouse (Notes 3 and 4) 33,094,000 1.36%
It as (PEE3 K4)
Ms. Xia Yu (“Ms. Xia") Interest of spouse (Note 5) 1,478,442,164 60.74%
BER(EXZLD e fs s (PFE5)
Beneficial owner (Note 3) 33,094,000 1.36%
EnEa AME3)
Ms. Fan Qing (“Ms. Fan”) Beneficial owner (Note 6) 800,000 0.03%
BT (Bat]) EamEa ABEEe)

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited
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(ii) Long Position in the Ordinary Shares of Associated
Corporation

Name of associated

Name of Director corporation Capacity/Nature
EEfE HEEE B 51,/ HE
Mr. Guo Sheentai BVI Beneficial owner
AL BEmlEBA
Ms. Xia (Note 5) Sheentai BVI Interest of spouse
B+ (Mizs) ikt e

Notes:

1. Mr. Guo beneficially owns the entire issued share capital of

Sheentai BVI. Therefore Mr. Guo is deemed, or taken to be,
interested in all the 1,206,086,000 Shares held by Sheentai
BVI for the purpose of the SFO. Mr. Guo is the sole director of
Sheentai BVI.

2. These 272,356,164 Shares and underlying Shares represent
the 272,356,164 Shares owned by Mr. Guo.

3. These 33,094,000 Shares and underlying Shares represent the
33,094,000 Shares owned by Ms. Xia.

4. Mr. Guo is the spouse of Ms. Xia. Accordingly, Mr. Guo
is deemed, or taken to be interested in all the Shares and
underlying Shares in which Ms. Xia is interested.

5. Ms. Xia is the spouse of Mr. Guo. Accordingly, Ms. Xia is
deemed, or taken to be interested in all the Shares and
underlying Shares in which Mr. Guo is interested for the
purpose of the SFO.

6. These 800,000 underlying Shares represent the 800,000
Shares which may be allotted and issued to Ms. Fan upon full
exercise of the Share Options granted to her.
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(i) REEZEERERZER

Number of
Share held/
interested Percentage of
=V %) interest
EmRHEE EmADL
1 100%
1 100%

Wi

1. BS54 B 257 G Sheentai BVIFI 2 202 3%
TR o AL - RIBEH LRSS -
B AR B E YER Sheentai BVIFE
) EfT B 1,206,086,000 i% % 17 5 4k A 1
%5 ° $B4E A4 ASheentai BVIFIHE—EE o

2. $%272,356,164 0% B2 15 RAHRI IR 1D 16 2
S A EB 89272,356,164RFAX(D ©

3. %33,094,000% i 17 RARRA AR (D5 B &£
B #933,094,0008% AL 17 ©
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(b)  So far as is known to the Directors, as at 31 December 2021, the (b) IEEZEFFH » B2021F12A31H » LW FA L

following persons (not being a Director or chief executive of the (EXQ@BFEEZANAREERNERITRAR
Company as disclosed in paragraph (a) above) had interests or BN R D SABEROD P HEBIREE S RE
short positions in Shares or underlying Shares which would fall to TRBIEXVEREE2 R B35 B MG SRR AN A B &
be disclosed to the Company and the Stock Exchange under the BRI EMERIOAE KEEREEER
provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or, who are, Bt 75 R A AR E R T E AR B A A Ath A
directly or indirectly, interested in 10% or more of the nominal BRANKREARE FRENEMERIRAEE
value of any class of share capital carrying rights to vote in all 10% 3k A ER9fERS -
circumstances at general meetings of any other member of the
Group:
The Company P /N
Number of
Shares held/ Approximate
interested Percentage of
Capacity/Nature of interest iV 2] shareholding
513 RERME EZRHOEE RAEE 2 LA
Sheentai BVI Beneficial owner 1,206,086,000 49.55%
A A

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2021, the Company had (& ECEriERE SN - 72021412 8318 » #EE(F{q
not been notified by any persons (other than Directors or chief executive ~ AT (RATEEHZSTHAERIN MERATEH
of the Company) who had interests or short positions in the Shares or P& s FAERARL (D o0 7k B ZBEARIE 35 5 M BA G &I SE XV
underlying Shares which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under #8252 & 830 E 2 IE X MAR I HEE » s AR A
the provision of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or which were 1B E 5 M BAEIEHI 33615 R EFE 2 Bl aykE
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to  zFa/A & °

Section 336 of the SFO.
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DIRECTORS" RIGHT TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Apart from as disclosed under the paragraph headed “Directors’ interests
and short positions in shares, underlying shares and debentures” above,
at no time during the Year was the Company, its holding company,
subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable
the Directors or the chief executive of the Company or their associates to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of
the Company or any other body corporate.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Share Option
Scheme”) on 22 June 2012. A summary of the principal terms and
conditions of the Share Option Scheme is set out as follows:

1.  Purpose of the Share Option Scheme

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to attract and retain
the best available personnel, to provide additional incentive to
employees (full-time and part-time), directors, consultants, advisers,
distributors, contractors, suppliers, agents, customers, business
partners or service providers of the Group and to promote the
success of the business of the Group.

2. Participants

The Board may, at its absolute discretion and on such terms as it
may think fit, grant any employee (full-time or part-time), director,
consultant or adviser of the Group, or any substantial shareholder
of the Group, or any distributor, contractor, supplier, agent,
customer, business partner or service provider of the Group, options
to subscribe for such number of Shares as it may determine in
accordance with the terms of the Share Option Scheme.

The basis of eligibility of any participant to the grant of any option
shall be determined by the Board (or as the case may be, the
independent non-executive Directors) from time to time on the basis
of his contribution or potential contribution to the development
and growth of the Group.
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Total of Shares available for issue under the
Share Option Scheme

The maximum number of shares in respect of which options may be
granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other scheme of
the Company shall not in aggregate exceed 10% of all the shares
in issue as at the date of listing of the shares of the Company (or
such numbers of shares as shall result from a sub-division or a
consolidation of the shares of the Company from time to time), i.e.
40,000,000 shares representing 10% of the issued shares of the
Company as at the date of listing. On 25 September 2015, each of
the existing issued and unissued shares of the Company of HK$0.01
each in the share capital of the Company was sub-divided into four
sub-divided shares of HK$0.0025 each (the “Shares Subdivision”).
As such, the maximum number of shares in respect of which
options may be granted under the Share Option Scheme and any
other scheme of the Company is adjusted from 40,000,000 to
160,000,000.

On 29 January 2015, a total of 14,600,000 share options to
subscribe for a total of 14,600,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01
each of the Company (which were adjusted to 58,400,000 shares
of HK$0.0025 each after the Shares Subdivision) were granted to
certain Directors and employees of the Company under the Share
Option Scheme.

Therefore, as at the date of this annual report, the total number
of shares available for issue under the Share Option Scheme and
any other scheme of the Company was 49,550,000 representing
approximately 2.03% of the issued share capital of the Company as
at the date of this annual report.

Maximum entitlement of each participant

The total number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise
of options granted to any participant (including both exercised and
outstanding options) under the Share Option Scheme or any other
share option schemes of the Company in any 12-month period
up to the date of grant shall not exceed 1% of the shares of the
Company in issue.
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Time of exercise of options

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the
Share Option Scheme at any time during a period as the Board may
determine which shall not exceed ten years from the date of grant
subject to the provisions of early termination thereof.

Minimum period for which an option must be
held before it can be exercised

Save as determined by the Board and provided in the offer of the
grant of the relevant options, there is no performance target which
must be achieved before any of the options can be exercised.

Time of acceptance and the amount payable on
acceptance of the option

An offer for the grant of options must be accepted within seven
days inclusive of the day on which such offer was made. The
amount payable by the grantee of an option to the Company on
acceptance of the offer for the grant of an option is HK$1.

Basis of determining the exercise price

The exercise price of a share in respect of any particular option
granted under the Share Option Scheme shall be a price solely
determined by the Board and notified to a participant and shall
be at least the higher of: (i) the closing price of the shares of the
Company as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet
on the date of grant of the option, which must be a business day;
(ii) the average of the closing prices of the shares of the Company
as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the
five business days immediately preceding the date of grant of the
option; and (iii) the nominal value of a share of the Company on
the date of grant of the option.

Life of the Share Option Scheme

The Share Option Scheme will remain in force for a period of ten
years commencing on the date on 22 June 2012 (the date on
which the Share Option Scheme was conditionally adopted by the
Company) and shall expire at the close of business on the business
day immediately preceding the tenth anniversary thereof unless
terminated earlier by the shareholders of the Company in general
meeting.
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On 29 January 2015, a total of 14,600,000 share options to subscribe for
a total of 14,600,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each of the Company
were granted to certain Directors and employees of the Company under
the Share Option Scheme. Among the share options granted above,
2,100,000 share options were granted to the Directors to subscribe for a
total of 2,100,000 shares of the Company. For details, please refer to the
Company’s announcement dated 29 January 2015.

Please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 24 September
2015 in relation to the adjustment to the options granted under the Share
Option Scheme upon the share subdivision of the Company becoming
effective on 25 September 2015.

Set out below are details of the outstanding options granted under the
Share Option Scheme as at the date of this report:

201551 H29H - AJRE S $£14,600,00008 A 7
FRREE0.01 8 LAY L AR A 14,600,00017 & AL HE -
ERBEBRETERTETARAEZRIES - AT
RS - 2,100,000 ERETIE TEE - MU
RIEA £2,100,000 8 AR A G - FBEBLEAR
AIBHIA20159F1 A29BMAE -

FE2HAAFBEA2015F9A24BHA S - B A
AR B D HF AR 201599 A 25 B A 3k a2 B AR

2= o

=y

o
W

eyl

ng

O

MRS B - RIBEIRERT 8K H ORI TERBAE
BRI

Number of

options
granted on Outstanding Outstanding
29 January as at as at
2015 1 January 31 December
20155 2021 During the reporting period 2021
18298 R2021% REEHR 20215
Name of grantee ERERE 1A1A Exercised Cancelled 12A31R
ARARE #A AT B BH# WA

Director EZ

Ms. Fan Qing el-p 800,000 800,000 - - - 800,000
Employees and advisers ESREE 57,600,000 48,750,000 - - = 48,750,000
Total ait 58,400,000 49,550,000 - - - 49,550,000
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EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 December 2021, the Group employed approximately 67 full-
time staff members. The Directors and senior management receive
compensation in the form of fees, salaries, allowances, benefits in kind
and/or discretionary bonuses relating to our performance. The Group
also established the Share Option Scheme to incentivize the senior
management and employees, further details of which are set out in
the paragraph headed “Share Option Schemes” in this report. When
reviewing and determining the specific remuneration packages for the
executive Directors and senior management, the Company takes into
consideration factors such as their individual performance, qualification,
experience and seniority, salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment and responsibilities of the Directors, employment elsewhere
in the Group and desirability of performance-based remuneration. The
Group determines the staff’s remuneration based on factors such as
qualifications and work experience.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to maintaining the highest standard of
corporate governance practices. Information on the corporate governance
practices adopted by the Company is set out in the Corporate Governance
Report of this annual report.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

During the Year, the Group did not make any charitable donation.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

Pursuant to Article 191 of the Articles, every Director is entitled to be
indemnified out of the assets of the Company against all losses or
liabilities which he may sustain or incur in or about the execution of the
duties of his office or otherwise in relation thereto.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, as at the date of this annual
report, the Company has maintained sufficient public float during the
Year and up to the date of this annual report as required under the Listing
Rules.
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AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2021 have been audited by RSM Hong Kong.

RSM Hong Kong will retire and being eligible, offer themselves for
reappointment at the forthcoming annual general meeting. A resolution
for the reappointment of RSM Hong Kong as auditor of the Company will
be proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

By Order of the Board of

Guo Yumin
Chairman

Hong Kong, 31 March 2022
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Independent Auditor’s Report

29th Floor, Lee Garden Two, 28 Yun Ping Road
Causeway Bay, Hong Kong

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
SHEEN TAI HOLDINGS GROUP COMPANY LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Sheen Tai
Holdings Group Company Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(the “Group”) set out on pages 87 to 198, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2021, and
the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2021, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”) and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Companies Ordinance.

BB R S

RSM

BEREER IS

EBMEE R TE )\
MEZH —+N71E8

RSM Hong Kong

T+852 2598 5123
F+8522598 7230

Bt +8522598 5123
HH +852 25987230

www.rsmhk.com www.rsmhk.com

BIERZREBERATRR
(REESHETMA L BRAA])

=R

PR ERHNESTER 1988 ERERERBR A
AI[ERARREWBRAR (AR EE® ) NLERAE
Bk - IR e MR BER2021F12 4318/
REMBRAREAREEZZA LFENGABER &7
EREREMEERSER  RERSEHRNEER
SRER  URGAEVBERENT - BREESTK
R o

BMRE  ZEREVBRREBRERESHTAAE
BB BB EEADEEMT SR T &
SER2021F12 831 BWEREHEAR R REEZA
IEFENREMBERERGEEEMRE - LEER
CRTUEBI B B8 E sk R HHE o

JERZEREBERAR
20214F 3R

79



80

Independent Auditor’s Report
BYZBENRE

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs"”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code
of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters. The key audit matters we identified are:

1. Impairment of trade receivables; and

2. Impairment of loan and other receivables.

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited
Annual Report 2021
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

Independent Auditor’s Report
BYZBENRE

BEETEE(E)

Key Audit Matter
BRENSEE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BAREHERT N REEEETEE

Impairment of trade receivables
Refer to Note 25 to the consolidated financial statements.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group has trade receivables
with net carrying amount of approximately HK$106,507,000.
Impairment losses recognised in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss for the year in respect of the Group's trade
receivables amounted to approximately HK$143,000.

Loss allowance for trade receivables are based on
management’s estimate of the lifetime expected credit losses
("ECL") to be incurred, which is estimated by taking into
account the credit loss experience, ageing of overdue trade
receivables, customers’ repayment history and an assessment
of both the current and forecast general economic conditions,
all of which involve a significant degree of management
judgement. The management engaged a qualified external
valuer to assist in the assessment.

We identified assessing the recoverability of trade receivables
and recognition of loss allowance are inherently subjective and
requires significant management judgement, which increases
the risk of error or potential management bias.

B 5 RWFEORRE
B2RR A M EMR M5

R2021F12831H @+ EEENEZEKFIERNREFEAL
106,507,000 7T - ARNFEMGEIERRANERER B
B Z 5 WG IB R REETE4) 143,000/ 7T °

B RUFENERRELDENSEENEHAREEER
(TEHEEBRDZERERE  HEZEFEERLR - &
HIE SRR E - 2P &K acsk M B AT AR R —RR AL
RENFHERGEE - Eh SRS RERNRENEIEEHE -
BEERIEA BRSNS ERN 7B o

HPIC BRI 5 UG IR A A] [ R R B R B R R AR
BIEBMESF2EREELEARAME - ML HRERNK
EREEERR R

Our procedures included:

o Obtaining and examining the assessment report of ECL
of trade receivables prepared by the external valuer
engaged by the Group;

o Assessing the external valuer’s qualifications, experience
and expertise, and considering its objectivity and
independence;

° Assessing whether trade receivables was appropriately
grouped by the management into categories with shared
credit risk characteristics;

o Testing, on a sample basis, the accuracy and
completeness of the data used by the management to
develop historical loss rates and assessing the sufficiency,
relevance and reliability of that data;

o Testing, on a sample basis, the accuracy of the ageing of
trade receivables to supporting documents; and

. With the assistance of our in-house valuation specialists:

(i) assessing the appropriateness of the impairment
model used by the Group;

(i)  testing inputs to the model to market data;

(i)  assessing the appropriateness of forward-looking
adjustments to the model; and

(iv)  testing the calculation of the ECL provisions.
TR F B
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BYZBENRE

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

BAEEFTEE(E)

Key Audit Matter
BRENSEE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BAREHERT N REEEETEE

Impairment of loan and other receivables
Refer to Note 25 to the consolidated financial statements.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group has loan and other
receivables with net carrying amount of approximately
HK$72,922,000. Impairment losses recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year in respect
of the Group’s loan and other receivables amounted to
approximately HK$14,468,000.

Loss allowance for loan and other receivables are based on
management'’s estimate of the 12 months ECL to be incurred,
which is estimated by taking into account the credit loss
experience, ageing of overdue loan and other receivables,
borrowers’ repayment history and borrowers’ financial position
and an assessment of both the current and forecast general
economic conditions, all of which involve a significant degree
of management judgement. The management engaged a
qualified external valuer to assist in the assessment.

We focused on this area due to the magnitude of the
balance involved and the significant accounting judgements
and estimates required in assessing the loss allowance for
impairment of loan and other receivables.
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Our procedures included:

o Obtaining and examining the assessment report of ECL
of loan and other receivables prepared by the external
valuer engaged by the Group;

° Assessing the external valuer’s qualifications, experience
and expertise, and considering its objectivity and
independence;

. Evaluating management’s assessment of whether there
was a significant increase in credit risk on the loan and
other receivables since initial recognition; and

o With the assistance of our in-house valuation specialists:

(i) assessing the appropriateness of the impairment
model used by the Group;

(i) testing inputs to the model to market data;

(i)  assessing the appropriateness of forward-looking
adjustments to the model; and

(iv)  testing the calculation of the ECL provisions.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the Other Information. The Other
Information comprises all of the information included in the annual report
other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the Other Information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the Other Information and, in doing so,
consider whether the Other Information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this Other Information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee assists the directors in discharging their
responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

Independent Auditor’s Report
BYZBENRE
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BYZBENRE

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as a
body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited
Annual Report 2021
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we

identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

Independent Auditor’s Report
BYZBENRE
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BYZBENRE

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should
not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Ng Wai Kwun.

RSM Hong Kong

Certified Public Accountants
31 March 2022

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss
mEBER

For the year ended 31 December 2021

HE2021F128318 1HEE

2021 2020
20205 20204
HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT T
Continuing operations BB
Revenue WA 8 66,113 79,525
Cost of sales SHEKA (29,670) (36,160)
Gross profit EF 36,443 43,365
Other income E A A 9 6,979 6,713
Other gains and losses, net H IS K 518 R 58 10 (740) (108)
Distribution costs VAN =10 N (528) (509)
Impairment losses on trade and B Z WA &
other receivables H i fEURIR H) R E & 18 (14,611) (622)
Administrative expenses TR (30,448) (31,301)
Other operating expenses HE AR (2,254) (2,354)
(Loss)/profit from operations s (F1E),uAl (5,159) 15,184
Finance costs BEE R 11 (970) (958)
(Loss)/profit before tax Bl (EE) uAl (6,129) 14,226
Income tax expense FriSfiz 12 (775) (4,439)
(Loss)/profit for the year from BELSEEKMEEA
continuing operations (B18) =R (6,904) 9,787
Discontinued operations BRIEREEK
Profit for the year from discontinued operations B 4% [ 48 & S TEFT1S F W@ A 16 - 6,755
(Loss)/profit for the year FR(EE),SR5F 13 (6,904) 16,542
JERER EEAR A A
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss
mEeEBEX

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12A318LEFE

2021 2020
2020 2020%F
HK$°000 HK$'000
THERT T
Attributable to: AT A FELS :
Equity shareholders of the Company /NS 3 (6,794) 15,053
Non-controlling interests FEPE RS A (110) 1,489
(6,904) 16,542
(Loss)/earnings per share BR(EBAR) BF 18
From continuing and discontinued operations REFEREEIREEED
Basic (HK$ per share) HEA(BRET) (0.003) 0.006
Diluted (HK$ per share) BE (g% T) (0.003) 0.006
From continuing operations REAFECEES
Basic (HK$ per share) E=NEST ) (0.003) 0.004
Diluted (HK$ per share) g (A T) (0.003) 0.004

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited
88 Annual Report 2021



Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
e RkEMEZERKER

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE2021F12A318LFE

2021 2020
20214 20204
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAET
(Loss)/profit for the year FR(EER)SREF (6,904) 16,542
Other comprehensive income: Hih 2wk
[tems that may be reclassified to profit or loss: ABEE#T PR B EE -
Exchange differences on translating foreign BMEIRINSEPEENER =8
operations 19,858 50,663
Exchange differences reclassified to profit or loss 2484 H & 5IME S BEHIE N =58
on disposal of foreign operations (334) 6,425
Release of exchange reserve upon FEEH— M B A BlA FE RO EE KR
deregistration of a subsidiary (157) -
Other comprehensive income for the year, FRAEMEEWE & HIRHE
net of tax 19,367 57,088
Total comprehensive income for the year FRAZHEKZEEE 12,463 73,630
Attributable to: LU A B4 :
Equity shareholders of the Company RA AR 12,487 69,953
Non-controlling interests SRR (24) 3,677
12,463 73,630
JERER EEAR A A
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
e AR R R

At 31 December 2021
#20214F12831H

2021 2020
20214 20204
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Non-current assets RBEE
Property, plant and equipment W%~ B k& 19 287,589 296,245
Right-of-use assets EREEE 20 25,814 25,246
Goodwill = 21 - =
Intangible assets mAE 22 608 780
Other non-current assets HEtIEmEEE 1,480 1,897
Contract assets BHEE 26 26,191 18,152
Deferred tax assets FEEFLIBE E 32 106 1,368
Total non-current assets FRBEERE 341,788 343,688
Current assets REBEE
Financial assets at fair value through RARBEEEREZSETA
profit or loss (“FVTPL") gHB=([MAREAET=
BE#Z#HT AZHERE DK
TREE 27 - 1,442
Inventories FE 24 5,990 7,692
Trade and other receivables E 5 e koA K E A R U R IE 25 180,322 190,960
Current tax assets BIHARLIB & B 8,803 3,172
Bank and cash balances IRITRIRE R 28 344,940 326,060
Total current assets REBEEAE 540,055 529,326
Current liabilities RBAE
Trade and other payables B 5 e FRIE R E A FE (I 5RIE 34 15,585 21,290
Contract liabilities BHEE 35 - 115
Lease liabilities HEBRE 36 656 1,067
Deferred government grants iR AU 60 B 33 287 280
Current tax liabilities BIHTIE & E 11,990 9,969
Total current liabilities REEERE 28,518 32,721
Net current assets REEEFE 511,537 496,605
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRBAE 853,325 840,293

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited
Annual Report 2021



Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
FEMBRRE

At 31 December 2021
M2021F12A31H

2021 2020
202145 20204
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Non-current liabilities kREBEE
Lease liabilities HEAE 36 14,591 14,847
Deferred tax liabilities BEFIESE 32 7,472 6,549
Deferred government grants IR IE B 6 B 33 5,933 6,055
Total non-current liabilities FARBAEREE 27,996 27,451
NET ASSETS REE 825,329 812,842
CAPITAL AND RESERVES EXRR #E
Share capital [N 29 6,085 6,085
Reserves Ee 31 819,244 806,757
Total equity R 825,329 812,842

Approved by the Board of Directors on 31 March 2022 and are signed on ~ HEF €/ 202243 A31 BLEL R TIIATRKRE

its behalf by: FEEE -
Guo Yumin Xia Yu
BER BR

JERZEREBERAR 91
20214F 3R



92

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
mEEREER

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE2021F 128318 LFE

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
FRTRERRER

Capital Share-based
Share Share  redemption Capital ~ Statutory  payments  Exchange Retained

Note capital  premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve profits
&% HRHRER
st &%  REE  RERE  EARRE  iERR  OxMBE  EXBE  REEH

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ThR Tin T TEL T T

Sub-total

/J\%f
HK$'000

Non-
controlling
interests

FERER
HK$'000

Total
equity

3
HK$'000.
%

At 1 January 2020 202051818 6,085 601,211 53 68,665 44279 18,200 (64,287) 91,445 765,651 - 765,651
Total comprehensive income ErzEbEEE

for the year - - - - - - 54,900 15,053 69,953 3677 73,630
Share-based payments WRARERNER 3 - - - - - 63 - - 63 - 63
Lapse of share options BRERN - - - - - (3,035) - 3035 = = =
Appropriation to Statutory reserve  AREEEESE - - - - 1,730 - - (1,730) = = =
Partal disposal of a subsiciary without  BAHE—E AR

Joss of control EZHBAA 38(0) - - - - - - - 1516 1516 28,108 29,624
Disposal of subsidiares LENBAF 38) - - - - - - - - - (31,785) (31,785)
Transfer upon disposal of subsidiaries (£ EMEATEEA - - - - (11,831) = = 11,831 = = =
Diddend paid 2fie - - - - - - o) (a3 S )
Changes in eqity for the year EPERRD) - - - - (10,107) (2972) 54,900 5,364 47,191 - 47,191
At 31 December 2020 20205128318 6,085 601,211 53 68,665 34178 15,228 (9,387) 96,809 812,842 - 812,842
At 1 January 2021 R01E1A1R 6,085 601,211 5 68,665 34178 15,228 (9,387) 96,809 812,842 - 812,842
Total comprehensive income FhEENREE

for the year - - - - - - 19,281 (6,794) 12,487 (24) 12,463
Capital injection from a non-controlling —FEHBA IR

shareholder of a subsidiary fRRHEE = = = = - - - - - 4373 4313
Appropriation to statutory reserve  ARZ AT = - = = 2029 = = (2,029) = = =
Disposal of a subsidiary LENRAT 38(3) - - - - - - - - - (4349) (4,349)
Changes in equity for the year FREREY - - - - 2,029 - 19,281 (8823) 12,487 - 12,487
At 31 December 2021 20215128318 6,085 601,211 53 68,665 36,207 15,228 9,894 87,986 825,329 - 825329

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited
Annual Report 2021



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
GERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2021

HE2021F 128318 ILFE

2021 2020
20214 20204
HK$°000 HK$'000
FTHET T
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES &K&EZEMEBRELEMKE
(Loss)/profit before tax AT (E8), %A
Continuing operations SIS TS (6,129) 14,226
Discontinued operations RS 16 = 6,144
(6,129) 20,370
Adjustments for: FHEIER -
Write off of property, plant and equipment YIZ - BRE R E 13 25 182
Allowance for inventories FERE 13 387 =
Allowance for trade and other receivables, net 2 5 FEUZRTE K E {th fE UL
IR R 13 14,611 11,137
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries HEH B A R R EE 1,809 3,666
Amortisation of deferred government grants R AE R R B 33 (282) (264)
Amortisation of intangible assets T B B 22 211 389
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment  #1% - BE K& ETE 19 18,391 31,898
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEENE 20 1,698 3,977
Finance costs BhE AN 970 3,831
Interest income F B WA (6,445) (5,499)
Unrealised loss on investment in equity securities BEANE 518 & H) R £430 5518 10 1,442 254
Gain on deregistration of a subsidiary XD [T EEANGIE 6 10 (1,953) =
Gain on disposal of property, plant and HEYIZE - BRE REERN
equipment e (67) (253)
Equity settled share-based payments VAR 2= 45 B DA (0 R ETR Y
A - 63
Operating profit before working capital changes %8 & & & 8 B HY AL & 3 | 24,668 69,751
Increase in inventories FEEM (16,135) (25,895)
Increase in trade and other receivables & 5 R GRIE R H A FE R
FIAZAN (1.621) (42,614)
(Increase)/decrease in contract assets BHVEEE), SR (8,039) 41,246
Decrease in other non-current assets Hib3Eme & @R 417 153
(Decrease)/increase in trade and other payables & 5 B 308 & H b fEf+
FIECRA),/ 0 (3.219) 67,663
Decrease in contract liabilities aRaEmd (115) (687)
Cash (used in)/generated from operations KRR (FTA) iSRS (4,044) 109,617
Income taxes paid BEAFTEH (2,426) (3,043)
Income taxes refunded BIRFTISH 174 1,079
Interest on lease liabilities HEAEMNE (970) (1,238)
Net cash (used in)/generated from operating e EE(FTA) s &
activities JHEE (7.266) 106,415
JERER EEAR A A

20214F 3R



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
HEBEERER

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12A318LEFE

2021 2020
20215 20204

HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET TET

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES ®BREFEFBSERERE

Disposal of subsidiaries HEHBA A 38(a) & (b) 8,230 74,143
Purchases of property, plant and equipment BEYXE  BEREE 19 (1,988) (4,786)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and HEME - BE KREHEE

equipment FIE 67 357
Payments for right-of-use assets EREEERNRK 20 (1,590) =
Interest received BUFIE 6,445 5,499
Net cash generated from investing activities KEEBMERESFE 11,164 75,213

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES BEEEIFIBERERE

Capital injection from a non-controlling —EMT B A R SRR AR R A

shareholder of a subsidiary B 4,373 -
Bank borrowings raised EERTER - 24,603
Repayment of bank borrowings BEBIBTER = (72,197)
Principal elements of lease payments HENTHNAEAS (1,071) (2,948)
Dividend paid to equity shareholders of the BT TARR AR A

Company &S - (24,341)
Interest paid BEAFE = (2,593)
Proceeds from partial disposal of a subsidiary o S — B EERES

without loss of control Bt A Bl 2 PSR 38(c) - 29,624
Net cash generated from/(used in) financing BEEEAE S (FTA)ES

activities Pkl 3,302 (47,852)
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND HeRRESEEEBEREMFHRE

CASH EQUIVALENTS 7,200 133,776
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes EREHTE 11,680 26,846
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS MA1ENRERBEEE

AT 1 JANUARY HE 326,060 165,438
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS RI2A3MBNRERESEE

AT 31 DECEMBER HE 344,940 326,060
ANALYSIS OF CASH AND RERASEERB DM

CASH EQUIVALENTS
Bank and cash balances RITRIRE R 344,940 326,060

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited
Annual Report 2021



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GENERAL INFORMATION

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited (the “Company”)
was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 24 February 2012 and
registered as an exempted company with limited liability under
Companies Law, Chapter 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and
revised) of the Cayman Islands. The Company and its subsidiaries
hereinafter are collectively referred to as the “Group”. The address
of its registered office is Windward 3, Regatta Office Park, PO Box
1350, Grand Cayman KY1-1108, Cayman Islands. The address of
its principal place of business is Unit 1903, 19/F, Jubilee Centre, 18
Fenwick Street, Wan Chai, Hong Kong. The Company’s shares were
listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) since 13 July 2012.

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its subsidiaries are set out in Note 23 to the consolidated
financial statements.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, Sheen Tai Group
Holding Limited, a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands
(the “BVI"), is the immediate and ultimate parent and Mr. Guo
Yumin, a director of the Company, is the ultimate controlling party
of the Company.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA"). HKFRSs comprise
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS"); Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKAS”); and Interpretations. These
consolidated financial statements also comply with the applicable
disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) and with the disclosure
requirements of the Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622). Significant
accounting policies adopted by the Group are disclosed below.

e M HRAR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE2021F12A318LFE

—REHR

IEZREAR B AR A E ([ ARAF 1) R20124F2
R24ARBEFREHSENIE22E A FA(1961
FEIFEN - RiFaREFT ) ERSRHST
MK B —RERRERAR o NA R REM
BARGBAIASE] - RATMEMEE
Bz 30 3F A Windward 3, Regatta Office Park, PO
Box 1350, Grand Cayman KY1-1108, Cayman
Islands « NA R E EEE B BB LT D1
18RRI 0219121903 % - AR AR A
201257 A 13ABRBEBHAER AR QA
(TBSEAZPT 1) =R T -

ARR R—HREERAR - HHBARNE
2 EBEIINERE M B HRRME23

ARBEZRR @ IBREEIZERAR AR (RHE
BBRES((RBEARES])EMAR
RADRERNREE AR MARTAERDE
LR BARBMREEST

mRERE

ZEFEVBRROCEREESHMAS (&
BEIEAE EMNAEEREBH RS
ZR([FBMBREER D MRS - BEUH
BEEBRBEBUHRS LR ([ HBHER
SEA) - FAGTER([FAG LR
K2RE - ZFHREMH MR INETH R FTE S
ERRANT ETRAD 2 EBRABEEHRI R AT
fRHIF622B 2 WRME - NEBRMANEAS
ATBORIERANT o

JERZEREBERAR
20214F 3R
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BHRERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12A318LEFE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONTINUED)

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs that are first
effective or available for early adoption for the current accounting
period of the Group. Note 3 provides information on any changes
in accounting policies resulting from initial application of these
developments to the extent that they are relevant to the Group
for the current and prior accounting periods reflected in these
consolidated financial statements.

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

(a) Application of new and revised HKFRSs

The HKICPA has issued a number of amendments to HKFRSs
that are first effective for the current accounting period of
the Group.

None of these developments have had a material effect on
how the Group's results and financial position for the current
or prior periods have been prepared or presented. The Group
has not applied any new standard or interpretation that is not
yet effective for the current accounting period.

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited
Annual Report 2021
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (CONTINUED)

(b) New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective

The Group has not applied any new and revised HKFRSs that
have been issued but are not yet effective for the financial
year beginning 1 January 2021. These new and revised
HKFRSs include the following which may be relevant to the
Group.

Amendment to HKFRS 16 Leases — COVID-19 Related Rent Concessions beyond 30 June 2021
BT HREERE 165 (8514) 2202146 A30H ATHICOVID- 1940 £ E R

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Business Combination — Reference to the Conceptual Framework

3.

BRMBREENEIRUER) ZEBA G —HSMER 2R

Amendments to HKAS 16 Property, plant and equipment: Proceeds before Intended Use

ARG EAFSREATAR) 2WE - BB MR : (FRERZRIZPAEHIER

Amendments to HKAS 37 Onerous contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a Contract

ARG EAEI7RETR) ZBEAHN —BITAHMRAR

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020 Cycle
BBV EZER20185F £20204F 2 FEHBGE

RE B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12A318LEFE

@g%ﬁ&@%ﬂ%%%ﬁﬁ%ﬁ%

(b) CREM{E R4 BV HTR] R AE 1S
Rl BB BREZER

RNEEEREBTAE BMAE KR
202141 A1 BB M I EE £ A
I REMERT BB RS 2R o I gE AR
SEABNF ] RS BB RS %
BIBIETEIE

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after

HEEF B#is 2 &
BN ETHBER

1 April 2021
20214818

1 January 2022
20221 H1H

1 January 2022
20221 H1H

1 January 2022
20221 H1H

1 January 2022
20221 °1H

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current

ARG EAE1RERTAN) BB ERREKIFR

Amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements and HKFRS Practice Statement
2 Making Materiality Judgements — Disclosure of Accounting Policies

BB GETERIF R (BEIAR) 2 BB 2 VA R BBV S B mEF 25 2 1F
HEE M — R ECR

Amendments to HKAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors —
Definition of Accounting Estimates

ARG EAESR(ERTA) 2 BFTHRE - St EE REER -G AANER

Amendments to HKAS 12 Income Taxes — Deferred Tax Related to Assets and Liabilities
Arising from a Single Transaction

BRGEUE12RUETR) ZHEH - BE - HELNEER B ERBEELENIA

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
what the impact of these amendments and new standards
is expected to be in the period of initial application. So far it
has concluded that the adoption of them is unlikely to have a
significant impact on the consolidated financial statements.

i RS

J& PR HRfE ey (i &

1 January 2023
2023F1H1H

1 January 2023

2023F1R31H

1 January 2023
2023F1H1H
1 January 2023

2023F1H1H

AR EERHEZFERT R EANEE IR
2 -HEAFDSLE
ER AT BE AR & AT R
RELABAZE

JERZEREBERAR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BHRERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12A318LEFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared under
the historical cost convention, unless mentioned otherwise in the
accounting policies below (e.g. certain financial instruments that are
measured at fair value).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRS
requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also
requires management to exercise its judgement in the process
of applying the Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving
a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the consolidated
financial statements are disclosed in Note 5.

The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of
these consolidated financial statements are set out below.

(a) Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries made up to
31 December. Subsidiaries are entities over which the Group
has control. The Group controls an entity when it is exposed,
or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with
the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through
its power over the entity. The Group has power over an entity
when the Group has existing rights that give it the current
ability to direct the relevant activities, i.e. activities that
significantly affect the entity’s returns.

When assessing control, the Group considers its potential
voting rights as well as potential voting rights held by other
parties. A potential voting right is considered only if the
holder has the practical ability to exercise that right.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which control is
transferred to the Group. They are de-consolidated from the
date the control ceases.

The gain or loss on the disposal of a subsidiary that results
in a loss of control represents the difference between (i) the
fair value of the consideration of the sale plus the fair value
of any investment retained in that subsidiary and (ii) the
Company’s share of the net assets of that subsidiary plus any
remaining goodwill and any accumulated exchange reserve
relating to that subsidiary.

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited
Annual Report 2021
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MR RME

For the year ended 31 December 2021

HE2021F 128318 IL5FE
4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 4. FESHHBE(E)
(a) Consolidation (continued) (a) #ZEBRBE (&)

Intragroup transactions, balances and unrealised profits are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the
policies adopted by the Group.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in subsidiaries
not attributable, directly or indirectly, to the Company.
Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position and consolidated statement
of changes in equity within equity. Non-controlling interests
are presented in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income as an allocation of profit or loss and
total comprehensive income for the year between the non-
controlling shareholders and equity shareholders of the
Company.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the equity shareholders of the
Company and to the non-controlling shareholders even if
this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance.

Changes in the Company’s ownership interest in a subsidiary
that do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as
equity transactions (i.e. transactions with owners in their
capacity as owners). The carrying amounts of the controlling
and non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the
changes in their relative interests in the subsidiary. Any
difference between the amount by which the non-controlling
interests are adjusted and the fair value of the consideration
paid or received is recognised directly in equity and attributed
to the equity shareholders of the Company.

In the Company'’s statement of financial position, investments
in subsidiaries are stated at cost less impairment loss, unless
the investment is classified as held for sale (or included in a
disposal group that is classified as held for sale).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BHRERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12A318LEFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(b) Business combination and goodwiill

The acquisition method is used to account for the acquisition
of a subsidiary in a business combination. The consideration
transferred in a business combination is measured at
the acquisition-date fair value of the assets given, equity
instruments issued, liabilities incurred and any contingent
consideration. Acquisition-related costs are recognised as
expenses in the periods in which the costs are incurred and
the services are received. Identifiable assets and liabilities
of the subsidiary in the acquisition are measured at their
acquisition-date fair values.

The excess of the sum of the consideration transferred over
the Group’s share of the net fair value of the subsidiary’s
identifiable assets and liabilities is recorded as goodwill.
Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of
the identifiable assets and liabilities over the sum of the
consideration transferred is recognised in consolidated profit
or loss as a gain on bargain purchase which is attributed to
the Group.

In a business combination achieved in stages, the previously
held equity interest in the subsidiary is remeasured at its
acquisition-date fair value and the resulting gain or loss
is recognised in consolidated profit or loss. The fair value
is added to the sum of the consideration transferred in a
business combination to calculate the goodwill.

The non-controlling interests in the subsidiary are initially
measured at the non-controlling shareholders’ proportionate
share of the net fair value of the subsidiary’s identifiable assets
and liabilities at the acquisition date.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost
less accumulated impairment losses. For the purpose
of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business
combination is allocated to each of the cash-generating units
("CGUs") or groups of CGUs that is expected to benefit
from the synergies of the combination. Each unit or group of
units to which the goodwill is allocated represents the lowest
level within the Group at which the goodwill is monitored
for internal management purposes. Goodwill impairment
reviews are undertaken annually, or more frequently if events
or changes in circumstances indicate a potential impairment.
The carrying value of the CGU containing the goodwill is
compared to its recoverable amount, which is the higher
of value in use and the fair value less costs of disposal. Any
impairment is recognised immediately as an expense and is
not subsequently reversed.

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(c) Foreign currency translation

(i)

(ii)

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of
the Group's entities are measured using the currency of
the primary economic environment in which the entity
operates (the “functional currency”). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars (“HK$"), which is the Company’s functional and
presentation currency.

Transactions and balances in each entity’s
financial statements

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into
the functional currency on initial recognition using the
exchange rates prevailing on the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are
translated at the exchange rates at the end of each
reporting period. Gains and losses resulting from this
translation policy are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling at
the transaction dates. The transaction date is the date
on which the company initially recognises such non-
monetary assets or liabilities. Non-monetary items that
are measured at fair value in foreign currencies are
translated using the exchange rates at the dates when
the fair values are determined.

When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item is
recognised in other comprehensive income, any
exchange component of that gain or loss is recognised
in other comprehensive income. When a gain or loss on
a non-monetary item is recognised in profit or loss, any
exchange component of that gain or loss is recognised
in profit or loss.

mEMBHRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12A318LEFE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BHRERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12A318LEFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(c) Foreign currency translation (continued)

(iii)

Translation on consolidation

The results and financial position of all the Group
entities that have a functional currency different from
the Company’s presentation currency are translated
into the Company’s presentation currency as follows:

- Assets and liabilities for each statement of
financial position presented are translated at
the closing rate at the date of that statement of
financial position;

- Income and expenses are translated at average
exchange rates for the period (unless this
average is not a reasonable approximation of
the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on
the transaction dates, in which case income and
expenses are translated at the exchange rates on
the transaction dates); and

- All resulting exchange differences are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in the exchange reserve.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from
the translation of monetary items that form part of
the net investment in foreign entities are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in
the exchange reserve. When a foreign operation is
sold, such exchange differences are reclassified to
consolidated profit or loss as part of the gain or loss on
disposal.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets and
liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at the
closing rate.

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(d) Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are held for use in the
production or supply of goods or services, or for administrative
purposes (other than properties under construction as
described below). Property, plant and equipment are stated
in the consolidated statement of financial position at cost,
less subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount
or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when
it is probable that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are
recognised in profit or loss during the period in which they
are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated
at rates sufficient to write off their cost less their residual
values over the estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis.
The estimated useful lives are as follows:

Solar power plants 20 years
Buildings 20 years
Plant and machinery 5-20 years
Office equipment and others 3-5 years
Motor vehicles 4-5 years
Yacht 5 years

The residual values, useful lives and depreciation method are
reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at the end of each
reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate
accounted for on a prospective basis.

Construction in progress represents buildings under
construction and plant and equipment pending installation,
and is stated at cost less impairment losses. Depreciation
begins when the relevant assets are available for use.

The gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment
is the difference between the net sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the relevant asset, and is recognised in
profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12A318LEFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(e) Leases

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether the

contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains,
a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use
of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration. Control is conveyed where the customer has
both the right to direct the use of the identified asset and to
obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from that use.

(i)

The Group as a lessee

Where the contract contains lease component(s) and
non-lease component(s), the Group has elected not
to separate non-lease components and accounts for
each lease component and any associated non-lease
components as a single lease component for all leases.

At the lease commencement date, the Group
recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability,
except for short-term leases that have a lease term
of 12 months or less and leases of low-value assets.
When the Group enters into a lease in respect of a low-
value asset, the Group decides whether to capitalise
the lease on a lease-by-lease basis. The lease payments
associated with those leases which are not capitalised
are recognised as an expense on a systematic basis over
the lease term.

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease liability is
initially recognised at the present value of the lease
payments payable over the lease term, discounted
using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that
rate cannot be readily determined, using a relevant
incremental borrowing rate. After initial recognition,
the lease liability is measured at amortised cost and
interest expense is calculated using the effective
interest method. Variable lease payments that do
not depend on an index or rate are not included in
the measurement of the lease liability and hence are
charged to profit or loss in the accounting period in
which they are incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(e) Leases (continued)

(i)

The Group as a lessee (continued)

The right-of-use asset recognised when a lease is
capitalised is initially measured at cost, which comprises
the initial amount of the lease liability plus any lease
payments made at or before the commencement
date, and any initial direct costs incurred. Where
applicable, the cost of the right-of-use assets also
includes an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove
the underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset
or the site on which it is located, discounted to their
present value, less any lease incentives received. The
right-of-use asset is subsequently stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses,
except for the right-of-use assets related to interests
in leasehold land where the interest in the land is held
as inventory are carried at the lower of cost and net
realisable value in accordance with Note 4(i).

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably
certain to obtain ownership of the underlying leased
assets at the end of the lease term are depreciated
from commencement date to the end of the useful
life. Otherwise, right-of-use assets are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the shorter of its estimated useful
life and the lease term.

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted
under HKFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value.
Adjustments to fair value at initial recognition are
considered as additional lease payments and included
in the cost of right-of-use assets.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12A318LEFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(e)

(f)

(9)

Leases (continued)
(i) The Group as a lessee (continued)

The lease liability is remeasured when there is a change
in future lease payments arising from a change in
an index or rate, or there is a change in the Group's
estimate of the amount expected to be payable under
a residual value guarantee, or there is a change arising
from the reassessment of whether the Group will be
reasonably certain to exercise a purchase, extension
or termination option. When the lease liability is
remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is
made to the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset,
or is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of
the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.

(ii) The Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it determines at lease
inception whether each lease is a finance lease or an
operating lease. A lease is classified as a finance lease
if it transfers substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to the ownership of an underlying assets to
the lessee. If this is not the case, the lease is classified as
an operating lease.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Software is stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and
impairment losses. Amortisation is calculated on a straight-
line basis over their estimated useful lives of 3 to 5 years.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined using the weighted average basis.
The cost of finished goods and work in progress comprises
raw materials, direct labour and an appropriate proportion of
all production overhead expenditure, and where appropriate,
subcontracting charges. Net realisable value is the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the
estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs
necessary to make the sale.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(h) Contract assets and contract liabilities

Contract asset is recognised when the Group recognises
revenue before being unconditionally entitled to the
consideration under the payment terms set out in the
contract. Contract assets are assessed for expected credit
losses (“ECL") in accordance with the policy set out in Note
4(aa) and are reclassified to receivables when the right to the
consideration has become unconditional.

A contract liability is recognised when the customer pays
consideration before the Group recognises the related
revenue. A contract liability would also be recognised if the
Group has an unconditional right to receive consideration
before the Group recognises the related revenue. In such
cases, a corresponding receivable would also be recognised.

For a single contract with the customer, either a net contract
asset or a net contract liability is presented. For multiple
contracts, contract assets and contract liabilities of unrelated
contracts are not presented on a net basis.

When the contract includes a significant financing
component, the contract balance includes interest accrued
under the effective interest method.

Properties under development and held for
sale

Properties for sale under development and held for sale are
stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Costs
include the acquisition cost of interest in leasehold land,
construction costs, borrowing costs capitalised and other
direct costs attributable to such properties. Net realisable
value is the estimated selling price, less the estimated costs
of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the
sale.

On completion, the properties are reclassified to properties
held for sale at the then carrying amount.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12A318LEFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

()]

Recognition and derecognition of financial
instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in
the consolidated statement of financial position when the
Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at
FVTPL) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the
financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at FVTPL
are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.
If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Group recognises its retained interest
in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may
have to pay. If the Group retains substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset,
the Group continues to recognise the financial asset and
also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds
received.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group's obligations are discharged, cancelled or
have expired. The difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid
and payable, including any non-cash assets transferred or
liabilities assumed, is recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(k)

Financial assets

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are
recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame
established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.
All recognised financial assets are measured subsequently in
their entirety at either amortised cost or fair value, depending
on the classification of the financial assets.

Debt investments

Debt investments held by the Group are classified into
amortised cost, if the investment is held for the collection of
contractual cash flows which represent solely payments of
principal and interest. Interest income from the investment is
calculated using the effective interest method.

Equity securities

An investment in equity securities is classified as FVTPL unless
the equity investment is not held for trading purposes and
on initial recognition of the investment the Group makes an
election to designate the investment at fair value through
other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”) (non-recycling)
such that subsequent changes in fair value are recognised in
other comprehensive income. Such elections are made on an
instrument-by-instrument basis, but may only be made if the
investment meets the definition of equity from the issuer’s
perspective. Where such an election is made, the amount
accumulated in other comprehensive income remains in
the fair value reserve (non-recycling) until the investment is
disposed of. At the time of disposal, the amount accumulated
in the fair value reserve (non-recycling) is transferred to
retained profits. It is not recycled through profit or loss.
Dividends from an investment in equity securities, irrespective
of whether classified as at FVTPL or FVTOCI, are recognised in
profit or loss as other income.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12A318LEFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

)

(m)

(n)

Trade and other receivables

A receivable is recognised when the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration. A right to
receive consideration is unconditional if only the passage of
time is required before payment of that consideration is due.
If revenue has been recognised before the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration, the amount is
presented as a contract asset.

Receivables are stated at amortised cost using the effective
interest method less allowance for credit losses.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on
hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, having
been within three months of maturity at acquisition. Bank
overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form an integral
part of the Group’s cash management are also included as
a component of cash and cash equivalents for the purpose
of the consolidated statement of cash flows. Cash and cash
equivalents are assessed for ECL.

Discontinued operations

A discontinued operation is a component of the Group
(i.e. the operations and cash flows of which can be clearly
distinguished from the rest of the Group) that either has
been disposed of, or is classified as held for sale, and which
represents a separate major line of business or geographical
area of operations, or is part of a single co-ordinated plan to
dispose of a separate major line of business or geographical
area of operations, or is a subsidiary acquired exclusively with
a view to resale.

Classification as a discontinued operation occurs upon
disposal or when the component meets the criteria to be
classified as held for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5, if
earlier. It also occurs when the component is abandoned.

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited
Annual Report 2021

4,

EERERBER(K)
() EZEWIREAREEWRE

(m)

(n)

FEWER TN A R B EGR R ERREZ
REMBFRERR o fil SRR EERLBR
maA e R - RIS ERER S SR
o MAERE BRES B UERED

BN pTER - RS RERRNEE
E2 I

FEUPRTRIR A BB N TR R L E R R AR
1 BN ARZES o

ReERBEEERAE

ReMBRLEEBERERBITRTEA
T FRRRTT R E S REE 2R HTF
K ARATRER SRR AT BRI S -
WASBEEEREE R MNEAR=E
ARz B RBIERE - SRS
BRERERMNE @ R MRLFERAR
MEREHEERE  YERAKERE &2
—EOMRITER - RERAEFEEAR
RIEMEEERNE -

EBRILEEERE

ERIREEBRAKECHER DR
RAFEERER AR (B AL EER T HY
LENMREAREREESNEENRRS
mE)  WRRBIMNEREFHE BN
& TR REEBE T RER R EL
B E— BRI —& D - AR
REEMBANKEAR -

DERERIERLERBER L ER RN
NARBEEBVBREEMNESHROBRR
FIEHENRER UAREERE)EE -
HINE N MR R &



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(n)

(o)

(p)

(a)

Discontinued operations (continued)

When an operation is classified as discontinued, a single
amount is presented in the statement of profit or loss, which
comprises:

- The post-tax profit or loss of the discontinued
operation; and

- The post-tax gain or loss recognised on the
measurement to fair value less costs to sell, or on the
disposal, of the assets or disposal group constituting
the discontinued operation.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments are classified
according to the substance of the contractual arrangements
entered into and the definitions of a financial liability and
an equity instrument under HKFRSs. An equity instrument is
any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of
the Group after deducting all of its liabilities. The accounting
policies adopted for specific financial liabilities and equity
instruments are set out below.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred, and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group
has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability
for at least 12 months after the reporting period.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at their fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method unless the effect of discounting
would be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12A318LEFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(r)

(s)

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidence a residual
interest in the assets of an entity after deducing all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Revenue and other income

Revenue is recognised when control over a product or service
is transferred to the customer, at the amount of promised
consideration to which the Group is expected to be entitled,
excluding those amounts collected on behalf of third parties.
Revenue excludes value added tax (“VAT") or other sales
taxes and is after deduction of any trade discounts.

(i) Sales of goods

Revenue from the sale of manufactured goods is
recognised when control of the goods has transferred,
being when the goods have been shipped to the
customer’s specific location (delivery) and accepted
by the customer. Following delivery and acceptance,
the customer has full discretion over the manner of
distribution and price to sell the goods, has the primary
responsibility when on selling the goods and bears the
risks of obsolescence and loss in relation to the goods.
A receivable is recognised by the Group when the
goods are delivered to and accepted by the customer
as this represents the point in time at which the right
to consideration becomes unconditional, as only the
passage of time is required before payment is due.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(s) Revenue and other income (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

Sales of properties

Revenue from sale of completed properties is
recognised when control of the properties are
transferred, being when the construction of the
relevant properties has been completed and the
properties have been delivered, which is the point in
time when the customer has the ability to direct the
use of the property and obtain substantially all of the
remain benefits of the property. Revenue from sale of
properties excludes business tax and other sales related
taxes and is after deduction of any discounts allowed.
Deposits and instalments received on properties sold
prior to the date of revenue recognition are included in
the consolidated statement of financial position under
contract liabilities.

Sales of electricity

Revenue from sale of electricity is recognised in the
accounting period when electricity is generated and
supplied to the provincial power grid. Revenue excludes
VAT or other sales taxes.

Operation revenue of cloud platforms

Operation revenue of cloud platforms is recognised
when the services are rendered.

Rental income

Rental income receivable under operating leases is
recognised in profit or loss in equal instalments over
the periods covered by the lease term, except where an
alternative basis is more representative of the pattern of
benefits to be derived from the use of the leased asset.
Lease incentives granted are recognised in profit or loss
as an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
receivable. Variable lease payments that do not depend
on an index or a rate are recognised as income in the
accounting period in which they are earned.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BHRERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12A318LEFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(s) Revenue and other income (continued)
(vi) Dividends

- Dividend income from unlisted investments
is recognised when the shareholder’s right to
receive payment is established.

- Dividend income from listed investments
is recognised when the share price of the
investment goes ex-dividend.

(vii) Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the
effective interest method. For financial assets measured
at amortised cost that are not credit-impaired, the
effective interest rate is applied to the gross carrying
amount of the asset. For credit impaired financial assets,
the effective interest rate is applied to the amortised
cost (i.e. gross carrying amount net of loss allowance)
of the asset.

(t) Employee benefits
(i) Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long service
leave are recognised when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for annual
leave and long service leave as a result of services
rendered by employees up to the end of the reporting
period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave
are not recognised until the time of leave.

The Group operates various post-employments schemes,
including defined contribution pension plans.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(t) Employee benefits (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Pension obligations

The Group operates a mandatory provident fund
scheme (the "MPF Scheme”) under the Hong Kong
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for
all qualifying employees in Hong Kong. The Group's
contributions to the MPF Scheme are calculated at
5% of the salaries and wages subject to a monthly
maximum amount of HK$1,500 per employee and vest
fully with employees when contributed into the MPF
Scheme.

The employees of the Group in the People’s Republic
of China (the “PRC") are members of central pension
schemes operated by the local municipal governments
(the “PRC Retirement Schemes”). The Group is required
to contribute certain percentage of the employees’
basic salaries and wages to the central pension schemes
to fund the retirement benefits. The local municipal
governments undertake to assume the retirement
benefits obligations of all existing and future retired
employees of the Group. The only obligation of the
Group with respect to the central pension schemes is
to meet the required contributions under the schemes.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of
the dates when the Group can no longer withdraw the
offer of those benefits, and when the Group recognises
restructuring costs and involves the payment of
termination benefits.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BHRERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12A318LEFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(u) Share-based payments

(v)

The Group issues equity-settled share-based payments to
certain directors, employees and consultants.

Equity-settled share-based payments to directors and
employees are measured at the fair value (excluding the
effect of non-market based vesting conditions) of the equity
instruments at the date of grant. The fair value determined
at the grant date of the equity-settled share-based payments
is expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting period,
based on the Group’s estimate of shares that will eventually
vest and adjusted for the effect of non-market based vesting
conditions.

Equity-settled share-based payments to consultants are
measured at the fair value of the services rendered or, if
the fair value of the services rendered cannot be reliably
measured, at the fair value of the equity instruments granted.
The fair value is measured at the date the Group receives the
services and is recognised as an expense.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part
of the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale. Investment
income earned on the temporary investment of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is
deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(v)

(w)

Borrowing costs (continued)

To the extent that funds are borrowed generally and used
for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset, the amount
of borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation is determined
by applying a capitalisation rate to the expenditures on
that asset. The capitalisation rate is the weighted average
of the borrowing costs applicable to the borrowings of the
Group that are outstanding during the period, other than
borrowings made specifically for the purpose of obtaining
a qualifying asset. Any specific borrowing that remain
outstanding after the related asset is ready for its intended
use or sale is included in the general borrowing pool for
calculation of capitalisation rate on general borrowings.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred.

Government grants

A government grant is recognised when there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions
attaching to it and that the grant will be received.

Government grants relating to income are deferred and
recognised in profit or loss over the period to match them
with the costs they are intended to compensate.

Government grants that become receivable as compensation
for expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose
of giving immediate financial support to the Group with no
future related costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they become receivable.

Government grants relating to the purchase of assets are
recorded as deferred income and recognised in profit or loss
on a straight-line basis over the useful lives of the related
assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BHRERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12A318LEFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(x) Taxation

Income tax represents the sum of the current tax and
deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit recognised in profit or
loss because of items of income or expense that are taxable
or deductible in other years and items that are never taxable
or deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is calculated
using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used
in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities
are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences
and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that
it is probable that taxable profits will be available against
which deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses or
unused tax credits can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities
are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from
goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a
business combination) of other assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries, except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MR RME

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12A318LEFE

EERERBER(K)
BiIE (&)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 4.

(x) Taxation (continued) (x)

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected
to apply in the period when the liability is settled or the
asset is realised, based on tax rates that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
Deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except when it
relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity, in which case the deferred tax is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity.

The measurement of deferred tax assets and liabilities reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period,
to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and
liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing
transactions in which the Group recognises the right-of-
use assets and the related lease liabilities, the Group first
determines whether the tax deductions are attributable to the
right-of-use assets or the lease liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are
attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group applies HKAS
12 requirements to the leasing transaction as a whole.
Temporary differences relating to right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities are assessed on a net basis. Excess of depreciation
on right-of-use assets over the lease payments for the
principal portion of lease liabilities resulting in net deductible
temporary differences.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority and the Group intends
to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BHRERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12A318LEFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(x)

(y)

(2)

Taxation (continued)

In assessing any uncertainty over income tax treatments,
the Group considers whether it is probable that the relevant
tax authority will accept the uncertain tax treatment used,
or proposed to be use by individual Group entities in their
income tax filings. If it is probable, the current and deferred
taxes are determined consistently with the tax treatment in
the income tax filings. If it is not probable that the relevant
taxation authority will accept an uncertain tax treatment, the
effect of each uncertainty is reflected by using either the most
likely amount or the expected value.

PRC land appreciation tax (“LAT")

LAT is levied at progressive rates ranging from 30% to 60%
on the appreciation of land value, being the proceeds from
sales of properties less deductible expenditures including
land costs, borrowing costs, business taxes and all property
development expenditures. LAT is recognised as an income
tax expense. LAT paid is a deductible expense for PRC
enterprise income tax purposes.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of non-financial assets are reviewed
at each reporting date for indications of impairment and
where an asset is impaired, it is written down as an expense
through the consolidated statement of profit or loss to its
estimated recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is
determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not
generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those
from other assets or groups of assets. If this is the case,
recoverable amount is determined for the CGU to which the
asset belongs. Recoverable amount is the higher of value in
use and the fair value less costs of disposal of the individual
asset or the CGU.

Value in use is the present value of the estimated future cash
flows of the asset/CGU. Present values are computed using
pre-tax discount rates that reflect the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset/CGU whose impairment is
being measured.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(2)

Impairment of non-financial assets
(continued)

Impairment losses for CGUs are allocated first against the
goodwill of the unit and then pro rata amongst the other
assets of the CGU. Subsequent increases in the recoverable
amount caused by changes in estimates are credited to profit
or loss to the extent that they reverse the impairment.

(aa) Impairment of financial assets and contracts

assets

The Group recognises a loss allowance for ECL on trade
receivables and contract assets. The amount of ECL is updated
at each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since
initial recognition of the respective financial instrument.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade
receivables and contracts assets. The ECL on these financial
assets are estimated using a provision matrix based on the
Group's historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors
that are specific to the debtors, general economic conditions
and an assessment of both the current as well as the forecast
direction of conditions at the reporting date, including time
value of money where appropriate.

For all other financial instruments, the Group recognises
lifetime ECL when there has been a significant increase in
credit risk since initial recognition. However, if the credit risk
on the financial instrument has not increased significantly
since initial recognition, the Group measures the loss
allowance for that financial instrument at an amount equal to
12-month ECL.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all
possible default events over the expected life of a financial
instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL represents the portion
of lifetime ECL that is expected to result from default events
on a financial instrument that are possible within 12 months
after the reporting date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12A318LEFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(aa) Impairment of financial assets and contracts

assets (continued)
Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk on a financial instrument
has increased significantly since initial recognition, the
Group compares the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument at the reporting date with the risk of
a default occurring on the financial instrument at the date
of initial recognition. In making this assessment, the Group
considers both quantitative and qualitative information
that is reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that is available
without undue cost or effort. Forward-looking information
considered includes the future prospects of the industries in
which the Group’s debtors operate, obtained from economic
expert reports, financial analysts, governmental bodies,
relevant think-tanks and other similar organisations, as well
as consideration of various external sources of actual and
forecast economic information that relate to the Group’s core
operations.

In particular, the following information is taken into account
when assessing whether credit risk has increased significantly
since initial recognition:

- an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
financial instrument’s external (if available) or internal
credit rating;

- significant deterioration in external market indicators of
credit risk for a particular financial instrument;

- existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected to
cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to
meet its debt obligations;

- an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor;
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MR RME

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12A318LEFE

EERERBER(K)
(aa) ERMEERSNEERE(HE)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 4.

(aa) Impairment of financial assets and contracts

assets (continued)

Significant increase in credit risk (continued) EE R (&)

- significant increases in credit risk on other financial — HEREFZAEMERTEEERR
instruments of the same debtor; EIFIZIE N

—  an actual or expected significant adverse change in the — BEBAEE  LEXRMERENE
regulatory, economic, or technological environment of B TEHAERTAES - FEE
the debtor that results in a significant decrease in the BABRTERBAREENRET
debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations. [ o

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the
Group presumes that the credit risk on a financial asset
has increased significantly since initial recognition when
contractual payments are more than 30 days past due, unless
the Group has reasonable and supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise.

Despite the foregoing, the Group assumes that the credit risk
on a financial instrument has not increased significantly since
initial recognition if the financial instrument is determined
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to have low credit risk at the reporting date. A financial ET@JIE/ AlEEeRmIAEARKEER
instrument is determined to have low credit risk if: iy
() The financial instrument has a low risk of default, () SRITAEBKZEDHRER

(i) The debtor has a strong capacity to meet its contractual
cash flow obligations in the near term, and

(i) Adverse changes in economic and business conditions
in the longer term may, but will not necessarily, reduce
the ability of the borrower to fulfil its contractual cash
flow obligations.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12A318LEFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(aa) Impairment of financial assets and contracts

assets (continued)
Significant increase in credit risk (continued)

The Group considers a financial asset to have low credit risk
when the asset has external credit rating of “investment
grade” in accordance with the globally understood definition
or if an external rating is not available, the asset has an
internal rating of “performing”. Performing means that the
counterparty has a strong financial position and there are no
past due amounts.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the criteria
used to identify whether there has been a significant increase
in credit risk and revises them as appropriate to ensure that
the criteria are capable of identifying significant increase in
credit risk before the amount becomes past due.

Definition of default

The Group considers the following as constituting an event
of default for internal credit risk management purposes as
historical experience indicates that receivables that meet
either of the following criteria are generally not recoverable.

- when there is a breach of financial covenants by the
counterparty; or

- information developed internally or obtained from
external sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely to
pay its creditors, including the Group, in full (without
taking into account any collaterals held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above analysis, the Group considers that
default has occurred when a financial asset is more than
90 days past due unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information to demonstrate that a more lagging
default criterion is more appropriate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(aa) Impairment of financial assets and contracts

assets (continued)
Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events
that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash
flows of that financial asset have occurred. Evidence that a
financial asset is credit-impaired includes observable data
about the following events:

- significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
counterparty;

- a breach of contract, such as a default or past due
event;

- the lender(s) of the counterparty, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the counterparty’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the counterparty
a concession(s) that the lender(s) would not otherwise
consider;

- it is becoming probable that the counterparty will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or

- the disappearance of an active market for that financial
asset because of financial difficulties.

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the debtor is in severe financial
difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of recovery,
including when the debtor has been placed under liquidation
or has entered into bankruptcy proceedings, or in the case
of trade receivables, when the amounts are over two years
past due, whichever occurs sooner. Financial assets written
off may still be subject to enforcement activities under the
Group's recovery procedures, taking into account legal advice
where appropriate. Any recoveries made are recognised in
profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BHRERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12A318LEFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(aa) Impairment of financial assets and contracts

assets (continued)
Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability of
default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the loss if
there is a default) and the exposure at default. The assessment
of the probability of default and loss given default is based
on historical data adjusted by forward looking information as
described above. As for the exposure at default, for financial
assets, this is represented by the assets’ gross carrying
amount at the reporting date.

For financial assets, the ECL is estimated as the difference
between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Group
in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that
the Group expects to receive, discounted at the original
effective interest rate.

If the Group has measured the loss allowance for a financial
instrument at an amount equal to lifetime ECL in the previous
reporting period, but determines at the current reporting date
that the conditions for lifetime ECL are no longer met, the
Group measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to
12-month ECL at the current reporting date, except for assets
for which simplified approach was used.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit
or loss for all financial instruments with a corresponding
adjustment to their carrying amount through a loss allowance
account.

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited
Annual Report 2021

4,

EERERBER(K)
(aa) TREERSVNEERE(H)

AHEEERNTERES

BEREEBENEREORE 2118
RE(AVBRDBREE) M2 R K
2o BHOBIEMENBRETIENMRE
AATHE LB R R B L BURRT L - 3L
BMEEMS @ ENRARREENSRS A

HRRE(E ©

HREMEEMS - BHEEEEREAD
ENAEENMAERARE RELENEH
TEERS IR T AR 2R E < MR Z5(h

it WIRVIABERRFIRRAE

A SEE R AR E R ARENFED
BEHREEBEN SR E - BMEITAN
EEEE - BRARE B REEZFESR
BREEBENGETENSE  AIAKHE

RASRE B BIZAER 1208 A B Hf

EBENSETEBEERRE - ERBEHES

TEREERRIN o

AEENBSFER A T TARNRER
S ER - B BERRRRYEREE

{EHE AR -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(ab) Provisions and contingent liabilities

(ac)

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or
amount when the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is probable
that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made.
Where the time value of money is material, provisions are
stated at the present value of the expenditures expected to
settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow is remote. Possible obligations, whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future events are also disclosed
as contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow is
remote.

Events after the reporting period

Events after the reporting period that provide additional
information about the Group’s position at the end of the
reporting period are adjusting events and are reflected in the
consolidated financial statements. Events after the reporting
period that are not adjusting events are disclosed in the notes
to the consolidated financial statements when material.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BHRERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12A318LEFE

5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES

Critical judgements in applying accounting
policies

In the process of applying the accounting policies, the directors
have made the following judgements that have the most significant
effect on the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial
statements (apart from those involving estimations, which are dealt
with below).

(a)

Revenue recognition on tariff adjustments on sales of
electricity

Tariff adjustments represent subsidy received and receivable
from the government authorities in respect of the Group's
solar power generation business.

In August 2013, the National Development and Reform
Commission of the PRC released the New Tariff Notice to
launch a new subsidising policy for distributed solar power
plants and adjusted benchmark on-grid price for electricity
generated by centralised solar power plants (which are
known as the ground solar plants).

Pursuant to the New Tariff Notice, a set of standardised
procedures for the settlement of the tariff subsidy has come
into force since 2013 and approvals for the registration in the
Renewable Energy Tariff Catalogue (the “Catalogue”) on a
project-by-project basis are required before the allocation of
funds to the state grid companies and further clarified the
procedures of the settlement of the tariff adjustment since
2020, which then would make settlement to the Group.

In accordance with new government policy as stipulated
in the New Tariff Notices since 2020, the PRC government
will not announce new additions to the existing Catalogue
and has further simplified the application and approval
process regarding the registration of tariff adjustments for
non-hydro renewable energy power plant projects into the
Renewable Energy Tariff Subsidy List (the “List”). The state
grid companies will regularly announce the List based on the
project type, time of grid connection and technical level of the
solar power projects. All solar power plants already registered
in the Catalogue will be enlisted in the List automatically.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES
(CONTINUED)

Critical judgements in applying accounting
policies (continued)

(a)

(b)

Revenue recognition on tariff adjustments on sales of
electricity (continued)

Tariff adjustments of approximately HK$32,885,000 (2020:
HK$32,214,000) recognised for the year ended 31 December
2021 are included in the sales of electricity as disclosed in
Note 8 and are recognised based on management judgement
that all of the Group’s operating power plants have qualified
for, and have met all the requirements and conditions as
required based on the prevailing nationwide government
policies on renewable energy for solar power plants.
Cumulative amount of tariff receivables relating to power
plants yet to register in the previous Catalogue and now,
the List amounting to approximately HK$26,191,000 (2020:
HK$18,152,000) remains outstanding as at the end of the
reporting period.

In making their judgement, the Directors, taking into account
the legal opinion as advised by the Group's legal advisor,
considered that all of the Group’s solar power plants currently
in operation have met the requirements and conditions as
stipulated in the New Tariff Notice for the entitlement of the
tariff adjustments when the electricity was delivered on grid.

The Directors are confident that all of the Group’s operating
power plants were able to be registered in the List in due
course and the accrued revenue on tariff subsidy are fully
recoverable but only subject to timing of allocation of funds
from the government, after considering that there are no bad
debt experiences with the state grid companies in the past
and the tariff subsidy is fully funded by the PRC government.

Significant increase in credit risk

ECL are measured as an allowance equal to 12-month ECL
for stage 1 assets, or lifetime ECL for stage 2 or stage 3 assets.
An asset moves to stage 2 when its credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition. HKFRS 9 does not
define what constitutes a significant increase in credit risk. In
assessing whether the credit risk of an asset has significantly
increased the Group takes into account qualitative and
guantitative reasonable and supportable forward looking
information.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12A318LEFE

5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES
(CONTINUED)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources
of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial

year, are discussed below.

(a)

(b)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

The Group determines the estimated useful lives, residual
values and related depreciation charges for the Group's
property, plant and equipment. This estimate is based on the
historical experience of the actual useful lives and residual
values of property, plant and equipment of similar nature
and functions. The Group will revise the depreciation charge
where useful lives and residual values are different to those
previously estimated, or it will write-off or write-down
technically obsolete or non-strategic assets that have been
abandoned.

The carrying amount of property, plant and equipment as
at 31 December 2021 was approximately HK$287,589,000
(2020: HK$296,245,000).

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in several jurisdictions.
Significant estimates are required in determining the
provision for income taxes. There are many transactions
and calculations for which the ultimate tax determination
is uncertain during the ordinary course of business. Where
the final tax outcome of these matters is different from
the amounts that were initially recorded, such differences
will impact the income tax and deferred tax provisions in
the period in which such determination is made. During
the year, income tax of approximately HK$775,000 (2020:
HK$4,439,000) was charged to profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES
(CONTINUED)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

(9]

(d)

Impairment of property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets

Property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets
are stated at costs less accumulated depreciation and
impairment, if any. In determining whether an asset is
impaired, the Group has to exercise judgement and make
estimation, particularly in assessing: (1) whether an event has
occurred or any indicators that may affect the asset value; (2)
whether the carrying value of an asset can be supported by
the recoverable amount, in the case of value in use, the net
present value of future cash flows which are estimated based
upon the continued use of the asset; and (3) the appropriate
key assumptions to be applied in estimating the recoverable
amounts including cash flow projections and an appropriate
discount rate. When it is not possible to estimate the
recoverable amount of an individual asset (including right-
of-use assets), the Group estimates the recoverable amount
of the CGU to which the asset belongs. Changing the
assumptions and estimates, including the discount rates or
the growth rate in the cash flow projections, could materially
affect the recoverable amounts.

The carrying amounts of property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets as at 31 December 2021
were HK$287,589,000 (2020: HK$296,245,000) and
HK$25,814,000 (2020: HK$25,246,000) respectively.

Impairment of trade and other receivables and contract
assets

The management of the Group estimates the amount of
impairment loss for ECL on trade and other receivables
and contract assets based on the credit risk of trade and
other receivables and contract assets. The amount of the
impairment loss based on ECL model is measured as the
difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to
the Group in accordance with the contract and all the cash
flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted at the
effective interest rate determined at initial recognition. Where
the future cash flows are less than expected, or being revised
downward due to changes in facts and circumstances, a
material impairment loss may arise.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12A318LEFE

5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES
(CONTINUED)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

(d)

(e)

Impairment of trade and other receivables and contract
assets (continued)

For the ECL assessment of loan receivable, due to greater
financial uncertainty triggered by the COVID-19 pandemic,
the Group has increased the expected loss rates in the current
year as there is high risk that a prolonged pandemic could
lead to increased credit default rates. The information about
the ECL and the Group's trade receivables and contract assets
and other financial assets at amortised cost are disclosed in
Note 6(b).

As at 31 December 2021, the carrying amount of trade and
other receivables and contract assets is HK$205,620,000 (net
of allowance for doubtful debts of HK$16,562,000) (2020:
HK$207,959,000 (net of allowance for doubtful debts of
HK$4,628,000)).

Allowance for slow-moving inventories and net
realisable value of inventories

Allowance for slow-moving inventories is made based on the
ageing and estimated net realisable value of inventories. The
assessment of the allowance amount involves judgement and
estimates. Where the actual outcome in future is different
from the original estimate, such difference will impact the
carrying value of inventories and allowance charge/write-
back in the period in which such estimate has been changed.
Allowance for slow-moving inventories amounted to
approximately HK$387,000 (2020: HK$Nil) was made for the
year ended 31 December 2021.

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated
costs of completion and selling expenses. These estimates
are based on current market conditions and the historical
experience of manufacturing and selling products of similar
nature. It could change significantly as a result of changes in
customer’s demand and competitor’s actions in response to
severe industry cycles. The Group will reassess the estimates
by the end of each reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:

foreign currency risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and interest rate risk.

The Group's overall risk management programme focuses on the

unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential

adverse effects on the Group’s financial performance.

(a)

(b)

Foreign currency risk

The Group has minimal exposure to foreign currency risk
as most of its business transactions, assets and liabilities
are principally denominated in the functional currencies of
the Group entities. The Group currently does not have a
foreign currency hedging policy in respect of foreign currency
transactions, assets and liabilities. The Group monitors its
foreign currency exposure closely and will consider hedging
significant foreign currency exposure should the need arise.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will not meet
its obligations under a financial instrument or customer
contract, leading to a financial loss. The Group is exposed
to credit risk from its operating activities (primarily trade and
other receivables) and from its financing activities, including
deposits with banks and financial institutions, foreign
exchange transactions and other financial instruments. The
Group’s exposure to credit risk arising from cash and cash
equivalents is limited because the counterparties are banks
and financial institutions with high credit-rating assigned
by international credit-rating agencies, for which the Group
considers to have low credit risk.

RE B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12A318LEFE

ERE R EE

REBZEBAXSECHAR - IMNERR
EERR  RBERRIFERR - AEE
ZEBRREEASHE ST S 2 HIATRA
1 USKHARE P BRRAELEZBEDN

MFERERIE

(a) PR Bs

AEBEHEMINERR - REREKE
PEBRS BERABIENAEEE
B2 EEHE - AKE B AT ELIN
B2 5  BERBEHFIINEEPEEK -
AEETYEREINERR - WE RN
SR EHEARINE RS o

(b) FEEE

EERRIESFHEEIBETERTARE
FEABETEEMSIZERBARZER
AEEHMRELLE R ( TERBEHEW
R R EA N FIR) M E SRR S (B
RIRFTREBEBNTR - INERH RE
e TR)MNEERR - AEBEER
RS FERBELNEERRER
HHF 5 REREREFESETENSE
RFHRZBIT R SRS - AEERAHE
AEREERR -

JERZEREBERAR
20214F 3R

133



134

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BHRERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12A318LEFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
(b) Credit risk (continued)
Trade receivables and contract assets

Customer credit risk is managed by each business unit subject
to the Group’s established policy, procedures and control
relating to customer credit risk management. Individual
credit evaluations are performed on all customers requiring
credit over a certain amount. These evaluations focus on
the customer’s past history of making payments when due
and current ability to pay, and take into account information
specific to the customer as well as pertaining to the economic
environment in which the customer operates. Trade
receivables are due ranging from 30 to 180 days from the
date of billing. Normally, the Group does not obtain collateral
from customers.

The Group measures loss allowances for trade receivables and
contract assets at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs, which is
calculated using a provision matrix.

Based on the track record of regular repayment of receivables
from sales of electricity and that settlement of tariff
adjustment receivables is in accordance with the prevailing
government policies, all trade receivables and contract
assets from sales of electricity, including tariff adjustment
receivables, are expected to be recoverable and the ECL
provision on contract assets is considered to be insignificant.

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited
Annual Report 2021

6.

EREREE(R)
(b) FERBR(E)

HEIRWHRERENEE

HEXBETERENEPEERRI A E
EHENEREFPEERBREEBCR - 12
Fr izl o $EE A E%ﬁm%ﬁg
FHETENEEY - 25T EEERF
BB ER N SRR 52 R 3R B S A A A

Wit REFOREEREERER P& EHH
EOBIRIR o %%ﬁ%%ﬁ§+ﬁ5%t
302180 AREIH - i@E - ARETEH
E}E‘Fﬁ %}ﬁﬁauu °©

REFRBENFERRREESBENS
B(RBEEMEAE) REFTEE SRR
RENEBEERERE -

RIBE 1) HE R WGRIA 2 E HER SR
8% AREEABEBESAZEENAE
TTHNEER - Bt REENHEZAEE
SEKFBARENEE(BREBHEE
W) R mE - MAEKNEERREER
ERBEFERESTERX -



6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
(b) Credit risk (continued)

Trade receivables and contract assets (continued)

The following table provides information about the Group’s
exposure to credit risk and ECLs for trade receivables and
contract assets, as at 31 December 2021:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MR RME

For the year ended 31 December 2021

HE2021F 12831 BIEFE

&R EE ()
(b) FERER(E)
ESEURARAKEE ()

TREHEEEASEmREERR KA
FEEEENER - B81FER2021412A31
BOWESRKRZIBRANEE

2021

20214
Expected Gross carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
TAHEEE HBERE(E EiERE
% HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR
Current (not past due) BNEA (I #E3E HY ) 0.32% 132,592 420
Less than 1 month DR—1EA - 97 =
More than 3 months past due %60 B A 316 A - 9 -
132,698 420

2020

20204
Expected  Gross carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
TEAAESIE R REREE B R
% HK$'000 HK$'000
% FAT FHET
Current (not past due) BNEA (I #&380 ER) 0.23% 116,839 268
More than 3 months past due B HRER R 3(E A 81.21% 2,049 1,664
118,888 1,932

Expected loss rates are based on actual loss experience
over the past 5 years. These rates are adjusted to reflect
differences between economic conditions during the period
over which the historic data has been collected, current
conditions and the Group'’s view of economic conditions over
the expected lives of the receivables.

BRI B ESFNER BB Rt
8o WELXRRBREN(EEBEEE
MR E) KB RER - BATRARA
SEHENSRERFERNEEIRLLZ

E‘
=
=N

* MANCAFEEE -

IERZEREEERAF
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12A318LEFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
(b) Credit risk (continued)

Trade receivables and contract assets (continued)

Movement in the loss allowance for trade receivables during
the year is as follows:

6.

&R EE ()
(b) FERR ()
ESEURARAKEE ()

FREBE SRR BEERESENE
T :

2021 2020

20214 20204

HK$°000 HK$'000

THET T

At 1 January R1A1H 1,932 2,178
Impairment losses recognised for the year NEEERREERE 143 10,905
Amounts written off during the year REEMESEE = (1,874)
Reversals B[] - (205)
Deregistration of a subsidiary i —FEREAR (1,710) =
Disposal of subsidiaries HEHBRAR - (9,192)
Exchange differences MEH =5 55 120
At 31 December ®12A831H 420 1,932

The Group has concentration of credit risk as 98.4% (2020:
97.1%) and 99.5% (2020: 98.6%) of total trade receivables
and contract assets was due from the Group's largest trade
receivables and contract assets and the five largest trade
receivables and contract assets respectively.

It has policies in place to ensure that sales are made to
customers with an appropriate credit history.

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
(b) Credit risk (continued)
Financial assets at amortised cost

Financial assets at amortised cost include loan and other
receivables.

Other receivables are considered to have low credit risk,
and the loss allowance recognised during the period was
therefore limited to 12-month expected losses. These
instruments are considered to be low credit risk when they
have a low risk of default and the issuer has a strong capacity
to meet its contractual cash flow obligations in the near term.

For the ECL assessment of loan receivable, due to greater
financial uncertainty triggered by the COVID-19 pandemic,
the Group has increased the expected loss rates in the
current year as there is higher risk that a prolonged pandemic
could led to increased credit default rates. This has resulted
in a charge of HK$14,468,000 for impairment provisions
recognised in consolidated statement of profit and loss in the
current year.

Movement in the loss allowance for loan and other
receivables at amortised cost during the year is as follows:

RE B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12A318LEFE

6. TRERERE(E)
(b) EEREER(E)
ZBHERATR CRMEE
BREBHERATEL SRAEDERKER
R E MR -

Hip BB HRBR R R EBRENEER
B o Eitt - REIAERNERBERR
REANESRES EZETREERE
HE KRR B BT ARG RARENERE
HAETANESRERMKE - AIERR
HEEERR -

RERERHNEREEBETEMS © A
MCOVID-19% 155 EHE AN S F N EE
M REEREmM I EEBESNEEE
HEMERRER - AEEE I INTEHAEE
K o FERERNFELREBERTHERR
EEMEETE14,468,000/8 7T ©

RERREHR A B2 ERREBRK
REBERBEENEFHNT

2021 2020

20214 20204

HK$'000 HK$'000

THExT FAET

At 1 January R1A1H 2,696 3,548
Impairment losses recognised for the year AN [EHERREETE 14,468 498
Amounts written off during the year REEMHEHE (1,300) =
Reversals o - 61)
Disposal of subsidiaries HEHBA R - (1,376)
Exchange differences X ZER 278 87
At 31 December M12A831H 16,142 2,696

The Group is also exposed to credit risk in relation to
equity investments that are measured at FVTPL as these
equity investments are held by securities broker. The
maximum exposure at the end of the reporting period is
the carrying amount of these investments of HK$Nil (2020:
HK$1,442,000).

AEBNMEBAAAEENE B EZEET
ABHERTENREREFBEER
% REAZEREREREFSLLR
B - RIFEHREERATRARR AREE
T TR ZEHRE (20204 © 1,442,000
VETL) °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BHRERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12A318LEFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
(c) Liquidity risk

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor current and
expected liquidity requirements to ensure that it maintains
sufficient reserves of cash to meet its liquidity requirements in
the short and longer term.

The maturity analysis based on contractual undiscounted cash
flows of the Group’s non-derivative financial liabilities is as
follows:

Less than

1 year or
on demand
D1
HIRER
HK$’'000
BT

6. TREMEE(HE)

(9]

Between
1 and
PAETE

1EZ26F
HK$’'000
FHT

REE S E

REE Y BE AT RERE A RIES R
PEASER - HTREEEBRRETHE
SRBIENRERRRERORDES
=% o

RIEAEEITESRAE 2 AHARRER
BemELIBOMNT

Between
2 and Over
5 years 5 years Total

2B 5F L E &5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHBT FHT FH&T

At 31 December 2021 A2021F12H31H
Trade and other payables & 5 J& {78 &

E A e 5RIE 15,585 - - - 15,585
Lease liabilities HEBRE 1,601 1,241 4,132 20,458 27,432
At 31 December 2020 72020512 A31H
Trade and other payables & 2 E{f 5B &
H b e FRIE 21,290 = = - 21,290
Lease liabilities HEAE 2,027 1,531 3,881 20,824 28,263
(d) Interest rate risk (d) FI=RE B

The Group's loan receivable bears interest at fixed interest
rates and therefore is subject to fair value interest rate risks.

The Group's bank deposits bear interest at variable rates that
vary with the then prevailing market condition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

(e) Categories of financial instruments at
31 December 2021

RE B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12A318LEFE

6. LHEMEE(E)
() 2021F12A31BMERMIEDE

Financial assets:
Financial assets at FVTPL — Held for trading

Financial assets measured at amortised cost

Financial liabilities:
Financial liabilities at amortised cost

2021 2020
20214 20204
HK$°000 HK$'000
THET FHT
SREE
KRR BENEAHEZESHTAE
HEnNEmEE —FHIEFER - 1,442
NESHR AT ENemEE 524,369 515,867
cRBeE:
B SERATENSRAE 15,585 21,290

(f) Fair values

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets and
financial liabilities as reflected in the consolidated statement
of financial position approximate their respective fair values.

7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date. The following disclosures of
fair value measurements use a fair value hierarchy that categorises
into three levels the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure
fair value:

quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities that the Group can
access at the measurement date.

Level 1 inputs:

inputs other than quoted prices included within
Level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly or indirectly.

Level 2 inputs:

Level 3 inputs: unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

(f) 2REE

ARBEEMSE2EE CHNGERREEF
R PHEEERERKBREEBEHATNE
e TXHREERAABEERENAAE
B BEtEAREENGBETEZRAERL
DR={BEH

F-ERBAE: AREARFEARSEZHE
REEXABENERTS L
M RE (REHE) -

FE_EBRBAER: F-ERAMERNOREN
5N BEKBBEERLME
ABRZBAE-

F-ERBAE: BEXAENTABEEA
o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BHRERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12A318LEFE

7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (CONTINUED)

The Group's policy is to recognise transfers into and transfers out
of any of the three levels as of the date of the event or change in
circumstances that caused the transfer.

(@  Disclosures of level in fair value hierarchy at 31 December
2021:

Description

i

Recurring fair value REMEAREETE:
measurements:
Financial assets: SRIEE !
Financial assets at FVTPL NARBEGEEHLZES)
FFABHEENEE
— Unlisted equity securities — I EIRARE S

D RBEETEHE)

FEHOEF=(ARERBAREHER

(@) M2021F12A31BARBERBRHNER
WENT

Fair value measurements using: Total
DAABEFELRNEA : &%
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 2021
F-EB& FoEBR F=EBR 2021%F
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000
FET TR TET FTET

Description

i

Recurring fair value REHEAAREETE:
measurements:
Financial assets: SREE:
Financial assets at FVTPL IR EEFERHES
FIAEHBENEE
— Listed equity securities — B ETRAES

Fair value measurements using: Total
AABEFEFAER CEl
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 2020
E—EBH FZER FE=ER 2020%F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THETT FAT FET FAET

- - 1,442 1,442

During the year ended 31 December 2021, there were no
transfers among Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the listed equity
securities were transferred from Level 1 to Level 3 due to
suspension of trading of such securities in the relevant stock
exchange. The fair value was referenced to latest transaction
price with an adjustment of discount for lack of marketability
and market multiple.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MR RME

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12A318LEFE

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (CONTINUED) 7. AREEFEE)
(b)  Reconciliation of assets measured at fair value based on by BREFZEFEANBEIENEEY
Level 3: iR -

Financial assets at FVTPL

RAARBETEAHSETAEH

BENERMEE
Description 2021 2020
i pu 20214 2020%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FABT
At 1 January M1ATR 1,442 -
Transfer from Level 1 BE—EREA - 1,696
Total losses recognised in profit or loss ® RIB R 2 R4 RE® (1,442) (254)
At 31 December ®12A318 - 1,442

# Include gains or losses for assets held

© SRR R AT A W

at end of reporting period E1B5IER (1,442) (254)
The total gains or losses recognised in profit or loss are RERERN Y =SB EEE I RNGEEE
presented in other gains and losses in the consolidated R AR E MU REE 25 -

statement of profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BHRERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12A318LEFE

7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (CONTINUED) 7.

() Disclosure of valuation process used by the Group
and valuation techniques and inputs used in fair value
measurements at 31 December 2020:

The Group’s financial manager is responsible for the fair
value measurements of assets and liabilities required for
financial reporting purposes, including Level 3 fair value
measurements. The financial manager reports directly to
the Board of Directors for these fair value measurements.
Discussions of valuation processes and results are held
between the financial manager and the Board of Directors at
least twice a year.

Key unobservable inputs used in Level 3 fair value
measurements are mainly:

- discount for lack of marketability
- market multiple

Level 3 fair value measurements

Significant
Valuation unobservable
Description technique inputs

B ERIT BEATAIBRBAE

Listed equity securities Market Discount for lack of
classified as financial assets approach marketability
at FVTPL

Market multiple

DRERARAEBEEAR WHA HERZ B I AA3R
HEETAE IR RN SR
BEMND EMRAES EETT
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AREEFTEGE)
(0 AEEKR2020F12A31BETAREE

SHEMEANGERF  MERTEREA
BIBRENT ¢

REBAOH IR A BETHERERNE
KMEERBBEARBENE  BFEFE=
BRARBENE WBKEERAES
SERZSAABEE - MBKLERE
EegFEETMRERMERRF RS
RITEE T ©

F=BRAABEAEMAZIETTE
SRPAELER

- A= me i maLE

—  TBER

BZERAAEBEFE

Effect on
fair value for
increase of inputs 2020
EPNERYIIES)]
NAEBENZE 20204
HK$'000
FHBT

20.6% Decrease 1,442

7.8%-9.1% Increase

20.6% Ve 1,442
7.8%-9.1% &N



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FEUBRRME
For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12A318LEFE
8. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 8. WARDHB®HE
(a) Disaggregation of revenue (@) WwA#HD
Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers by REEERIRBE D ARFEFELE
major products or service line for the year from continuing XBEFPEHNMBMAMDLAT

operations is as follows:

2021 2020
20214 20204

HK$'000 %  HK$'000
THET TAT

Revenue from contracts with BEBMEREERES
customers within the scope REEARNRBEEEFEHN
of HKFRS 15 BB A

Disaggregated by major products 3%+ B Fa RIS 4D
or service lines

Sales of sub-processing cigarette  $4& 11 T & &R

films 8,115 12% 5,127 6%
Properties development and related 4% 2% & N #H 78 IR 7S
services 446 1% 21,424 27%
Generation of photovoltaic power  Y{K3£E 57,552 87% 52,974 67%
Total aetr 66,113 100% 79,525 100%
JERER EEAR A A
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BHRERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12A318LEFE

8. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (CONTINUED) 8. WARSDIPIRE (&)

(a) Disaggregation of revenue (continued) (a) WA#z (&)
The Group derives revenue from the transfer of goods and AREER I EEm R F R E R
services over time and at a point in time in the following I ER S R B B e e o R AR TS EE AR M

major product lines and geographical regions:

For the year ended Sales of sub-processing  Properties development Generation of
31 December cigarette films and related services photovoltaic power  Cloud-related business Total

BENAALEE HEMIZEER ES LT ERRE EX% A

201 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020
11F  200F  01F 2005 01F 005 0MF  00F  WMF  ANE
HKS'000  HK§'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000
T Thr T T Tn T Tn BT T AT

Primary geographical market *EHET
Mainland China T 8,115 5127 446 2,44 57,552 52974 - - 66,113 79,525

Timing of revenue recognition WATEFARE
Products transferred at a point in ERHE —FRE

time &Y 8,115 5127 446 21,424 - - - - 8,561 26,551
Products and semvices transferred 28 RARERS B
over time &7 S = = - 57,552 52974 = - 57,552 52,974
Total CE 8,115 5127 446 21,424 57,552 52,974 - - 66,113 79,525
(b) Segment reporting (b) ZEWEH
The Group has four operating segments together formed the AN ER B H R AR PR R AR AS i R TS O PO El AR
continuing operations as follows: DEFLATE :
. Sales of sub-processing cigarette films: this segment . HENTHEEE - ko HEEM
engages in trading of sub-processing cigarette films; TRIENEEEBEE
. Properties development and related services: this . YR RABERE - kI EE
segment engages in development and sales of RHE YIS R E B IR ARTS
properties and providing property management
services;

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MR RME

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12A318LEFE

8. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (CONTINUED) 8. WARSD K (&)
(b) Segment reporting (continued) (b) Z2EWE (&)

o Generation of photovoltaic power: this segment
engages in generating and sales of electricity; and

o Cloud-related business: this segment engaged in
provision of development of cloud computing related
software, outsourcing cloud platforms and providing
cloud computing solutions and related services.

The manufacturing and sales of BOPP films operations were
discontinued during the year ended 31 December 2020. The
segment information reported does not include any amounts
for these discontinued operations, which are described in
more detail in Note 16.

The Group’s reportable segments are strategic business
units that offer different products and services. They are
managed separately because each business requires different
technology and marketing strategies.

The accounting policies of the operating segments are
the same as those described in Note 4 to the consolidated
financial statements. Segment profits or losses do not
include unallocated head office and corporate expenses, net
realised and unrealised loss on investment in equity securities,
dividend income from equity securities and impairment of
unallocated other receivables. Segment assets do not include
equity securities and unallocated head office and corporate
assets. Segment liabilities do not include unallocated head
office and corporate liabilities.

o HIREE: WOAEHEN

o  EXEB: o HMRHEMEEHE *H
%5@\14: N 9|\ﬁ§$é\&}z{/\ﬁﬂ £
R T 2R R AR R ARTS -

EHTRREMNHRERESRES
2020F 12 AN BIEFEE KL - MER
DEPEB T EREZFERIEEE B (G
BEHRKIEE16) TR &8 -

REE 2 A RS 2 E AR R E @ & AR
TEHIERS TG BRI - A SIBEEKE
BB EEER  hABERe N
EIE o

B0 EBHEF BRESA M FRRME
4Fﬁﬂt%$ﬁlﬂ * DEPENHBETBER
DEREHBMRRE - BAFEARRENE
B RORBIVFEE - RAE SR RS
AR BEEALEYRIBRIE - D EEE
TEREBAZLZRRDEABMARE
E o DRBENERANEABNARE

io
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e R R

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12A318LEFE

8. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (CONTINUED) 8. WARSDIPIRE (&)

(b) Segment reporting (continued) (b) WS (&)
(i) Segment results, assets and liabilities () oHEE BEERAEHE
Information about operating segment profit or loss, FHARBEREEBE BN HER
assets and liabilities from continuing operations: BERBEZEHAT

Sales of sub-processing ~ Properties development Generation of
cigarette films and related services photovoltaicpower  Cloud-related business Total
HENIEEER NERRREBRE EHREE XK At
2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021

015 2020% 2015 20005 20015 2020 20215 2020 0215
HK$'000  HK§'000  HKS'000  HKY'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS$000  HKS'000
Tén  TEr TBr  TEr @ TEn Br  TBn  TEr  TEn

Year ended 31 Decermber £ 12A31H1E
FE

Revenue fromexternal -~~~ RESNFREMA
customers 8115 5127 446 21,424 57,552 52,974 - - 66,113 79,525

Reportable segment gross FE R4 5
(loss)/profit (Z8)/Z4 @62 1,087 (13) 8578 36118 33700 - - %M B33

Reportablesegment  THBABHA
(loss)/profit hefore tax  (f5{8) /47 (9921) (8665  (15391) 880 28498 26611 1,783 (235 499 26561

Interest income from bank  $RATTEAAIE.

deposis 0N 656 218 928 439 3 30 56 3 1,663 720
Interest expense HERE - 20 - = 907 858 - = 907 878
Depreciation and ERNEH

amortisation 1,785 1982 3 56 17,636 16,396 164 133 19,598 18,567
Other materialnon-cash ~ EtEAIES

items; BE
mpaiment of tradeand S ZENHER

other receivables At RE

HE - - 14468 370 143 25 - - 1460 62

As at 31 December #M2A318

Reportable segment ~ TRBAHEE
assets 103,466 65874 = 235919 25,024 448,576 437,786 24,000 2453 811,961 780,220

Additions to non-current  ERFEFE
segmentassetsduring ~ EEHEE
the year 1,545 415 - - 1,981 6 - - 3,526 v

Reportablesegment ~ TRBANEE
liabilities 23,454 28713 8313 71547 21,849 24,675 LY} 2,95 53,858 58,051
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FEMBHRRME
For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12A318IEFE
REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (CONTINUED) 8. WARD#B#RE (&)
(b) Segment reporting (continued) (b) oEEwE (&
(i) Reconciliations of segment profit or loss from (i) BELCLEEKDIEFHEHEELER

continuing operations

2021 2020
20214 20204
HK$°000 HK$'000
THERT T
(Loss)/profit (B518) =Rl
Reportable segment profit before tax A ER 3R 5 HB A& A 4,969 26,561
Unrealised loss on investment in equity RARFBHIZE AR
securities Ea (1,442) (254)
Unallocated head office and corporate RO BRABEAA RS2 M
expenses (9,656) (12,081)
Consolidated (loss)/profit before tax from — #HFAEAL & E LR A THA
continuing operations (F518), &7 (6,129) 14,226
JERER EEAR A A
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BHRERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12A318LEFE

8. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (CONTINUED) 8. WARSDIPIRE (&)

(b) Segment reporting (continued) (b) RS (E)
(iii) Reconciliations of segment assets and liabilities (i) PPEEHEEBEHIER
2021 2020
20215 20204
HK$°000 HK$'000
TERT FAT
Assets BE
Total assets of reportable segments AR EPEELRE 811,961 780,220
Equity securities RR A5 5 - 1,442
Unallocated head office and ROMELI A B EE
corporate assets 69,882 91,352
Consolidated total assets e BERE 881,843 873,014
Liabilities aE
Total liabilities of reportable segments ARy EPE EAARE 53,858 58,051
Unallocated head office and corporate AOBLEIFI AT AR
liabilities 2,656 2,121
Consolidated total liabilities e BERE 56,514 60,172
(iv) Geographic information (iv) HEER
No geographic information from continuing operations BARASERRA - HEEEED
is presented as the revenue, contribution to operating Bl EERBEHYGBREIER
results, assets and liabilities of the Group are FRE(BERS)ETHEBNLE
attributable to operating activities which are carried JEE) IR 2FRIFELEEBEHN
out or originated principally in the PRC including Hong = ExY o
Kong.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FEUBRRME
For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE2021F12A318 LFE
8. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (CONTINUED) 8. WAR S EB3RE (&)
(b) Segment reporting (continued) (b) WS (&)
(v) Revenue from major customers (v) REEEEFFHBKA

Segment of properties development and
related services

M ER AR 2 &

2021
20214

2020
20204
HK$'000
T

HK$°000
TR

Customer A EFH - 18,744
Segment of generation of photovoltaic FIREBEE D E
power
Customer B BEEZ 57,552 52,974
9. OTHER INCOME 9. HMKA
2021 2020
20214 2020%F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FH&T
Continuing operations BREEEER
Government grants (Note (i) T4 B (PR EEG)) 100 527
Amortisation of deferred government grants IR AETS T 48 B 8 (P RE33)

(Note 33) 282 264
Interest income on bank deposits SRITE T S WA 1,665 720
Loan interest income BB M 4,780 4,743
Rental income HSWA 44 =
Sundry income IR A 108 459

6,979 6,713
Note: Ft 5
(i) During the year, the Group recognised government grants of HK$Nil (i) RAFERA @ NEERERERBRHTTHIER

(2020: HK$269,000) in respect of COVID-19 related subsidies
relates to Employment Support Scheme provided by the Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region Government. Government grants of
approximately HK$100,000 (2020: HK$258,000) mainly related to
the subsidy received from the PRC local government authority for the
achievements of the Group.

TR AR 5L 25T 818 B/ COVID- 1948 B AL
R AT B Z 78 7T (20204F © 269,000787T) ° X
4 89100,0007% 7T (20204F : 258,00078 7T ) £
EH AR B GE A A R BT S YR
2 e
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FEMBRRME
For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE2021F12A31HIEFE
10. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES, NET 10. HitWEREEFR
2021 2020
20214 20204
HK$°000 HK$'000
THET FHIT
Continuing operations BHEREER
Gain on deregistration of a subsidiary i — B A R A 1,953 -
Gain on disposal of property, plant and HEWZE - BFE REERE
equipment 67 304
Write off of property, plant and equipment VI - BB KR E M (25) (120)
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary (Note 38(a)) S FT A Rl 18 (Mi3E38(a)) (1,809) =
Net foreign exchange gains BEE 3, W s F 2R 515 117
Unrealised loss on investment in equity securities  BEANTE A% & H) A B30 5518 (1,442) (254)
Others HAt 1 (155)

(740) (108)

11. BMERAK

11. FINANCE COSTS

2021 2020
20214 20204
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER T

Continuing operations HEREER
Interest expense on lease liabilities (Note 20) HEaENF B MAXZ (HizE20) 970 942
Interest on bank borrowings RITE TS - 16
Total borrowing costs EEK A B 970 958

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited
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12.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Income tax relating to continuing operations has been recognised in
profit or loss as follows:

Current tax — PRC enterprise income tax

RE B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12A318LEFE

12. FIBHixXH

BRRELEEBOMEHNEEAERNT

BPEAR IR — P Bl R ATIS TR

2021 2020
20214

20204
HK$'000
FHET

HK$°000
TR

Provision for the year NEERE 3,949 3252
Under/(over)-provision in prior years RBEFERETR

(FBEERE) 111 (375)

4,060 2,877

LAT T b IS ER (5,454) 957

Deferred tax IERERIE 2,169 605

775 4,439

(if)

(iii)

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman Islands
and the BVI, the Group is not subject to any income tax in
these jurisdictions.

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax is required since the
Group has no assessable profit derived in Hong Kong during
the year (2020: Nil).

On 16 March 2007, the Fifth Plenary Session of the Tenth
National People’s Congress passed the Corporate Income Tax
Law of the PRC (“New Tax Law") which became effective on
1 January 2008 and the PRC's statutory Corporate Income
Tax rate is 25%.

Pursuant to the rules and regulations applicable to advanced
technology enterprises established in the PRC, Jiangsu
Sheen Colour Science Technology Co., Ltd. is subject to PRC
corporate income tax at a preferential tax rate of 15% for the
year ended 31 December 2021.

0)

(ii)

(iii)

REFASES M RBE R RS RAN
BP - AREEBNZE AAERGNE
AIFTSHT

WERBENSTRIELEE  BALEHE
REFNE B ERERD A (20205

7).

120074 3A168 * FHEEZBEARKE

SFAREESZAB(PEARLRN
BZEMEBUENFBIE]) - KR20084F
TATBES - FBUAEREMSHER
250/0 °©

AR Y538 A A TE AR B S A i B T 2 /9
EEER  IESSEREAR AR AR
HE2021F 12 A31 B IEFEREERH X
15% B4R B EEFTS R ©

JERZEREBERAR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BHRERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12A318LEFE

12. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONTINUED)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(continued)

Entities engaged in qualified power generating projects, are
eligible for a corporate income tax exemption for the first year
to the third year, and a 50% reduction for the fourth year to
the sixth year starting from the year in which the entities first
generate operating income (the “3+3 tax holiday”). Xuzhou
Sheentai New Energy Power Generation Co., Ltd. (an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group) was entitled to the
3+3 tax holiday.

Entities engaged in software related business are eligible for
a corporate income tax exemption for the first year to second
year, and a 50% reduction for the third year to the fifth year
starting from the year in which the entities first generate
operating income (the “2+3 tax holiday”). Xuyi Guangcai
Information Technology Co., Ltd. (an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Group) was entitled to 2+3 tax holiday.

According to the New Tax Law and its implementation rules,
dividends receivable by non-PRC-resident corporate investors
from PRC-resident enterprises are subject to withholding
tax at 10%, unless reduced by tax treaties or arrangements,
for profits earned since 1 January 2008. Under the tax
arrangement between the Mainland of China and Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region and the relevant regulations,
a qualified Hong Kong tax resident which is the “beneficial
owner” and holds a 25% equity interest or more of a PRC
enterprise is entitled to a reduced withholding tax rate of 5%.
The withholding tax rate applicable to the Group is 5%.

According to the New Tax Law and its implementation rules,
where the research and development expenses incurred by
an enterprise in its research and development activities do not
form intangible assets and are included in the current period’s
profit or loss, 50% of such research and development
expenses shall be deducted from the taxable income amount
of the year; where intangible assets are formed, pretax
amortisation shall be made based on 150% of the costs of
the intangible assets.

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited
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12. FREHH (&)

(iii) (&)

(iv)

(v)

MEAERERELABEMNCETAHEY
REEZEERANFERFTFE—EE=F
ERERESEEMSEH  THRENES
7N ] Rk 52,50 % FY 1B S FTIS AR ([ 3+3F
BERH] - GNERFEERESERA
A(AEENEEE2ENBAR)ZE3+3
MISERE -

RERHREEBNEEATEEERES
REWANFERTE - EF_FERE
REFLEMEH  YRE=2FLFE
AUR50% MRS ([ 243 E R R
H]) - PR EMEERZBRAR (AR
EnHEE2ENBLAR) ZH2+3RHE
28 -

RBFBOEREBIAR - BRIF20084F 1
A1 B R BRE A M E RIS DI R L PR
B BRFREERAFREEERWHE
BEREENEAZ10% MR -
RIBHE A EEERFITRERZEH
ML RBER - FRTEEEDN
[ERmER A LFFH25%k A EARER
BERBEVBERY ZETRANGE
5% ° EANANEBE TR K F5%

REFTEREBBAR - BXRRARE
RBTEREENTEER - KUKEN
BEFAZSHERMN  ERRTEEN
BREVERE L MRAFEERELEN
50% * WEAFEEEAB TS EF M
WREREER  RBETLEERAN
150% FEFE BT HESH



12.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MR RME

For the year ended 31 December 2021

HZE2021F12A318LEFE
INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONTINUED) 12. FREBIZH (&)
The reconciliation between income tax expense and product of (loss)/ FT{S 82 B3 % B (518 )R FU SR bAE A # =
profit before tax multiplied by the applicable tax rates is as follows: AR ¢
2021 2020
20214 20204
HK$°000 HK$'000
FRT FHET
(Loss)/profit before tax (from continuing AT (ER),Safl (R EHESE
operations) ESi9) (6,129) 14,226
Notional tax on (loss)/profit before tax, RREN AR AR RESHER
calculated at the rates applicable in the TERTE R R (E18), 5K
jurisdictions concerned BEVIA (383) 4,175
Tax effect of the preferential tax rates BENENTIELZ (2,202) 111
Additional deductible allowance for research A INHR 2 B B A
and development expenses (151) (40)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses AR AT IR R 2 7,217 3,658
PRC dividend withholding tax AP B AR B TE N FR 947 752
Tax effect of non-taxable income IEEFRA BT U E (70) (2,836)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RERNTIEEENTIELE 2,595 4,041
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses not previously 7| Ff 5 Bl R #3260 74 B B 1B RO B T8
recognised 7 (346) (2,662)
Under/(over)-provision in prior years RBEFERETR  (BEERE) 111 (375)
LAT T HIE(ER (5.454) 957
Tax effect of unrecognised temporary differences REERE b = EERTLIA R 2 (1,489) (3,342)
Income tax expense (relating to continuing FrisBis i (S B E B E )
operations) 775 4,439

JERZEREBERAR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BHRERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021

HE2021F12A31HIEFE

13. (LOSS)/PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 13. FR(EER) B
The Group's (loss)/profit for the year is stated after charging the IR TP SI8%E - AEEFN(ER) mil
following: T

2021 2020
2021F 2020F
Continuing  Discontinued Continuing ~ Discontinued

operations  operations Total operations operations Total
B&LE BRI

BESERY RexK At HELERE BEEH A3

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

THRT THRL THRL i TEL TEr

Amortisation of intangible assets BRAERHGABENRE)

(included in cost of sales) 211 - 211 389 - 389
Depreciation on property, plantand ~ ¥1% + BiF Rk EiTE

equipment 18,391 - 18,391 21,938 9,960 31,898
Depreciation on right-of-use assets ~ (FREEENE 1,698 - 1,698 1,505 2472 3,977
Auditor's remuneration LT 930 - 930 1330 = 1,330
Cost of inventories sold BERERE 6,143 - 6,143 13,841 154,793 168,634
Expenses relating to short-term lease  E5E i EARINER 2,632 - 2,632 1,750 177 1,927
Allowance for inventories (included in - F & & (I AR EEEMA)

cost of inventories sold) 387 - 387 - - -
Allowance for trade and other B Al E Rt R

receivables, net BEyE 14,611 - 14,611 622 10,515 11,137
Research and 5

development expenditure 4,328 - 4328 1,322 9,012 10,334
Write off of property, plant and nE - BE Rt

equipment 25 - 25 120 62 182
Staff costs BTRA 14,377 - 14,377 12,729 20,724 33,453

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MR RME

For the year ended 31 December 2021

HZE2021F12A318IEFE
13. (LOSS)/PROFIT FOR THE YEAR (CONTINUED) 13. FR(ER) ER(HE)
Cost of sales includes the following which are included in the HERABEATSE(HEEF A EXEBHE

respective amounts disclosed separately above: RABESZEA) ¢

2021 2020
2021% 2020%
Continuing  Discontinued Continuing ~ Discontinued
operations  operations Total operations operations Total

BAL B&LE
RECERE TExk ait HEEEXD aEx G
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000
TER TER TER TR TR TR

Amortisation of intangible assets mlAEEH 119 - 119 58 - 58
Depreciation on property, plantand ~ #1% - BERRENRE
equipment 17,685 - 17,685 16,476 7,923 24,399
Depreciation on right-of-use assets ~ {FREAETE m = 722 673 1,774 2,447
Expenses relating to short-term lease RS EENER 284 - 284 124 165 289
Staff costs BIRA 1,057 - 1,057 1,289 9,399 10,688
14. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE 14. EEFAFX
2021 2020
20214 20204
HK$°000 HK$'000
TER T
Continuing operations HEREER
Salaries, bonuses and allowances e o e ROERL 13,177 11,915
Equity-settled share-based payments AR A E LA D R AR T - 63
Retirement benefit scheme contributions RINERE SRR 1,200 751
14,377 12,729
(a) Pensions — defined contribution plans (a) BIKE— EFEHFETE
The Group contributes to defined contribution retirement AEBERPEEREENEGERESRER
plans which are available for eligible employees in the PRC HFURIRGT R -
and Hong Kong.
JERER EEAR A A
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BHRERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021

HE2021F 12831815 E
14. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE (CONTINUED) 14. EERFBEX(E)
(a) Pensions - defined contribution plans (@) BhE - CHEMBERE(H)

(continued)

During the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020,
the Group had no forfeited contributions under the PRC
Retirement Scheme and MPF Scheme which may be used
by the Group to reduce the existing level of contributions.
There were also no forfeited contributions available as at 31
December 2021 and 2020 under the PRC Retirement Scheme
and MPF Scheme which may be used by the Group to reduce
the contribution payable in future years.

(b) Five highest paid individuals (b)

The five highest paid individuals in the Group during the year
included 3 (2020: 2) directors, including Mr. Zeng Xiangyang
who resigned as a director on 21 October 2021, whose
emoluments are reflected in the analysis presented in Note
15(a). The emoluments of the five highest individuals are set
out below:

REZE2021F K20205612 A31 8 L&
B AEBERFHERRGEIRARESE
AR AT ] 4502 U g SR AT AR AN 55 B A R
A FKF o 720214 %2020512 A
318 - R BRKET B RARS BT
EAT AR U A R R AT AR SR B A R
IR AL B FEA R o

hfumEE#ME AL
RNEEAFE AR E ATEIENT
(20204 : 267 ) E= (B FEN2021410 A
N EFEEENEMEEE) EHBEE
RHTEE15@FTFI AT ARE - =M<
AEZB&EHHT

2021 2020
202145 20204
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHx FHBT
Salaries, bonuses and allowances e o 8 KRR 3,497 3,573
Retirement benefit scheme contributions R AIFTEIE K 52 80
3,549 3,653
The emoluments fell within the following band: MEEA TS BEBEN :

Number of individuals

A
2021 2020
20214 20204
Nil to HK$1,000,000 Z % 1,000,000/ 7T 4 4
HK$1,000,001 to HK$ 1,500,000 1,000,001/ 752 1,500,000/ 7T 1 1
5 5

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MR RME

For the year ended 31 December 2021

HE2021F12A318IEFE
15. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 15. EERAINER
(a) Directors’ emoluments (a) EEME
The remuneration of every director is set out below: EHESHEFIIWT ¢

Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person's services as
a director, whether of the Company or its subsidiary undertaking
BEEALERES(FRARAAFHNEA A NEXAAELME
Employer's
(Notei) contribution
Estimated toa
money value  retirement

Discretionary of other benefit
Salaries bonus benefits scheme
(Ht=Ei) EES
HitiE R RINER
e #e HERA HESE  GHENHX CH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR TR TER TAR

Executive directors YTES

Guo Yumin PER - 300 300 - 15 615
Xia Yu ER - 300 300 - 15 615
Zeng Xiangyang (Note v) 2 mb(fizEy) - 640 100 - 15 755

Independent non-executive B 3k{TES

directors
Fan Qing Bl 120 - - - - 120
Dai Tin Yau (Note iv) BAMA (FizEv) 120 = = = = 120
Chan Yin Lam (Note iv) BEF (M) 120 - - - - 120
Total for 2021 2021545t 360 1,240 700 - 45 2,345

JERZEREBERAR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BHRERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12A318LEFE

15. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 15. EEEARERE (&)
(CONTINUED)

(a) Directors’ emoluments (continued) (a) EE=ME(E)

Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person'’s services as a director,
whether of the Company o its subsidiary undertaking
REBATERES( SHMBARMA) B ARk

Employer's

(Notei)  contribution
Estimated toa
money value retirement

Discretionary of other benefit

Salaries bonus benefits scheme
(3 B3
H iz RIIEH
e 2 miETEa HEEE  FrElMMH CH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAL TAL TAL TAL

Executive directors YTES

Guo Yumin PER = 300 1,000 - 15 1,315
Xia Yu BE - 300 50 - 15 365
Zeng Xiangyang (Note v) 2 mb(izEy) = 761 100 2 9 872

Independent non-executive BIFHTES

directors
Lo Wa Kei, Roy (Note ii) B =R (FaEi) 103 - - 1 = 104
Fong Wo, Felix (Note iii) AN (B Eiin) 103 - - 1 - 104
Fan Qing Bl 174 - - 1 - 175
Dai Tin Yau (Note iv) EpNE(ET) A = = = = 71
Chan Yin Lam (Note iv) RER (HiEv) A = = = = 7
Total for 2020 202055 522 1,361 1,150 5 39 3,077
Notes: FIE
(i) Estimated money value of other benefits represented share (i) HAiEF M TEE & 58 AR -

options.

(i) Retired on 29 May 2020. (i) H20204F5H29HEM -
(iiy ~ Resigned on 29 May 2020. @iy F20204F5A29 B BEHE °
(iv)  Appointed on 29 May 2020. (iv) 720204529 EZRE -
(v) Resigned on 21 October 2021. (v) 2021510821 BEHE -

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited
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15.

16.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(CONTINUED)

(b) Directors’ material interests in transactions,
arrangements and contracts

Save as disclosed in Note 41 to the consolidated financial
statements, no other significant transactions, arrangements
and contracts to which the Company was a party and
in which a director of the Company and the director’s
connected party had a material interest, whether directly
or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year.

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

On 30 May 2020, the Group entered into a share purchase
agreement to dispose of the entire issued share capital of
Sheen China (Hong Kong) Limited (“Sheen China”) and 70%
equity interest in Qingdao Ener Packaging Technology Co. Ltd.
(“Qingdao Ener”) owned by Sheen China at a cash consideration
of RMB67,000,000 (equivalents to approximately HK$79,183,000)
to an independent third party and the disposal was completed on
10 December 2020. Sheen China and Qingdao Ener carried out all
of the Group’s manufacturing and sales of BOPP films operations.
Details of the assets and liabilities disposed of, and the calculation
of the profit or loss on disposal, are disclosed in Note 38(b).

15.

16.

RE B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12A318LEFE

EEEMNRER ()

(b) EERXRG  RHRENZEK
R

BiRa MBS IHRARM 41 REE I - RF
REFANEHARELBEFETMEMAR
AR MARRIES R EREA T EESK
REREEEARDSIEARS » ZHEA
# o

ERIERE R

7202095 A308  ANEE R RS
VEZHHEIEE(FB)BRAR(NEZE]) A
EHEBRTRARIEERENSERERER
RERAR([EEEHA70%HEE - RER
& A ARY67,000,0007T (FHE A 4979,183,000
BIL) c ZHESEBEER2020F12 8108 5%
B IBERBSEHRTASEEMENEHE
NGERAEREYR - ITHEEERBED
B R E BEBR NG E T AN E38(b)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BHRERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12A318LEFE

16. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (CONTINUED) 16. BARIEEEXEIE(E)

2020
20204

HK$'000
TAT

Profit for the year from discontinued operations: BRI EEBHNF R -
Revenue WA 270,105
Cost of sales SHE AR (209,599)
Gross profit EF 60,506
Other income E A A 9,241
Other gains and losses, net Hth Yoam K 5 18 F RE (1,561)
Distribution costs Ak =ID N (19,157)
Impairment losses on trade and other receivables, net 2 5 J& IR 5k I8 K H B IR GRIE RV (E 5 18 F 7R (10,515)
Administrative expenses TR (25,831)
Profit from operations 1 A 12,683
Finance costs RE AR (2,873)
Profit before tax Tt Al Al 9,810
Income tax credit FriGHiEe 1,444
11,254
Loss on disposal of operations (Note 38(b)) o & 25 ) 518 (F5E38(b)) (3,666)
Income tax expense FriS#isz i (833)
(4,499)
Profit for the year from discontinued operations BRI S E T FENm A 6,755
Profit for the year from discontinued operations IATATEIEE R EEBFERR
attributable to:
Equity shareholders of the Company RA BRI 5,266
Non-controlling interests FEFERR RS 1,489
6,755

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MR RME

For the year ended 31 December 2021

HZE2021F12A318IEFE
16. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (CONTINUED) 16. BARIEKEEK(E)
Profit for the year from discontinued operations include the AR R EBARF A EEATSIE

following:

2020
20204

HK$'000
TAT

Depreciation e 12,432

Cash flows from discontinued operations: ERIEREEBHNRSRE

Net cash inflows from operating activities KEEBMEREMEFHE 68,729

Net cash outflows from investing activities KEEBMARSREFHE (4,277)

Net cash outflows from financing activities BEEB AR REFE (8,287)

Net cash inflows WEMAFEE 56,165
17. DIVIDEND 17. BRE

2021 2020
20215 2020%F

HK$°000 HK$'000
TR TAT

2020 Interim of HK$0.01 per ordinary share paid & 120204 fF Ei &A% 2R A%
0.017%7T = 24,341

JERZEREBERAR 161
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BHRERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12A318LEFE

18. (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE
From continuing and discontinued operations

The calculation of the basic and diluted loss (2020: earnings) per
share is based on the loss (2020: profit) for the year attributable to
owners of the Company of approximately HK$6,794,000 (2020:
HK$15,053,000) and the weighted average number of ordinary
shares of approximately 2,434,136,000 (2020: 2,434,136,000).

From continuing operations

The calculation of the basic and diluted loss (2020: earnings) per
share is based on the loss (2020: profit) for the year attributable to
owners of the Company of approximately HK$6,794,000 (2020:
HK$9,787,000).

From discontinued operations

Basic and diluted earnings per share is HK$0.002 per share for the
year ended 31 December 2020, based on the profit for the year
from discontinued operations attributable to the owners of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2020 of approximately
HK$5,266,000 and the denominators used are the same as those
detailed above for both basic and diluted earnings per share from
continuing and discontinued operations.

As the Company’s share options as at 31 December 2020 and
2021 do not give rise to any dilutive effect to the (loss)/earnings per
share. The weighted average numbers of ordinary shares used as
denominators in calculating the basic and diluted (loss)/earnings per
share are the same.

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited
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18.

BR(EE),EF
REFECERCRILEERER

BRI E A R EEEE (20204 : BF)) THERA
AEEE A EEFEREE(20209F &5 F)) 4
6,794,000/ 7T (20204 : 15,053,000/ 70) & &
PR ANAE T 15 81492,434,136,000% (20204 :
2,434,136,0008% )5t & o

FAE N R #5E 518 (20204F : BA)) ThERA
NEEE AEIGFREE(20209F : & F]) 4
6,794,000/ 70 (20204F :9,787,000/8 T)51 & ©

RECKRIEEEEL

HZE2020F12 A31H ILFERNEREARNREE
BT AFK0.0028TT - THEREE20205F 12
A31BIEFEARREE ABIGREERIEL
IS ) R R 495,266,000 TS H © BT
Mo Pl R BB E X RERIEEE
¥ BRERNREERTFTAEHER -

R AR R A20204F X 2021F12 A31 AR E
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19. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MR RME

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12A318LEFE

19. Y% -  BMEKRRXE

Solar (0]i(
power Plantand  equipment Motor Construction
plants  Buildings  machinery  and others vehicles Yacht  in progress Total
KB #E HARER
BEI BRY  BERKE b byt BE  ERIR &F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR TR TR TR TR TR
Cost A
At 1 January 2020 20205118 327,000 94,004 217,094 10,174 7453 35,798 172 691,695
Additions e - - 1,058 188 19 - 3521 4,786
Disposals i = = (17,832) (1,036) (1,031) - - (19,899)
Wite off s (114) (70) - (289) - - - (473)
Transfer from construction i~~~ BHERTHE

progress = = 3421 = = - (3421) -
Disposal of subsidiaries HERBAR = (77,686 (170,465 (5,347) (2513 = - (256,011)
Exchange differences EiES 21,764 5,248 10,435 4 313 - 18 38,200
At 31 December 2020 and R2020512A318 %

1 January 2021 02151418 348,650 21,49 43711 4112 4241 35,798 290 458,298
Additions wE 370 158 288 118 1,054 - - 1,988
Disposals e = - (2951) - - - - (2,951)
Write off ik = = - (507) - - - (507)
Transfer from construction i~~~ EHERTHE

progress = 293 = = = - (293) -
Exchange differences EREE 9,542 586 1,060 59 99 - 3 11,349
At 31 December 2021 R2021£128318 358,562 22,533 42,108 3,782 539% 35798 = 468,177
Accumulated depreciation ~ 23TERHA(E

and impairment
At 1 January 2020 R202051 18 (51,885) (39,571) (152,289) (9,342) (6,185) (30,889) - (290,161)
Charge for the year rERE (15,646) (4221) (6,573) (350) (331) (@177) - (31,898)
Disposals e - - 17,832 984 979 - - 19,795
Write off i - 70 - 21 - - - 291
Disposal of subsidiaries HENBAR - 42,358 104918 4,786 2336 = = 154,398
Exchange differences EHES (4,389) (2,341) (7,090) (405) (253) = - (14,478)
At 31 December 2020 and R2020E128318%

1 January 2021 2021%1818 (71,920) (3,705) (43,202) (4,106) (3,454) (35,666) = (162,053)
Charge for the year AERE (16,784) (935) (291) (52) (287) (42) - (18391)
Disposals e - - 2,951 - - - - 2,951
Write off fiisH - - - 48 - - - 48
Exchange differences EHES (2,246) (107) (1,09%) (64) (64) = = (3,577)
At 31 December 2021 120215128318 (90,950) (4,747) (41,638) (3,740) (3,805) (35,708) = (180,588)
Carrying amount RAE
At 31 December 2021 120215128318 267,612 17,786 470 v} 1,589 20 = 287,589
At 31 December 2020 R2020512A310 276,730 17,791 509 6 187 132 290 296,245

JERZREBER D E
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BHRERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12A318LEFE

20. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

20. FHESE

Leasehold Leased Plant and
lands properties machinery Total
HELH HEYX BERMS &%

HK$’'000 HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$’'000
TR TET TR THET

At 1 January 2020 20201818 41,740 463 3,866 46,069
Additions 1= - 1,298 — 1,298
Depreciation e (1,334) (869) (1,774) (3,977)
Disposal of subsidiaries (Note 38(b))  HEMIE A A (FizE38(b)) (18,519) - (2,205) (20,724)
Exchange differences EH =58 2,462 5 113 2,580
At 31 December 2020 202012 A31H 24,349 897 - 25,246
Additions e 1,590 - - 1,590
Depreciation e (1,017) (681) = (1,698)
Exchange differences [ i, = &E 676 - - 676
At 31 December 2021 72021912 H31H 25,598 216 = 25,814

Lease liabilities of approximately HK$15,247,000 (2020:
HK$15,914,000) are recognised with related right-of-use assets of
HK$14,116,000 (2020: HK$15,139,000) as at 31 December 2021.
The lease agreements do not impose any covenants other than the
security interests in the leased assets that are held by the lessor.

7202112 A318 - B #ER 415,247,000
76 (20204 : 15,914,000 T ) M EBE R
14,116,0007& 7T (20204F : 15,139,000/ 7T ) &9
HHEEREEE KREBEAMBEEHEZREF
BERERSN - HERE T HEMNER E AT -

2021 2020

20214 20204

HK$'000 HK$'000

THET FT

Depreciation expenses on right-of-use assets EREEENITEER 1,698 3,977
Interest expense on lease liabilities (included in ~ FAEBEMF S H (EFFARE

finance costs) BXAR) 970 1,238
Expenses relating to short-term lease (included in £22HHAEEHANERGFAEY

cost of goods sold and administrative expenses)  $HE& AN M ITHF %) 2,632 1,927

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited
Annual Report 2021



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FEUBRRME
For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12A318LEFE
20. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (CONTINUED) 20. EFEEE(E)

Details of total cash outflow for leases is set out in Note 38(e). HER &R AT BT EE38(e) ©
For both years, the Group leases various lands, offices, plant and MEHR AEEHESE L HAE - K
machinery for its operations. Lease contracts are entered into for fE Ak es LUETTIR S - HESAMEEHR2
fixed terms of 2 years to 50 years (2020: 2 years to 50 years). F504F (20204F : 2E504F) - MEKRFEIRIK
Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and contain a EARIERBEEE - HP a8 EB TR HRK
wide range of different terms and conditions. In determining the R o 2N B 7E B E R ER RO AT A4 T AT S Y
lease term and assessing the length of the non-cancellable period, AR - RS AR E & W HEE & 49 7] 58

the Group applies the definition of a contract and determines the TTHYEARR -

period for which the contract is enforceable.

21. GOODWILL 21. B
2021 2020
20215 20204
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FAT
Cost 2%
At 1 January ®1A1H 52,475 52,475
Deregistration of a subsidiary i —HEREAR (2,830) =
At 31 December ®12A831H 49,645 52,475
Accumulated impairment losses HiPREER
At 1 January M1ATR (52,475) (52,475)
Deregistration of a subsidiary Gz Rl SV 2,830 =
At 31 December M12H318 (49,645) (52,475)
Carrying amount SRMEE
At 31 December ®12A31H - -

JERZEREBERAR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BHRERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12A318LEFE

21. GOODWILL (CONTINUED)

Goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated, at
acquisition, to the CGUs that are expected to benefit from that
business combination. The carrying amount of goodwill had been
allocated as follows:

Cloud-related business: T
Treasure Cloud Group (Note (a))
Yancheng Renhe Network Sci. & Tech. Limited
("YCRH") (Note (b))

21. BHE(E)
REBAHERE Y SEDRKERSRETE
HAISEREB AN BOELEM - HEY
EEEARMT :

2021
20214

2020
2020%F
HK$'000
THAT

HK$°000
TR

Treasure Cloud Group(K3E(a)) = =
BB A MABAR BRI AR A R
(TE&H AR ) (Bt EE(D)) - -

Notes:
(@) Treasure Cloud Group

Goodwill allocated to Treasure Cloud Group of approximately
HK$49,645,000 was fully impaired in previous year.

(b) YCRH

Goodwill allocated to YCRH of approximately HK$2,830,000 was
derecognised upon deregistration of YCRH during the year.

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited
Annual Report 2021

Bt et
(a) Treasure Cloud Group

2 B F Treasure Cloud Group < & £ 4
49,645,000 7L E RS B FEBZURE

(b) EBHAF

RAFEE  HETERANZAEY
2,830,000/8 7T B PR 5 55 BB I A RBFAR | EFERR o



22.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBHRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021

22. BEEE

HE2021F 12831 BIEFE

Software

g4

HK$'000
THAT

Cost 5%

At 1 January 2020 202051 H1H 11,861

Disposal of subsidiaries ST A A (163)
Exchange differences ] 785

At 31 December 2020 and 1 January 2021 2020612 A31H X%2021F1/81H 12,483

Exchange differences MR ZER 340
At 31 December 2021 R2021412A31H 12,823

Accumulated amortisation and impairment losses Z&HE# 84 RREEE

At 1 January 2020 7202091 A1H (10,740)
Amortisation for the year REEEESS (389)
Disposal of subsidiaries =T A Al 163
Exchange differences PE =58 (737)
At 31 December 2020 and 1 January 2021 7202012 B31H KX2021F181H (11,703)
Amortisation for the year REZHE 211)
Exchange differences R ERE (301)
At 31 December 2021 72021412 H31H (12,215)
Carrying amount ARMEIE

At 31 December 2021 RK2021412831H 608
At 31 December 2020 2020612 A31H 780

The average remaining amortisation period of the software is 1 year

(2020: 1.3 years).

R IR B S EA 519 (20204F < 1.3%F) ©

JERZEREBERAR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BHRERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12A318LEFE

23. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 23. RHBARNIRE
Particulars of the subsidiaries as at 31 December 2020 and 2021 are 120204 2021412 A31 HRIMIEB A BB U0
as follows: -

Place of
Date and place of operation Issued and Group's
Name of company incorporation/establishment  and business paid up capital effective interest  Principal activities

INGES SMAY/ R BER Y EERERHYE  CRORERER FEBNEBRAE  IEEE
201 2020
WNE 20005

Direct held ERRE

Sheen Tai Energy Investment  JBREEREABRAZ 18 November 2013/BVI Hong Kong US$100 100% 100%  Investment holding

Lid. (*STELL") (STELL]) 20135118188/ &8 10057 RESR
ZREARNS

Sheen Tai Intemational ~ IBREIRRABRAT 2 May 20138V Hong Kong 5$20,000,000 100% 100%  Investment holding

Investment L. (*STIL") ~ ([STIL)) WES AR/ EBERRRE R 20,000,000%70 REZR

Sheen China Group Holdings  JEEEBIZRERAZ 27 November 2008/BVI Hong Kong Us$10 100% 100%  Investment holding

Inc. (“SCGHI) ([SCGHIJ) 20085118218/ &% 1057 REER
AREARNS

Treasure Cloud Limited Treasure Cloud Limited 4 January 2016/BVI Hong Kong Us1 100% 100%  Investment holding

(1¢) (Ic)) WIEF1R4B/ABRBRES B% (B3 REZR

Sheen Tai Cloud Network ~ JEREBEBRAT 31 August 20168V Hong Kong US$100 100% 100%  Investment holding

Limited ("STCNL") (TsTCNL]) WIEFSA31E/EREBREE B 100%70 RESR

ity Cloud Network (China) ~ BIAE@E(FE)BER 1 June 2018V Hong Kong US§46 100% 100%  Inactive

5. & Tech. Limited BROR(CONC)  201856A1R/XB4BRHE &% 4631 B

("CCNC")

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited
168 Annual Report 2021



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MR RME

23. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

Name of company

kL

Indirect held

Ling Xian Fei Yu Import and
Export (Shenzhen) Co.,
Ltd. ("LXFY") (Notes 1
and 2)

Jiangsu Sheen Colour
Science Technology Co.,
Ltd. ("JSSC") (Notes 1
and4)

Xuzhou New Advantage
Real Estate Development
Co,, Ltd. ("NARED")
(Notes 1 and 2)

Hong Kong Sheen Tai
Investment Limited
("HKSTLL")

Sheen Tai (HK) New Energy
Investment Limited
("STNEIL(HK)")

Century Leader Asia Limited
("CLAL")

Sheen China Group Holdings  IBEE B2 AR AF

Limited ("SCGHL")

BERTEEO(RY)

IEEREMEARAR

MBS EERY

BEREREARAA

IR (BE)HEERRE

Date and place of
incorporation/establishment

HMAL/RIASRE

10 September 2007/The PRC
2007597108 /H

6 March 2002/The PRC
200253068 /hE

24 July 2013/The PRC
01357R48 /48

10 May 2013/Hong Kong
013557108 /F%

27 November 2013/Hong Kong
W31 AR/ B

2 April 2007Hong Kong
200754528/5%

5 September 2008/Hong Kong
200859858 /%

Place of
operation
and business

LEJE St

The PRC
E

The PRC
E

The PRC
E

Hong Kong
&

Hong Kong
an

Hong Kong
Bk

Hong Kong
&

Issued and
paid up capital

BRRARER

HK$23,180,000
23,180,000

589,000,000
9,000,000%7C

5§30,000,000
30,000,000%7C

S$25,000,000
25,000,000%7

HK$100
1007

HK$10,000
10,0007

HK$1
187

Group's
effective interest

AREHERE

2021

01E

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

23. RMIBATIMNKRE (&)

2020

20005

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12A318LEFE

Principal activities

IZER

Investment holding and trading
of cigarette films

Printing of cigarette films

BEARIR

Property development

NEER

Investment holding

Investment holding

Investment holding and trading
of cigarette films

REBBREEERRS

Inactive

e

JERZEREBERAR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR

For the year ended 31 December 2021

HE2021F 12831815 E

23. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 23. RIBATMNIKRE (&)
Place of

Date and place of operation Issued and Group's
Name of company incorporation/establishment  and business paid up capital effective interest  Principal activities

INGES ! SMEY/ R BER Y EEREEHY  CRORERER FEENERAE  TTER
201 2020
WNE 20005

Shenzhen Shuntai TIEZZEERIEAR 31 March 2015/The PRC The PRC U5$36,663,640 100% 100%  Investment holding and trading
New Enerqy Science Am((TSINEL)(BEE1 201563318, /8 B 36,663 640 T RELRNE S
Technology Co, Ltd. k)

("SZNE") (Notes 1 and 2)

Xuzhou Shuntai New Energy  RMIEZRET82REE AR 21 April 2015/The PRC The PRC RMB39,000,000 100% 100%  Generation of photovoltaic
Power Generation Co,  ARI(IXNEL) (&1 2015848218 /% g ARH39,000,0007 power
L ("XINE") Notes 1~~~ 3) EREE
and3)

Hong Kong Taiwo Holding ~ EERAARARAT 31 July 2015Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$100 100% 100%  Inactive
Limited ("HKTHL") (THKTHL]) 015578318 /%8 B 1007 EEK

Falcon Wisdom Limited ~ BEBRAF(FW]) 18 December 2015HongKong  Hong Kong HK$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
(“FW") WI5F12A188/5% Bk 187 REZR

China City Cloud Network ~ FEIAMERAREER 29 August 2016Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$ 100 100% 100%  Investment holding
Sl & Tech. Limited A(ccen]) 2016587298 /&% & 10037 REZR
("CCCN")

Sheyang Tengyun SIBREGSREAR 30 May2016Mhe PRC The PRC HK$25,000,000 100% 100%  Clouc-related business
Information Technology ~~ ARI[SYTY) (&1 2016%58308 /8 G 25,000,000 225
Co, Ltd. (*SYTY") R2)

(Notes 1and 2)

Xuyi Guangeai Information ~ FFREBIEE RHEAIR 27 May 2016/he PRC The PRC HK$25,000,000 100% 100%  Clouc-related business
Technology Co, Ltd. ARXYGC) (1 2016558278 /58 e 25,000,000/ 225
("XYGC") (Notes Tand )~ R2)

Xuzhou Shuntai Agricultural  MIEZREERHER 16 February 2016/The PRC The PRC RMB10,000,000 100% 100%  Agriculture technology
Technology Co,, Ltd. AF(XaNy]) (K1 2016528168,/FE hE AE10,0000007 REH
("XINY") (Notes T and 3) ~ J3)

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

23. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

Place of
Date and place of operation
Name of company incorporation/establishment  and business

kL HMAL/RIASRE LEJE St

Shenzhen Qianhai BT AR 5 May 2016/The PRC The PRC
Tengzhiyun Network S~ BRAF(SZQH]) 201655858 /& e
& Tech. Limited (*SZQH") ~ (BfF112)

(Notes 1and 2)

Shenzhen Qianhai Taizhiyun  RYIETEZR 2 EA84ERR 14 December 2016/The PRC The PRC

Network Sci. & Tech. BBRAFSIQH) 20165128148 /%8 ]
Limited ("SZQH") (Notes ~~ (KizE1]R2)
1and2)

YCRH (Notes 1,3and 5)  EARI(KIEE « 3R5) 12 September 2013/The PRC The PRC

013595128 /4 E i
Xuzhou New Advantage  (RARTEZIFTEARRIL 10 March 2021/The PRC The PRC
New Energy Science ERAFHEIR3)  201%3R108 /%8 e
Technology Co., Ltd.
(Notes 1and 3)
Notes:
1. The English translation of the names is for reference only. The official

names of these entities are in Chinese.

2. These entities are wholly foreign-owned enterprises in PRC.

3. These entities are limited companies established in PRC.

4. The entity is a sino-foreign joint venture limited liability established in
the PRC.

5. The subsidiary was deregistered on 19 November 2021.

As at 31 December 2021, the bank and cash balances of the
Group's subsidiaries in the PRC denominated in Renminbi (“RMB")
amounted to HK$265,319,000 (2020: HK$235,110,000).
Conversion of RMB into foreign currencies is subject to the PRC's
Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and Administration of
Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations.

mEMBHRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12A318LEFE

23. RKIBARINKRE(E)

Issued and Group's
paid up capital effective interest  Principal activities
BRTRARER FRENERNE  TEEH
2021 2020
WE 200F

- 100% 100% Inactive
B

- 100% 100%  Investment holding

RABR
RMB1,000,000 = 100%  Cloud-related business
AK1,000,00070 EXK
RMB12,800,000 100% - Investment holding
A&#12,800,0007 RERR

)
=
R

=

RYANEELRWERSE - ZEERBNE S
B ARR SR ©

2. HEERBTERINAELRE-
3. ZEERRTPERIZEREMEAF -

4. ZERBTEKIZTIINGEEREELRHE -

5. ZEWBARIER2021E11 8198 58 ©

R2021F 12 A318 - ANEE R BB A A2
ARBE(TAREDGEZRITIRRESERAR
265,319,000 7 7T ( 2020 £ : 235,110,000 /&
TL) ° i AR K0 AINE/BIE ST R B INE B
6B R AEEE - SIE R ETEARE o

JERZEREBERAR
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mEMB|RME

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12A318LEFE

24. INVENTORIES

24, 78

2021 2020
20214 20204
HK$°000 HK$'000
THET FHIT

Packaging materials manufacturing and trading ~ E$5 82k}
Raw materials R 767 2,150
Work-in-process fE2m 101 -
Finished goods 2Pk M 84 220
952 2,370

Property development YRR

Completed properties held for sale FHEEE R E AR TE 5,038 5,322
5,990 7,692

25. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

25. BERUGRIAR HMEYRE

2021 2020

20214 20204

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FHBT

Trade receivables (Note (a)) B 5 BGRTE & I (FaE @) 106,927 100,736
Allowance for doubtful debts REREAE (420) (1,932)
106,507 98,804

Deposits and other receivables (Note (b))

B I HoAh U IR (FY (b))

— related parties ) - 1,334

— third parties =EH=77 15,126 19,502
Prepayments TERTFR

— third parties =E=7 893 1,153
Due from a director and the ultimate controlling  FEUEE 2 K S 442 HIl 75 208

party (Note (c)) (P &E(Q))

— Mr. Guo Yumin —FEREE 427 18
Loan receivable (Note (b) & (d)) FEWE (M 5ED) & (d) 57,369 70,149

180,322 190,960

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited
Annual Report 2021



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

25. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

(a)

(b)

The Group’s trading terms with customers are mainly on
credit. The credit terms generally range from 30 to 180
days from the invoice date. Each customer has a maximum
credit limit. The Group seeks to maintain strict control over
its outstanding receivables. Overdue balances are reviewed
regularly by the directors.

The ageing analysis of trade receivables, based on the invoice
date, and net of allowance, is as follows:

RE B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12A318LEFE

25. ESEWFEREMEWRFIE(E)

(a)

AEBREFHESEFRAEERTR A
F o EAHR N REZ A B30
HE180HZH - 8BRFHERAEER
BB o NGB NSRRI R B FEUBR A
BRI - EE MR TEITEHE
E‘;ﬁ °

REFZEH  AEBEZRKFARE
WERER (MG 2 BRI T

2021 2020
20214 20204
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FABT
Unbilled (Note) AAEEZ () 102,048 93,451
Less than 30 days 308 3,260 3,727
31-90 days 31290H 416 583
91-180 days 91£180H 97 64
Over 365 days 365H A E 686 979
106,507 98,804

Note: As at 31 December 2020 and 2021, the amount represents FisE : 720204 2021412 A31H * Z& %

unbilled tariff adjustment receivables of solar power plants
registered in the List.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade receivables are
denominated in RMB.

At 31 December 2021, an allowance of approximately
HK$16,142,000 (2020: HK$2,696,000) was made for loan
and other receivables.

(b)

HBIINEEN KSR BB A RFARE
BEHEREHA -

REE B 5 MR 2 BREE A AR T
=0

MR20215612H318 ' ERER N EME
U SR IE ST IR B 15 4916,142,00078 7T (2020
£F 1 2,696,000/87T) °

JERZEREBERAR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BHRERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12A318LEFE

25. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

()

(d)

Details of amount due from a director and the ultimate
controlling party are as follows:

BEREE

Mr. Guo Yumin

25. ESEWFEREMEWRFIE(E)

()

31 December

128318 H

e E = R iR AR HITT R IBRHIE AN T

Maximum

amount
outstanding
during

the year

Balance at Balance at
31 December
2020
#2020
12A318/
R
HK$'000
FHT

2021
H20215F
FARS
AEEBSHE
HK$'000
FET

5923
HK$'000
T

427 18 427

The amount due is unsecured, interest free and repayable on
demand.

As at 31 December 2021, no allowance is made for estimated
irrecoverable amount due from a director and the ultimate
controlling party.

Loan receivable of HK$57,369,000 (net of allowance for
doubtful debts of HK$16,101,000) (2020: HK$70,149,000
(net of allowance for doubtful debts of HK$1,365,000))
related to a loan agreement entered into by an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company on 6 December
2021 with Suining Chuyue Zhiye Company Limited (ff 28 7
EE XA AR (“Suining Chuyue”), a company established
in the PRC with limited liability, and Mr. Sun Chuyue, 70%
equity interest owner of Suining Chuyue, and Mr. Sun
Yong, the father of Mr. Sun Chuyue. Pursuant to the loan
agreement, the Group agreed to provide to Suining Chuyue a
loan amount of RMB60,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$73,470,000) (2020: RMB60,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$71,514,000)) for a term of approximately
six months (2020: six months), which carries interest at 0.39%
(2020: 0.5%) per month and is secured by (1) 60% equity
interest in Suining Chuyue which is held by Mr. Sun Chuyue as
the share charge in favour of the subsidiary and (2) personal
guarantee given by Mr. Sun Yong in favour of the subsidiary.

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited
Annual Report 2021

(d)

ZEFRALEER B RBRERE

R2021F 128318 BMEREREE R
B A2 Il 5 /O fi AT AT YR [B] < BB 1 H 1

o

i

JEU B X57,369,0007% 7T (FBr RER B 1
16,101,000 7t ) (20204 : 70,149,000
78 70 (FBR R AR5 1,365,000/8 7T ) ) £2
AR wE A —EEE 2 EH B A R K 2021
F12RcEHHAMESEEXEGRAF ([HE
BERE| —XEPBERINBREMS
AR BRELE(BEERENT0%M
EAE) REBEE(RBELENR
B UNERMEEE - RIEBEERW
FASEREAEERFIREARE
60,000,0007T (185574 4773,470,00075 7T )
(20204 : AR #60,000,0007T (R
#971,514,000 7T ) ) K E K+ & HA /< (E
A (20204 : REA) : & & H0.39%
(2020%F : 0.5%)&T8 * WA(MFEREEIEL
AR A WMEER F60%XHE - 1A AR
BRAAZZANBRMDERE - RQEE
SHERB AR A ANBEARRIES
AR o



26.

27.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

CONTRACT ASSETS

The contract assets primarily relate to the Group’s right to tariff
adjustments for the electricity sold to the local state grid companies
in the PRC. The contract assets are transferred to trade receivables
when the Group’s respective operating power plants are registered
in the List pursuant to prevailing national government policies on
renewable energy for solar power plants.

As one of the operating power plants of the Group has been
registered in the List during the year, the respective amount of the
contract assets is reclassified to trade receivables at the point at
which it is registered in the List accordingly.

The Directors considered that the ECL for contract assets is
insignificant as at 31 December 2020 and 2021, as the collection is
well supported by the government policies.

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVTPL

26.

27.

RE B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12A318LEFE

BREE

D/\’]§E£X/$&$%§Imtp.ﬁﬁﬁ.§ﬁ A&
REHEE N MBI EEFBHERN - EXRE
EEMLERTUHRBBUNRITE2EEASGE
BEUABLARRERIINBER - AREE
EREANE 5 EMFR -

AEFBEP -HEERBUERNFATIA
Sl A= ’Jé‘F‘E’J*HFEQEEE’\\EE’%EEﬁ/ﬁ
CREH N ARE ZRIEGIA

fog J&E 514

BHR
J=E=
/B
B

EERA - R2020F K2021F 128318 * 64
EEMBHEEBEYTELN  BAUK; A?%Bz
RERE D T4 -

EMR

URnREEFTEEESBTTA

2021 2020
20214 20204
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR FAT
Equity securities, at fair value &N - /N [ =]
Listed in Hong Kong MES £ - 1,442
Unlisted equity securities FE_ETIAR AN E - -
= 1,442
During the year ended 31 December 2021, the equity securities RELZE2021F12 A3V HIEFE - ZERAFS

were delisted from stock exchange. The impairment loss of
approximately HK$1,442,000 was included in “other gains and
losses, net”.

As at 31 December 2020, the carrying amounts of the above
financial assets are classified as held for trading.

As at 31 December 2020, the carrying amounts of the above
financial assets are measured at FVTPL in accordance with HKFRS 9.

BB A FTBR R o REEIB4Y 1,442,000 7T
AT E Al ss K B8 F58 | -

202012 A318 » LiieMEEZREED
BABIEES -

R2020F12 A318  IRBEEEMERELERFE
o5k - FilemMBEEMRAEINUAREBE=Z

BEEEF AL R BRTE -

/\X

JERZEREBERAR
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ma

PRSI R R

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12A318LEFE

27.

28.

29.

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVTPL (CONTINUED)

The investments in listed equity securities offer the Group the
opportunity for return through dividend income and fair value
gains. They have no fixed maturity or coupon rate.

BANK AND CASH BALANCES

As at 31 December 2021, the bank and cash balances of the
Group denominated in RMB amounted to HK$265,371,000 (2020:
HK$235,161,000). Conversion of RMB into foreign currencies
is subject to the PRC’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations
and Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign
Exchange Regulations.

SHARE CAPITAL

27. UAREBESEAHESEFTAERE
mNEREE (&)

EABRAREZZREBEBREBRARRAREER
W AAKERHEDFRE - ZFRETEE
EEIHHREERE

28. RITRBRTHERR

R2021F12A318 » NEBZRITRIBEER4
AARBEHE - ©%58/5265,371,0007 75 (2020
F 1 235,161,000/ 7T) ° 5 AR IR BINE
BESTRBEINEEBIEO RERE SEERRAMAE
EIHE °

29. KA

2021 2020
20215 20204
Number of Number of
shares Amount shares Amount
RHEE 28 RHOHE Gk
‘000 HK$’000 ‘000 HK$'000
T A% THET TFh FHT
Authorised: JETE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.0025 each AR EI{E0.0025/% 7T H)
E B 8,000,000 20,000 8,000,000 20,000
Issued and fully paid: BEITRAR
Ordinary shares of HK$0.0025 each &M EI{E0.0025/8 JTHY
E=p il
At 1 January and 31 December BM1A1BKR12A31H 2,434,136 6,085 2,434,136 6,085

The Group's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern and to maximise the
return to the shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and
equity balance.

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited
Annual Report 2021
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29.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SHARE CAPITAL (CONTINUED)

The Group sets the amount of capital in proportion to risk. The
Group manages the capital structure and makes adjustments
to it in the light of changes in economic conditions and the risk
characteristics of the underlying assets. In order to maintain or
adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the payment
of dividends, issue new shares, buy-back shares, raise new debts,
redeem existing debts or sell assets to reduce debts.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. This
ratio is calculated as net debt divided by adjusted capital. Total debt
comprises borrowings. Adjusted capital comprises all components
of equity (i.e. share capital, retained profits and other reserves).

The Group was in a net cash position as of 31 December 2020 and
2021 and hence no gearing ratio was presented.

The Group regards total equity other than non-controlling interests
as capital, for management purpose. The amount of capital as at
31 December 2021 amounted to approximately HK$825,329,000
(2020: HK$812,842,000), in which the Group considers as optimal
having considered the projected capital expenditures and the
projected investment opportunities.

The externally imposed capital requirements for the Group are: (i) in
order to maintain its listing on the Stock Exchange it has to have a
public float of at least 25% of the shares; and (ii) to meet financial
covenants attached to the bank borrowings.

The Group receives a report from the share registrars monthly
on substantial share interests showing the non-public float
and it demonstrates continuing compliance with the 25% limit
throughout the year.

29.

mEMBHRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12A318LEFE

&N )

AEERABRLIEEERASR AKEER
BERGEE  UREBKERABEREBEEDN
R EFEIEL A o BERNFEENERS
AEEAERBNHBE ~ BITHBND - &
MERE  BEHEH  BERENEBHILE
BENRDET

AEBERBEEARBLRERER « ZHLXN
B FRRARABRREANTH - EHAEE
BEE - RABRRENBREEDSN 2 IPAKE
7 (BB ~ (RERE N R EAE ) o

2020 K 2021128318 » AEBERNFE
SRR B ITESI|EEBEL R -

MERENME + AEE R ER A5 (FEEE
HHINIEAER - A2021412 8318 * EX
8 #9825,329,0007% 7T (20204 : 812,842,000
BIT) © MASRERE EEITERE AR &8
BE# SRR ABBKTEEBIES -

AEBRZRRATINRERRE « ()T #55
B PTE ETdhs - HEAD25% AR AR
RIPFH - R(VEERITERM G EREE -

AEETAEEROBPEREZLIITRIER
FHEBRENEARGERARE @ ZREE
AEEREEAFEA—BEFERIE25%H AR
BHIERTE °
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12A318LEFE

30. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 30. AARIBBRARREESD
RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY

(a) Statement of financial position of the (a) AQTEKEAMRE
Company
As at 31 December
M12H31H
2021 2020
20214 20204
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Non-current assets EREEE
Investments in subsidiaries RHTB AT RIRE 23 477,091 477,091
Current assets RBEE
Other receivables HAb FEUGRIA 833 1,078
Due from subsidiaries AR NGIE 208,169 191,463
Bank and cash balances SRITIMIR S 54 66,940 87,155
Total current assets REEEHEE 275,942 279,696
Current liabilities REBAE
Other payables o fERTROR 452 145
Due to subsidiaries JE BT B A R RIE 40,801 45,229
Total current liabilities FREBEERAE 41,253 45,374
Net current assets REEERHE 234,689 234,322
NET ASSETS REE 711,780 711,413
CAPITAL AND RESERVES EARRF#E
Share capital &N 29 6,085 6,085
Reserves ] 30(b) 705,695 705,328
Equity P 711,780 711,413
Approved by the Board of Directors on 31 March 2022 and is RESEMN2022F3 831 BH#EIH T
signed on its behalf by: ATREZETEEE
Guo Yumin Xia Yu
BER B8

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12A318LEFE

30. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 30. ZATIBBRIARREESE(E)
RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY
(CONTINUED)

(b) Reserve movement of the Company (b) EQRIREELE

Capital Share-based
Share redemption Capital payments Retained

premium reserve reserve reserve profits
NS
HANE £
B BE  RREE  AEE REWA At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT  TAT  Ter  TET  TER AR

At 1 January 2020 20201418 601,585 53 81,955 16,838 30,478 730,909
Loss for the year EREE = = = = (1,303) (1,303)
Share-based payments AR AR A 32 1 - - - 63 - 63
Lapse of share options Bk = = = (3,035) 3,035 -
Dividend paid BERBRE = = = = (24,341) (24,341)
At 31 December 2020 120208128318 601,585 53 81,955 13,866 7,869 705,328
At 1 January 2021 m2021E1 418 601,585 53 81,955 13,866 7,869 705,328
Profit for the year FEREH = - - - 367 367
At 31 December 2021 M2021%F12 4318 601,585 53 81,955 13,866 8,236 705,695
JERER EEAR A A
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e BHRERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12A318LEFE

31. RESERVES
(@) Group

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and movements therein
are presented in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income and consolidated statement
of changes in equity.

(b) Nature and purpose of reserves

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Share premium

The share premium represents the difference between
the par value of the shares of the Company and
proceeds received from the issuance of the shares of
the Company.

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, the
funds in the share premium account of the Company
is distributable to the shareholders of the Company
provided that immediately following the date on
which the dividend is proposed to be distributed, the
Company would be in a position to pay off its debts as
they fall due in the ordinary course of business.

Capital redemption reserve

Capital redemption reserve arises from the reduction of
the nominal value of the issued capital of the Company
upon the cancellation of the repurchased shares.

Capital reserve

The capital reserve mainly represents the contribution
from the ultimate controlling party and the difference
between the nominal value of shares of the subsidiaries
acquired over the nominal value of shares issued by the
Company in exchange under the reorganisation of the
Group on 21 June 2012.

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited

Annual Report 2021
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31.

RESERVES (CONTINUED)

(b) Nature and purpose of reserves (continued)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MR RME

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12A318LEFE

31. f#E(E)
(b) fEENHEEMBAR(E)

Statutory reserve (iv) ZEEfFE

Pursuant to the applicable PRC regulations, all PRC RRBEANREDER - AEBERFT
subsidiaries of the Group are required to appropriate BB B A REGRERE R
10% of their after-tax profit (after offsetting prior A (A H E—EFE BR8N E
year/period losses) to the statutory reserve until such BIWI0%EBREEERHE  BEE
reserve reaches 50% of the registered capital of each ZERBEESHBTEMRB AR
relevant PRC subsidiary. The transfer to the statutory & ARHI50% © AR SIS
reserve must be made before distribution of dividends THERKREAEEEETERE &
to equity shareholders. The statutory reserve fund can TE S A N ES A A RE
be utilised, upon approval by the relevant authorities, BEA - RERB AR RS
to offset accumulated losses or to increase registered BIIEMEFMER -

capital of the subsidiary.

Share-based payments reserve (v) HURGHEBRHZARE

The share-based payment reserve represents the fair LARRAD B B 0 S A R R B AR AR I
value of the actual or estimated number of unexercised FEA(U) P AR 2 45 B DA R R B
share options granted to employees of the Group XN EAHERTASEES
recognised in accordance with the accounting policy BIRTTEE RN ER S A5 2B
adopted for equity-settled share-based payments in BRAREE -

Note 4(u) to the consolidated financial statements.

Exchange reserve (vi) EXf#E

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of the financial
statements of foreign operations. The reserve is dealt
with in accordance with the accounting policies set out
in Note 4(c) to the consolidated financial statements.

4 G BRI N R T B
BRAEEOFAES 25 - %
BB U467 & B 5 8 2R B E 4O 51
2 IR HAIE -

JERZEREBERAR
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FEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021

HZE2021F12A318LEFE

32. DEFERRED TAX 32. EEHIA
The components of deferred tax assets/(liabilities) recognised in the BEGEE MBI R ERRECHEEE, (&
consolidated statement of financial position and the movements &) AR I D FIAEZEEBIT ¢

during the year are as follows:

Provision for
inventories,
trade and  Undistributed Fair value
Unrealised other profits of adjustment
Deferred tax arising from: profit receivables  subsidiaries ERE

7K -E5

FEWFIER
Hiti IR HELRN BEN
ELHUEEER RERHEF B AOBEF AAEEHE CE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT THET THET TAT THAT

At 1 January 2020 R2020F1H 18 65 2,118 (5,600) (190) (3,607)

Exchange differences R - 245 - - 245

(Charge)/credit to profit or loss (1% &),/ 5t AtB25 (63) 1,648 (752) @) 826

Disposal of subsidiaries HERB A A (P

(Note 38(b)) 38(b)) - (2,645) - - (2,645)

At 31 December 2020 720209128318 2 1,366 (6,352) (197) (5,181)

Exchange differences EHER = (16) = = (16)

(Charge)/credit to profit or loss (F1k &),/ 5t AfB% - (1,246) (947) 24 (2,169)

At 31 December 2021 R20219F12A431H 2 104 (7,299) (173) (7,366)
Reconciliation to the consolidated statement of financial position: RE MR R

2021 2020

20215 20204

HK$'000 HK$'000

TER FHET

Deferred tax assets RIEFIEE E 106 1,368

Deferred tax liabilities FERIBRE (7,472) (6,549)

(7.366) (5,181)

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited
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FEUBRRME
For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12A318LEFE

32. DEFERRED TAX (CONTINUED) 32. EEHIE(HE)
At the end of the reporting period the Group has unused tax losses RBEBRR  NEBHEEARBAHIESELD
of approximately HK$17,114,000 (2020: HK$18,490,000) available 17,114,000 7t (20204 : 18,490,000 JT )
for offset against future profits. No deferred tax asset has been AT ARESEAR IR A o BRNAR A H AR 2
recognised due to the unpredictability of future profit streams. AIFERIE - W RERIRERIIA B E © 5t AKRHE
Included in unrecognised tax losses are losses of HK$8,653,000 2% I8 5 18 #Y /5 48.8,653,0007% T (2020 4F
(2020: HK$11,655,000) that will expire on various dates up to 2026 11,655,000/ 7T ) # 722026 6 (20204 : 2025
(2020: 2025). Other tax losses may be carried forward indefinitely. F) Z AT E B BRI H o HAbFETE AR R &R

HRfEE o

33. DEFERRED GOVERNMENT GRANTS 33. EZEBTFEED
The deferred government grants represented the subsidies granted RIERAMBRRTPEBRARBEES TYWE -
by the PRC government to the Group in respect of acquisition of BB MR R EREEES TASE /AL o

certain property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets.

2021 2020
20214 20204
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHT
At 1 January M1ATR 6,335 6,200
Credit to profit or loss for the year (Note 9) ST AFE B (ME9) (282) (264)
Exchange differences bE X =R 167 399
At 31 December ®12A31H 6,220 6,335
Analysed as: DT -
Current liabilities BB & 287 280
Non-current liabilities ERBAE SHEEE) 6,055
6,220 6,335
JERER EEAR A A
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e BHRERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12A318LEFE

34. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

34. BESRNREARELMENRE

184

2021 2020

20214 2020%F

HK$°000 HK$'000

THET FHIT

Trade payables B ZENFRIE 4,981 12,034
Other payables and accruals HAb R RIE R ERT & A

— related parties — [ 140 137

— third parties =E=% 10,464 9,119

15,585 21,290

The ageing analysis of trade payables, based on invoice date, is as

BIRNRBARENERNRRAON(RERA

follows: H) IO
2021 2020

20214 20204

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET

Due within 1 month or on demand 1{& B A sk e Esk 775 668
Due after 1 month but within 3 months 11E A &1 31E A M EHA - 10
Due after 3 months but within 6 months 3{E A& 1B61E A AEIHA - 62
Due more than 6 months 6fE A& 2 HA 4,206 11,294
4,981 12,034

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade payables are

denominated in RMB.

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited
Annual Report 2021
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MR RME

For the year ended 31 December 2021

HE2021F12A318IEFE
35. CONTRACT LIABILITIES 35. BHNERE
Contract liabilities represented progress billing recognised in relation BHRBBEREEE M R YRR o

to sales of goods and properties.

Movements in contract liabilities:

Balance at 1 January

Decrease in contract liabilities as a result of
recognising revenue during the year was
included in the contract liabilities at the

BRABEES :

2021 2020
20215 2020%F

HK$°000 HK$'000
TR THAT

W1 A1 BB &R 115 1,950
FRNHABERBANELNEE
(BVIEt AR A E) R

2.

beginning of the period (116) (1,372)
Increase in contract liabilities as a result of Eial s FRIBEHA LA BN
advance received from customers - 619
Disposal of subsidiaries (Note 38(b)) &K A R] (H13E38(0)) = (1,148)
Exchange differences ME 5 =5 1 66
Balance at 31 December B2 A31 B4 - 115
JERZEREBERAR
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12A318LEFE

36. LEASE LIABILITIES 36. HEESE

Present value of
Minimum lease minimum lease
payments payments

REAESRK REAESRNRE

2021 2020 2021 2020
20215 20204 20214 20204
HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHTT FET T

Within one year —FR 1,601 2,027 656 1,067
More than one year, but not —F P BT EBBMRE
exceeding two years 1,241 1,531 344 645
More than two years, but not MELA EETBBRSE
more than five years 4,132 3,881 1,556 1,344
More than five years ity Rk 20,458 20,824 12,691 12,858
27,432 28,263 15,247 15,914
Less: Future finance charges W ARRBEER (12,185) (12,349) IN/A FEA N/A Ti#EA
Present value of lease obligations HEAENRE 15,247 15,914 15,247 15,914
Less: Amount due for settlement B 1218 A AR HAE R 2R
within 12 months (shown (RmBEaETER)
under current liabilities) (656) (1,067)

Amount due for settlement after 12 12{@ B & ZI|ERfE (& 28

months 14,591 14,847
The weighted average incremental borrowing rates applied to lease HRANEEAENMETSESEERENT
liabilities range from 2.55% to 11.18% (2020: from 2.55% to 2.55%%11.8%(2020%F : 2.55%%11.18%) °
11.18%).

The carrying amounts of the Group’s lease liabilities are AEEHEAENREEN T EBHE :

denominated in the following currencies:

2021 2020
20214 20204

HKS$'000 HK$'000

FET FET

HK$ BT 236 895
RMB AR #E 15,011 15,019
15,247 15,914

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited
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37. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution of the then sole shareholder
passed on 22 June 2012, a pre-IPO share option scheme (the “share
option scheme”) was approved and adopted to provide grantees
with the opportunity to acquire equity interest in the Company.

The purpose of the share option scheme is to attract and retain
the best available personnel, to provide additional incentive to
employees (full-time), directors and advisers of the Group and to
promote the success of the business of the Group.

Each option gives the holder the right to subscribe for one ordinary
share in the Company and is settled gross in shares.

(@  The terms and conditions of the grants at the date of the
grants are as follows:

37.

RE B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12A318LEFE

SR BRI Z N

RIEE R —IRRA2012F6 A22HRBAE
BRER - B LREEAIERERT 2 (B
HERTE] ) R AN - BEAR AREHEE
BAR R MR AR

B S S ERSI MR ERENATAAS
AAEERE(28)  E=REARRHEINE
T UA B (R AN SR ZE TS RO D)

BNBREE TRAEARMNRBARAR —BE
B WA 2HEE -

() IR B EIPTR BRI R R #T
LU

Options granted to

BFUAT ATHERE
Date granted Vesting date Expiry date Directors Employees
RHBH FEAH EHA BEx BE&
29 January 2015 29 January 2016 28 January 2025 420,000 2,500,000 2,920,000
201541 H29H 201641 H29H 202541 H28H
29 January 2015 29 January 2017 28 January 2025 420,000 2,500,000 2,920,000
201541 H29H 201741 H29H 2025%F1 H28H
29 January 2015 29 January 2018 28 January 2025 420,000 2,500,000 2,920,000
201541 529H 201841 A29H 2025%F 1 H28H
29 January 2015 29 January 2020 28 January 2025 420,000 2,500,000 2,920,000
201541 H29H 202041 HA29H 202541 H28H
29 January 2015 29 January 2021 28 January 2025 420,000 2,500,000 2,920,000
201541 H29H 202141 A29H 20251 H28H

2,100,000 12,500,000 14,600,000

IERZEREEERAF
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12A318LEFE

37. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b)  The number and weighted average exercise prices of share
options are as follows:

37. URORERNZM(E)
(b)  EERRHEMBNE AT ITEEAT

Share options granted
on 29 January 2015

2015515298 3 H B R
Weighted
average No. of
exercise price options
INEFHTHEE BRERE
‘000
T
Outstanding at 1 January 2021 and R2021F1 A 1H &20214F
31 December 2021 12 A31 B RMARITHE 0.8250 49,550
Exercisable at 31 December 2021 2021412 A31 B AI{7{# 0.8250 49,550
Outstanding at 1 January 2020 7202041 B 18 WA 0.8250 53,650
Lapsed during the year FRLRK 0.8250 (4,100)
Outstanding at 31 December 2020 202012 A31 B EARTTE 0.8250 49,550
Exercisable at 31 December 2020 12020512 A31 B AJ17{E 0.8250 49,550

The share options granted on 29 January 2015 outstanding at
31 December 2021 had an exercise price of HK$0.8250 (2020:
HK$0.8250) and a weighted average remaining contractual
life of 3.08 years (2020: 4.08 years).

The numbers of options and weighted average exercise price
were presented as after the effect of the share subdivision
with effect from 24 September 2015 on the basis of each
issued or unissued share of the Company was subdivided into
4 subdivided shares.

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited
Annual Report 2021
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RE B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12A318LEFE

38. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 38. #RERERERME

CASH FLOWS

(a) Disposal of a subsidiary during the year (a) ZE2021%F12H31BLEEHE
ended 31 December 2021 iip= NG
The Group entered into a share purchase agreement to REBFVERGERABYE=FHE
dispose of 51% equity interest in Xuzhou Xinbai New M EFBEREERAA (A
Kinetic Energy Science Technology Co., Ltd. (“Xinbai New MEEE ) WS1%RkE  RERARY
Kinetic Energy”), at a cash consideration of RMB10,200,000 10,200,000 7t ( 46 £ 7 49 12,300,000 /&
(equivalents to approximately HK$12,300,000) to an TL)  ZHEEEEEN2021F9A6HT
independent third party and the disposal was completed on B o ZME A RS EER RIEER
6 September 2021. The subsidiary is engaged in properties 7% o

development and related services.

Net assets of Xinbai New Kinetic Energy at the date of

disposal were as follows:

REEBHSEHRDENEEFENT ¢

HK$'000
TAT

Inventories FE 17,450
Other receivables H b el GRIA 42
Bank and cash balances RITRIR R 1,376
Other payables Hofth fE < FRIE (76)
Net assets disposed of Frii & EESE 18,792
Release of foreign currency translation reserve EBRONS B E S (334)
Exclusion of the carrying amount of non-controlling 5l JE2 A #E 25 BRI (B
interests (4,349)
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary (Note 10) HEKB A REE(KEE10) (1,809)
Total consideration BB 12,300
Consideration satisfied by: ATHF A ZARE :
Cash B 9,606
Sales proceeds receivable FEYSHE PTS SRIE 2,694
12,300
Net cash inflow arising on disposal: HEEENBERAFE
Cash consideration received BUERENRE 9,606
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of FTtERe KIS EEEE (1,376)
8,230
JERZEREBERAR

20214F 3R

189



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BHRERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12A318LEFE

38. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)

(b) Disposal of subsidiaries during the year
ended 31 December 2020

As referred to in Note 16 to the consolidated financial
statements, on 10 December 2020 the Group discontinued its
manufacturing and sales of BOPP films operations at the time
of the disposal of its subsidiaries, Sheen China and Qingdao
Ener.

Net assets of Sheen China and Qingdao Ener at the date of
disposal were as follows:

38. MERESHRERMNT(E)

(b) EZE2020512831BLFEEHE

KB AT

MR E B sR R MR 16FTH - AEBR
202012 B10H B EEKB A 7 IBZE K&
BERAERR I EEHERGE RS
PREETS -

RS R HIRER B B Hmr & EFHE

N

_|

HK$'000
THET

Property, plant and equipment M - BE KR 101,613
Right-of-use assets EREEE 20,724
Deferred tax assets RIERIBE E 2,645
Inventories rE 81,089
Trade and other receivables B 5 FENGRIE I H A FE YRR 78,829
Bank and cash balances #RTNIR S R 5,040
Trade and other payables 5 M IE R H A ER RO (153,684)
Contract liabilities aHEE (1,148)
Bank borrowings SRITER (23,540)
Current tax liabilities BNEATR IR B 1B (947)
Lease liabilities HEBE (2,412)
Net assets disposed of Frii & EESE 108,209
Release of foreign currency translation reserve TE RSN A B (A 6,425
Exclusion of the carrying amount of non-controlling I FEIZERE R IR (E

interests (31,785)
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries (Note 16) HEK B A REE(KE16) (3,666)
Total consideration BRE 79,183
Consideration satisfied by: ATHF A ZARE :

Cash B 79,183
Net cash inflow arising on disposal: HEEENBSRAFE

Cash consideration received BHERER(E 79,183

Cash and cash equivalents disposed of FrHEReRReSEEE (5,040)

74,143

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited
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38. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)

(9)

(d)

Disposal of interest in a subsidiary without (c)

loss of control

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group
disposed of 30% interests in Qingdao Ener at a cash
consideration of RMB27,000,000 (equivalents to
approximately HK$29,624,000). The effect of the disposal
on the equity attributable to the equity shareholders of the
Company is as follows:

mEMBHRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12A318LEFE

38. MERESHRERMNT(E)

HER—BENREHENNE R
AR

HZE2020F 12 A31BLLFE  AEEE
HESEEAI%MER  REAAR
#27,000,0007T (FHE5 7 #929,624,000/%8
TL) o MEHA N AR R BN ERE
BRI

HK$'000
THAT

Carrying amount of non-controlling R = A AR TE (B

interests disposed (28,108)
Consideration received from HFEIE R A (R (B

non-controlling interests 29,624
Gain on disposal recognised directly in equity BEERER R ERE 1,516

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from
financing activities

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities
arising from financing activities, including both cash and non-

cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are
those for which cash flows were, or future cash flows will be,
classified in the Group’s consolidated statement of cash flows
as cash flows from financing activities.

(d)

REETBRTEENAEHR

TRAMASEREZBAELNRER
8 BREREMFRSES - MEABA
EEMNBERAERGERSRERTH
EREBBEDBERIARKAS RIS ER
BERBEEHNRERNEE °

1 January Exchange 31 December

2021 Cash flows differences 2021

20214 20215

1818 HERE ELER 12A31H

HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000

FERT FET FET FHET

Lease liabilities (Note 36) HE& & (MFE36) 15,914 (1,071) 404 15,247
JERER EEAR A A

20214F 3R
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BHRERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12A318LEFE

38. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 38. Z&8BRE&RERMIT(E)
CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)

(d) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from
financing activities (continued)

(d) REZBFREENEEHKR(E)

Disposal of
1 January Cash subsidiaries Exchange 31 December
2020 flows Additions  (Note 38(b)) differences 2020
2020 HERBAT 2020

1818 BehE #E  (M3s(b) =R 12A318
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
e FEr  Far  FEr  TEr TEn

Bank borrowings RITER 69,902 (47,594) - (23,540) 1232 -
Lease liabilities (Note 36) MEEE(HF36) 18911 (2,948) 1,298 2.412) 1,065 15,914
88,813 (50,542) 1,298 (25,952) 2,297 15,914
(e) Total cash outflow for leases (e) HERESRHAE
Amounts included in the consolidated statement of cash AAGEHEERERTHHEEREN T
flows for leases comprise the following: B
2021 2020
20214 20204
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Within operating cash flows ERERERER 3,602 3,165
Within investing cash flows ERERSMET 1,590 -
Within financing cash flows ERERESREF 1,071 2,948
6,263 6,113
These amounts relate to the following: ZERTEHEATIHB AR

2021 2020

20214 20204

HK$°000 HK$'000

THET FHT

Lease rental paid BfHE 4,673 6,113
Payments for right-of-use assets FREEEMNK 1,590 =
6,263 6,113

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited
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38.

39.

40.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)

(f) Major non-cash transaction

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group
acquired right-of-use assets of HK$1,298,000 of which an
amount of approximately HK$1,298,000 was financed by
lease liabilities.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2021, the Group did not have any significant
contingent liabilities (2020: Nil).

OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

The Group as lessee

The Group regularly entered into short-term leases for offices. As
at 31 December 2021, the portfolio of short-term leases is similar
to the portfolio of short-term leases to which the short-term lease
expense disclosed in Note 20.

As at 31 December 2021, the outstanding lease commitments
relating to these offices are approximately HK$368,000 (2020:
HK$466,000).

The Group as lessor

Operating leases relate to building owned by the Group with lease
terms of 1 year (2020: 2 years). The lessee does not have an option
to purchase the property at the expiry of the lease period.

The following table presents the amounts reported in profit or loss:

38.

39.

40.

RE B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12A318LEFE

FERERERMEE(E)

(f) FEHFREXRSZ

HZE2020F12 A31 B ILFE - REBEW
B8 {5 FIAE & B2 1,298,000/ 7T © HAF 4
1,298,000 THEE A ERLE °

RAREE

R2021F 128318 » NEBEWEEREAHKA
B{E(2020%F : £E) o

REFEZH

AEBEAEEA

AEBTEHT LI AZEHAE - 7H12021F12
A318 @ EEEHEE Ei 209 3% 55 #5223
FES HMERAEHES AL -

R2021F 128318 » ZEHAERBFHRER
A& A HE #9368,00078 7T (20204 : 466,000
JT) °

REBE/HAA

AEBFHEERTHRE CERENERMF
(2020% : 2%F) - AABRAERBERERE

20214 2020%F

HK$'000 HK$'000

TET FHIT

Lease income on operating leases KERENHESIA 44 483
JERZREBER D E

20214F 3R



194

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BHRERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12A318LEFE

41. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

For the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, transactions with
the following parties are considered to be related party transactions:

EXBABLXRS

REZE20214F 2020512 A3 BIEFER » &
TINBTETHR SRR SRR TR S -

Mr. Guo Yumin Director and the ultimate controlling party of the Company
BERKE RRRERREEE T
Ms. Xia Yu Director and the ultimate controlling party of the Company
BBzt RNRRER KRS

Xuzhou Ruilong Real Estate
Development Co., Ltd. (Note)
RMNEmREE AR AR AR (M)

Cheng Jun Group Limited
HEEEFRAR

Union Winful Limited
BAKEERAF

Sheen Dragon Properties Limited

e E X AR AR

Hong Kong Rising Star Group Holdings Limited
HEEREETERERAR

Hong Kong Sheen Dragon Investment Company Limited

HEmEREERAR]

Xuzhou Lvzhou Property Management Co., Ltd (Note)
RINEN D EE R AR A R (i)

Note: The English translation of the names is for reference only. The official
names of these entities are in Chinese.

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited
Annual Report 2021

Owned by Mr. Guo Yumin

BB EREEHES

Owned by Mr. Guo Yumin
HAEREEEE

Owned by Mr. Guo Yumin
HBEREEESR

Owned by Mr. Guo Yumin
HAEREEEE

Owned by Mr. Guo Yumin
HBERTEEESR

Owned by Mr. Guo Yumin
MAEREEES

Owned by Mr. Guo Yumin
HBEREEESR

BfRE - AXAWEEZRWERSE - ZFERNES
B ARR SR



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FEUBRRME
For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12A318LEFE
41. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 41. EXBHAIRS (#)
(CONTINUED)

(a) Key management personnel remuneration (a) FEEEAEHM
Remuneration for key management personnel of the AEFEFZEEREABTHI(RIERMEES
Group, including amounts paid to the Company’s directors T B T EE KM E14(b) Tk B
as disclosed in Note 15 and certain of the highest paid X TE T ixm E BE & #5078 ) #5140

employees as disclosed in Note 14(b), is as follows: ™

2021 2020
20215 20204

HK$°000 HK$'000
THAT

Short-term employee benefits %2 HifE S 12 A 4,827 4,973
Post-employment benefits BRER 12 1A 173 227
Equity compensation benefits PR (B A = 15
5,000 5,215
Total remuneration is disclosed in “staff costs” in Note 14. ENARRER KT EE 14 B TAAS I 4% EE o
JERZREBER D E
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BHRERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12A318LEFE

41. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 41.
(CONTINUED)

(b) Other related party transactions

In addition to those related party transactions disclosed in
Note 41(a) to the consolidated financial statements, the
Group had the following transactions with its related parties
during the year:

Management
fee

33
HK$'000
TR

Xuzhou Ruilong Real Estate BNIRERHEREER

EXBBALIRS (&)

(b)

HitbBB L X 5

FRER S B 15 R T 7241 (a) P I BB 54
© AR R SLEL B

TR H5N

SIATRS

2021
20214

Rental
expenses

HEMAX
HK$'000
TRT

Repayment
to related
parties

eI BT B
HK$'000
TRET

=
J75]

2
E

Repayment
received
from related
parties

fle Ak 7 AR
HEM
HK$'000
FTHERT

Development Co., Ltd. NG - 735 - 1,187
Cheng Jun Group Limited EWQEIEBE“’ = = (22) 22
Union Winful Limited BEKEERA = = (5) 5
Sheen Dragon Properties Limited Inie B E AR A = = (31) 178
Hong Kong Rising Star Group ~ &/e 2R EEE foﬁ_lﬁ

Holdings Limited - - (64) 64
Hong Kong Sheen Dragon EAINEREBRAA

Investment Company Limited - = (2) 2
Xuzhou Lvzhou Property RNEMNDEERER AR

Management Co., Ltd. 580 - - -
Mr. Guo Yumin BEREE - 793 (1,496) 1,087

580 1,528 (1,620) 2,545

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited
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41.

Xuzhou Ruilong Real Estate

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MR RME

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12A318LEFE

MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 41.
(CONTINUED)

(b) Other related party transactions (continued)

RN imRE S ER AR

EXEBLT RS (&)

(b) HtbEBEL X% (&)

Rental
expenses

HEFx
HK$'000
TET

2020

20204
Repayment
Repayment received
to related from related
EIES
i)yl
W ER By K
HK$'000

TATT

parties

IR B 77 5K
HK$'000

Development Co., Ltd. NG| 717 (1,125) =
Cheng Jun Group Limited MEEBER AT = (10) 10
Union Winful Limited Bt E K EERAH = ) 2
Sheen Dragon Properties Limited ImEEXEABR AR 350 - 397
Hong Kong Rising Star Group BEREREEZERAERAT

Holdings Limited = (5) 5
Hong Kong Sheen Dragon BRNMERERRAR]

Investment Company Limited = (5) 5
Mr. Guo Yumin BEREE 507 (982) 1,536
Ms. Xia Yu Bzt - - 80

1,574 (2,129) 2,035
JERER EEAR A A

20215 F 2R
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BHRERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12A318LEFE

41. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 41. EXBEHARXS (&)

(CONTINUED)
(c) Balances with related parties (c) EERFEELEVAEER
At 31 December 2021 and 2020, the Group had the 720214 %2020%F 12 8318 » NEEH
following balances with related parties: B AT ER R 5 HOERER -
2021 2020
20214 20204
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FBT
Due from related companies U FR RS 75 5RIE
— Sheen Dragon Properties Limited —InEEXEERAT (i) - 147
— Xuzhou Ruilong Real Estate — RN BE S 2= A 3
Development Co., Ltd. BRAT (i) - 1,187
Due from director and ultimate FEUNE = R s Akl 77
controlling party KIA
— Mr. Guo Yumin —BERLAE (i) 427 18
Due to a related company JE 1~ BB A R F0E
— Xuzhou Lvzhou Property — RGN E R
Management Co., Ltd. BRAA (i) (140) (137)
287 1,215
Note: FE -
(i) The amounts due from/(to) related companies and a director (i) U (BB AR REZREE R
are interest-free and expected to be recovered within one year. kB - BFEEER—FRKE -
42. APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 42. #HEBEE®E
The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by W MwzRMN20226F3 A31 BEES S AL R
the Board of Directors on 31 March 2022. HETIEE

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited
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Summary Financial Information
B ERBE

The following is a summary of the published results and of the assets and ~ FTXABERAEARBREEAEEC TIBEEUAREE
liabilities of the Group for the last five financial years: REBEZHE :

Year ended 31 December
HZ12A3MBLEE

2021 2020 2019 2018 2017

20214 20204 2019 20184 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TAT THET TAT TAT

RESULTS 4

Revenue WA

Continuing operations FECEE 66,113 79,525 75,259 111,814 932,601

Discontinued operations EEIIE S - 270,105 300,949 342,013 318,105
66,113 349,630 376,208 453,827 1,250,706

(Loss)/profit before tax A (&18) amF (6,129) 14,226 (36,904) (20,665) (209,334)

Income tax (expense)/credit Frigi (2 ih)/ He (775) (4,439) (1,815) (6,747) 22,491

(Loss)/profit for the year from BECEEBFN(E

continuing operations #8),/ &R (6,904) 9,787 (38,719) (27,412) (186,843)
Profit/(loss) for the year from ER MO EEEFE NG

discontinued operations A/ (Ei8) - 6,755 (9,154) 796 20,757
(Loss)/profit for the year FAN(ER),5H (6,904) 16,542 (47,873) (26,616) (166,086)
Attributable to: AT AT RELS
Equity shareholders of RRAERRER

the Company (6,794) 15,053 (47,873) (26,498) (165,219)
Non-controlling interests FEE AR iR (110) 1,489 = (118) (867)
(Loss)/profit for the year FN(ER), (6,904) 16,542 (47,873) (26,616) (166,086)

JERER EEAR A A
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Summary Financial Information
M ERME

As at 31 December
®12H31H

2021 2020 2019 2018 2017

20215 20204 20194 20184 20174
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FBT FAT T T T

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BERERE
Non-current assets IERBBEE 341,788 343,688 512,355 535,058 511,183
Current assets EEE 540,055 529,326 471,286 586,747 761,599
Current liabilities mEaE (28,518) (32,721) (190,059) (284,654) (369,958)
Non-current liabilities EREaE (27,996) (27,451) (27,931) (5,844) (5,052)
Net assets FEE 825,329 812,842 765,651 831,307 897,772
Attributable to: AN AL FEL :
Equity shareholders of ARAIERRER

the Company 825,329 812,842 765,651 831,307 898,324
Non-controlling interests FEER R - - - - (552)
Total equity T iaEE 825,329 812,842 765,651 831,307 897,772

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited
Annual Report 2021
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